¢ AN N |
RETERR r F
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP. .
RETMEI=ARBR AT * ‘
RREESREEMNINERAT
Incorporated in Cayman Islands with Limited Liability

$E34888 / Stock Code : 0322 ANNUAL REPORI







H# Content

10

23

25

65

82

89

108

117

118

119

122

124

126

278

GGV
MBRE
& R4S
EERWME
SEZRE

BIEE T wm B DA

EEkaREEAEEN
EXEWE
B3 A2 B S

iR e R

iR e BRI R
FEBRREREBHR
HERDRER
fRE MR T

NEIER

Company Profile

Financial Summary

Sales Network

Chairman’s Statement

Group Structure

Management Discussion and Analysis
Prospects

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
Corporate Governance Report

Directors and Senior Management Profile
Directors’ Report

Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Income Statement

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Corporate Information

BRAEER
2018 Annual Report F#§

01



EREVEBIERER QG ARE ) REH
BRARAKEDFEEHRENELE
MEEHFEME KR EAFERR - AEE
M1992 FRAAESEHM - WHE 1996 F
BEXEBEAFERM MM 20124F3
A AEEE-THERABEBESER - =
X B2 PepsiCo B SRR 2 75 2 Bk B B B
HIERREERE  ER BE - -HER
7 34 PepsiCo AR R B IEVE RS8R KL - B Al
AEBMN=ZAREER  TEEFHRR
MISEBEBEENTIHMA - IBEMRF 2018
FNAYEBRT UHEEAEE &
2018 F AKERAER - IR RES
MmSEEEDRABEL33%  47.1% K
18.3% ' IBEMHEEMM - RNEBERT
IS HE R A159% @ BEHHE L o
1% GlobalData 2018412 AZEHER ' A
LB AR 2018 FIHEEMIHA33.0%
ETHEE M- [FAEIEATRRERKEF
B mE - CRSTFHOMGERER  R&X
FEEBESEMSIEH -

FENBERRBEMITENEERE  BA
SIRTTERMEEHEERENED - A
SETHBENTEEERE  BYAR
BEERS  BERRMLENETME
B MREMEERTE REAHEE
Rftz XK @FENRMS

AEBTHTEEME2EHS A HEER
weSHERBNRRE - BRI EET
B FREEERBERITEELMA - &
F2018F 12 AK » AN&EE %A 36916
BE N 108 8B B AR 28,415 RS
140,779 RELZTER o

RATIR1996F2 AEBBHMAER A
RAE £ e BR2018F 12 A31H » AR
Bl MEETSEET - BEAQRABER
T FE AREER (MSCI) R B35 #K 19 iE &
BAEFRB(EE L) 100488 KM
Sk AEBNBEREFETFRRRE
BETHEMRBITE  WHESR L IBKE
HERFPELL  UELIZERERPR A
FRMERRER]AEMBEZ -

02 B EERERAR

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP

Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”), and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) specialise in the production and
distribution of instant noodles, beverages and instant food products
in the People’s Republic of China (the “"PRC"). The Group started
its instant noodle business in 1992, and expanded into the instant
food business and beverage business in 1996. In March 2012, the
Group further expanded its beverage business by forming a strategic
alliance with PepsiCo for the beverage business in the PRC. The
Company exclusively manufactures, bottles, packages, distributes
and sells PepsiCo non-alcoholic drinks in the PRC. The Group's three
main business segments have established leading market shares in
the PRC's food industry. According to AC Nielsen December 2018
data, based on sales volume, in 2018, the Group was the market
leader in instant noodles, ready-to-drink teas and egg rolls, having
gained 43.3%, 47.1% and 18.3% market shares respectively. In the
overall juice drink market, the Group gained 15.9% market share,
ranked No.2 in the market. According to GlobalData December
2018 data, based on sales volume, Pepsi carbonated drinks had
33.0% market share and held a second position. After years of hard
work and accumulation, “Master Kong” has become one of the
best known brands among consumers in the PRC.

Being a leading brand in the fast moving consumer goods industry,
Master Kong has to hold the industry responsibility of food safety
and quality guarantee. The Group constantly builds and improves
management system, establishes risk prevention management
system, implements entire control over food safety and ensures
product quality and safety. We will constantly strive for product
quality and food safety, as well as provide consumers with safe, tasty
and healthy food.

The Group distributed its products throughout the PRC through
its extensive sales network consisting of 369 sales offices and 108
warehouses serving 28,415 wholesalers and 140,779 direct retailers
as of 31 December 2018. This extensive sales network is a significant
contributor to the Group’s leading market position and it enables
the Group to introduce new products rapidly and effectively.

The Company was listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited in February 1996. Market capitalisation as at 31 December
2018 was US$7.5 billion. The Company is a constituent stock of
Morgan Stanley Capital International (MSCI) China Index and Hang
Seng China (Hong Kong-listed) 100 Index.

Focused on food manufacture, sales and circulation business, the
Group will continue to strengthen its logistics and sales network in
the PRC with target of becoming “The largest Group for Chinese
Instant Food & Beverage in the World”.
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Revenue

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year

Profit attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Profit for the year

Dividends

Earnings per share
Basic
Diluted

2018

RMB’ 000

60,685,645 58,953,788

3,979,334

(1,250,565)

2,728,769

2,463,321
265,448

2,728,769
2,463,321

AR#ES
RMB cents

43.85

BZ12A31ALEE

For the years ended 31 December

2017 2016 2015 2014
ANREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB" 000  RMB’000  RMB’ 000  RMB’ 000
(&)  (KEY)  (KE5)
(Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)
55,578,849 57,277,611 63,170,397
3,392,736 2,433,516 2,966,807 4,279,459
(1,137,368) (1,051,453) (1,195,625) (1,288,461)
2,255,368 1,382,063 1,771,182 2,990,998
1,819,077 1,161,699 1,612,968 2,471,054
436,291 220,364 158,214 519,944
2,255,368 1,382,063 1,771,182 2,990,998
909,539 580,849 806,485 1,235,527
ARES ARES ANRES  ARES
RMB cents  RMB cents  RMB cents  RMB cents
32.45 20.73 28.78 4413
32.42 20.73 28.75 44.01

43.77
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Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid lease payments
Interests in associates

Interests in joint ventures
Intangible assets

Other non-current assets

Net current asset (liabilities)
Non-current liabilities

Net assets

Issued capital
Reserves

Non-controlling interests

Total equity
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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

2018
ARBTT
RMB’ 000

1,119,000
24,927,630
3,570,367
127,725
698,743
186,458
1,465,275
(2,977,064)
(5,505,703)

23,612,431

235,204
19,418,272

3,958,955

23,612,431

2017
ARETT
RIMB’ 000

1,106,000
28,014,779
3,730,767
120,568
660,691
162,936
1,362,410
(5,038,644)
(7,825,463)

22,294,044

235,053
18,177,026

3,881,965

22,294,044

R12A831H8

As at 31 December
2016 2015
ANEEFT AREFT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
(&E5) (ZE51)
(Restated) (Restated)
1,060,000 1,003,200
32,556,784 35,041,574
3,932,435 3,946,771
160,538 190,948
676,408 555,405
179,179 172,404
917,910 1,016,348
(6,670,267) (6,360,668)
(8,712,408)  (10,390,286)
24,100,579 25,175,696
234,767 234,710
17,888,773 18,477,329
5,977,039 6,463,657
24,100,579 25,175,696

2014
ARETT
RMB’ 000
(5E5))
(Restated)

36,325,551
4,571,062
198,201
459,674
169,264
818,646
(8,016,615)
(9,136,762)

25,389,021

234,738
18,501,335

6,652,948

25,389,021
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Sales Network

IAFEE Harbin

X3Z Tianjin

&8 Qingdao

¥ Zhengzhou

= F= Nanjing

NN

#I Hangzhou

N

\‘ ‘ ‘ 18 » &N Fuzhou
- ~
“ EE# Kunming
‘ == &/ Guangzhou
‘ .
EEEM b= HM B b ) iz i Hit A%
Production Centre Tianjin Hangzhou Guangzhou Shenyang Chongqing  Wuhan Xian Other Centres  Total
HEEER . .
Instant Noodles
=]
e o o
Beverage
FERMEHE 5
Instant Food
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
e e ¥ yE e

Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of
PR Sales Office 582 606 598 369 369
& E Warehouse 77 73 69 92 108
#BEE™ Wholesale 36,837 30,095 33,653 35,163 28,415
E%ZER Direct Retailer 118,359 116,036 116,222 129,449 140,779
BT A% Employee 79,003 69,425 65,182 56,995 54,210
4 E 4R Production Line 697 711 719 676 613
HEEH# Production Centre 129 132 126 118 103
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In 2018, the Group’s revenue and profit attributable to owners of the
Company both recorded year-on-year growth. In 2018, the Group's
revenue was RMB60.686 billion, profit attributable to owners of the
Company was RMB2.463 billion and earnings per share was RMB43.85
cents. The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of
US3.20 cents (equivalent to RMB21.92 cents) per share to shareholders.
Meanwhile, taking into account (1) the profits of the Group through
activation on assets in 2018 and (2) after assessing the capital
investment and normal working capital needs of the Group in 2019, the
Group anticipated maintaining a sound financial structure and sufficient
cash flow. On this regard, the Board recommended the payment of
special dividend of US3.20 cents (equivalent to RMB21.92 cents) per
share, in return for the long-term support of shareholders. The total
dividend will be US$359 million (equivalent to approximately RMB2.463
billion).

During the past year, with “Consolidate, Reform and Develop” as its
guiding strategy, the Group continued to move towards the goal of
“Return to Glory”. Thanks to the joint efforts of all staff, the Group
promoted the corporate transformation and upgrading, and orderly
completed the generation handover.

For the new journey ahead, the Group will actively improve the
corporate governance, and continue to contribute to society, so as to
perform social responsibilities and obligations. | wish that our consumers,
partners, employees and shareholders will continue to give their support
to Master Kong, create a sustainable business environment, so that
together we could move towards a more sustainable and brighter
future.

We would like to take this opportunity to express our heartfelt
appreciation to all fellows of the Board, the management and all staff
and customers for their support of years.

Wei Ing-Chou
Former Chairman

Wei Hong-Ming
Chairman

Shanghai, the PRC
25 March 2019
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Note: This chart illustrates TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.'s
direct or indirect proportion of ownership interest of its Principal Subsidiaries.
* represents direct translation of registered name in Chinese.
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Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
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In 2018, China's economy saw changes amid overall stability with
challenges mixed with opportunities. GDP increased 6.6 percent year-
on-year, residents’ income and consumption grew relatively fast, and
the consumption structure was in continuous upgrade. Changes in the
external environment, such as the China-US trade wars, fluctuations in
international financial markets, and commodity price volatility posed
some challenges to the Group, but regulatory policies such as fee
reductions and tax cuts also had a positive impact on the Group.

In 2018, the instant noodle industry in which the Group operates
recovered, with year-on-year growth accelerated. The beverage industry
also recorded growth, but at a slower year-on-year rate. With ongoing
consumption upgrading in first-and second-tier cities and an increase
in demand for cost-effective products in lower-tier cities, consumer
demand became diversified, creating considerable potential for the
development of the market. Accordingly, channel fragmentation
continued with online retail, catering channel, convenience stores
growing rapidly. The above environmental changes have brought
opportunities and challenges to the development of the Group.

In 2018, guided by the strategy of “Consolidate, Reform and Develop”,
with “consolidating the mass market and moving into the premium
market” in mind, the Group improved the product portfolio and
organizational structure. The Group implemented upgrades and price
adjustments for a number of categories including instant noodles, ready-
to-drink (RTD) tea, water, juice and instant food, and launched high-end
products in the instant noodle and bottled water categories. By doing
so, in addition to expanding the spectrum of price ranges, the Group
met the diversed needs of consumers in multiple channels. The instant
noodle business continued to grow steadily, and the beverage business
was still in the process of structural adjustment.
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EEFwESHT | Management Discussion and Analysis

m

In 2018, the Group's revenue increased by 2.94% to RMB60.686 billion
yoy (year-on-year compared with the corresponding period in 2017).
Revenue from instant noodles and beverages increased by 5.73% and
1.61%, respectively, yoy. During the year, although purchase price of
key raw material such as PET resin and paper material maintained at
high level, benefited by (1) price down from sugar and palm oil; (2) the
Group continued to modify product mix; and (3) price adjustment and
product upgrade, the Group's gross margin increased by 1.45ppt. yoy to
30.86%. Distribution costs represented 19.47% of the revenue for the
period and increased by 0.36ppt. yoy. EBITDA of the Group increased by
2.42% yoy to RMB7.376 billion. Thanked for the growth from revenue
and gross margin, and shareholding increased of beverage business,
profit attributable to owners of the Company increased by 35.42% yoy
to RMB 2.463 billion, earnings per share increased by RMB11.40 cents
to RMB43.85 cents.

In response to changes in the industry environment, the Group actively
explored a diverse range of sales channels, strengthened cooperation
with New Retail, and adjusted profits of certain channels to seek win-
win cooperation. In order to strengthen communication with consumers,
the Group ratcheted up investment in brand building starting in the
fourth quarter. The Group paid attention to communicating with all
types of consumers, especially young families. The Group enhanced its
brand image through aerospace cooperation, IP cooperation, and sports
marketing. In carrying out omnimedia marketing, the Group endeavored
to communicate accurately.

On the basis of making good use of capital expenditures and keeping
an eye on free cash flow, the Group developed a long-term plan to
optimize the supply chain layout and gradually went asset-light and
activated assets so as to continuously promote supply-side reform.
The Group also made further progress in process optimization,
system simplification, IT system enhancement and share service center
construction in an effort to improve organizational and operational
efficiency.

ERET R AR "
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EEFwESHT | Management Discussion and Analysis

m

Instant Noodle Business

According to the data from Nielsen, the sales volume and sales
amount of the overall instant noodle market grew by 3.2% and 8.0%
respectively, yoy. The market shares of Master Kong in terms of sales
volume and sales amount were 43.3% and 48.2%, respectively,
maintained No.1 position.

In 2018, the Group's revenue from instant noodle business was
RMB23.917 billion, which grew by 5.73% yoy, accounting for 39.41%
of the total revenue of the Group. During the year, the Group has
modified product mix, promoted product upgrade, and thanked for
price adjustments in the previous period, and purchase price decrease of
major raw materials, gross margin of instant noodles increased by 1.44
ppt. to 30.23%. Benefited from the sales growth, improvement of gross
margin, profit attributable to owners of the Company of the instant
noodle business in 2018 increased by 14.63% yoy to RMB1.709 billion.

Closely following the rise of the middle class and the continuous
upgrading of consumption, the Group gradually moved into the
premium and super-premium markets in a bid to lead upgrading in the
industry. The Group defined high-end noodles and premium noodles
collectively as “new high-end”, and bowl instant noodles priced at
more than 10 yuan per package as “super-premium”. With a focus on
consolidation “new high-end”, the Group set out to work on the super-
premium market to grow its sales. The Group created consumption
scenarios and met consumer demands with products available in
multiple specifications and multiple flavors, and attracted young
families through IP cooperation and multi media marketing. Through
sports marketing and aerospace cooperation, the Group also boosted
the image of its brand and product categories and successfully led the
development of product categories. For its instant noodle business, the
Group strengthened channel management, stepped up cooperation
with New Retail, and increased profits in all segments of channels in
order to seek a win-win situation. The Group also improved supply chain
efficiency by optimizing asset allocation and production arrangements
and increasing production line automation.

ERET R AR 13
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EEFTwESHT | Management Discussion and Analysis

New high-end noodles

For its new high-end noodle business, with consolidating core products
as the strategic focus, the Group created consumption scenarios and
attracted young families and middle working-class consumers with
products available in multiple specifications and multiple flavors, and
enhanced its brand image through IP cooperation, sports marketing
and multi media marketing to increase sales. In view of the growing
demands for cost-effective products in low-tier cities, the Group
strengthened investment in and efforts to sell large-package products
to actively expand into low-tier cities. For its Braised Beef business, the
Group attracted young families through IP cooperation with parent-
child animations and comics and variety TV shows, as well as increased
advertising in the fourth quarter; the Group also promoted the health
image of its brand and boosted sales through marathon, Pyeongchang
Noodle Restaurant and other forms of sports marketing. For its “Pickled
Mustard” business, the Group continued its IP cooperation with “Kung
Fu Panda” to rejuvenate its brand, leading to continued growth in sales.
For its “Spicy Beef” business, the Group attracted young consumers
through IP cooperation with popular game “Arena of Valor” and
animation “Douro Mainland” and multi media marketing. The “Premium
Soup Series” accommodates consumers’ nutrition and health needs;
for this line of business, the Group increased sales through advertising,
IP cooperation with variety shows and communication via social media
such as Weibo. The Group launched a slew of new products to meet
diverse consumer needs, bringing to market “Fresh Vegetable Noodle”
which appealed to metropolitan consumers with soup stock and natural
vegetables in the third quarter, and “Damo Shengyan” with a northwest
China flavor, “Xunwei Jiangnan” with a Jiangsu-Zhejiang flavor and
“Shanhai Hui"” with a Fujian flavor in the fourth quarter.

Super-premium noodles

Convinced that there was a trend towards premiumization in the
market, the Group set out to work on the super-premium market for
instant noodles priced at more than 10 yuan per package and launched
super-premium instant noodle product “Express Chef’s Noodle” priced
at nearly 20 yuan per package in the fourth quarter. Produced through
a unique process and featuring juicy chunks of meat, thick pure broth
and the taste of fresh noodles, the product represents the high quality
noodles of an upscale noodle restaurant. The Group carried out a
vigorous online marketing campaign for the product after its launch,
and launched a limited edition of the product with custom packaging
available for purchase online. It also successfully held a series of POP-UP
Store events, which won high praise from consumers.
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Beverage business

According to the data from Nielsen, in 2018 the sales volume and sales
amount of the beverage industry grew by 2.7% and 4.6%, respectively,
yoy. In 2018, the RTD tea (including milk tea) of the Group's beverage
business accounted for 47.1% market share in terms of sales volume
and continued to secure top ranking position in the market. The Group'’s
juice sales volume accounted for 15.9% of the market, ranking second
in the market. Market share for bottled water was 8.7%, ranking No.4
in the market for the time being. According to the monitoring data of
third-party research companies, in terms of sales volume, the overall
market share of Pepsi carbonated drinks increased to 33.0% in 2018,
ranked No.2. The market share of Pepsi Cola increased to 49.0% in the
cola carbonated drinks segment in 2018 and was the No.1 brand in the
market.

In 2018, the overall revenue of the beverage business was RMB35.313
billion, increased by 1.61% yoy, accounting for 58.19% of the Group's
total revenue. During the year, gross margin of the beverage business
increased by 1.44 ppt. yoy to 31.26%, mainly due to product upgrade
and price adjustments on certain products. Benefited from gross margin
improvement, saving on finance expenses and shareholding increase
of beverage business, the profit attributable to owners of the beverage
business in 2018 was RMB549 million, grew by 28.82% yoy.

For its beverage business, after making a number of price adjustments,
the Group continuously adjusted the product mix with a focus on core
categories and products in order to meet needs of mass consumers. The
Group continued to develop products available in multiple specifications
and multiple packages to create different consumption scenarios in a bid to
attract young families and young consumers. The Group actively promoted
the diversification of channels and developed indoor and outdoor channels.
The Group strengthened brand building through IP cooperation, sports
marketing, etc., and increased brand investment to raise awareness
of its brand. The Group also made a sustained effort to activate assets
and go asset-light, optimized its capacity distribution, optimized capital
expenditures, and improved the overall efficiency of the supply chain.
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RTD tea

RTD tea consolidated the mass market with core products. The Group
adjusted channel profits in the middle of 2018. The Group continuously
accommodated different consumption scenarios with products available
in multiple specifications, and attracted young consumers and families
through IP cooperation, sports marketing and scene marketing to boost
sales. “Master Kong Ice Tea” created sports scene with NBA China
Game, music scene with Produce 101, and family scene with Disney,
and maintained steady sales growth. The “Jasmine Series” appealed
to young consumers through interactions between young people
involving confessions with music playing in the background and posted
a year-on-year increase in sales. “Green Tea” reinforced its “fresh and
energetic” brand image, and cooperated with Tencent Animation &
Comics on top IP to attract consumers in the two-dimensional world.
“Master Kong Milk Tea” carried out IP cooperation with “Rocket Girls
101", unleashing the purchasing power and communication power of
fans, which in combination with new flavors, brought about a growth
in sales. Oolong tea was introduced in the second half of the year to
attract more consumers.

Bottled water

For its bottled water business, the Group upgraded products and raised
prices and made arrangements for markets spanning the low and
medium and high price market in 2018; this line of business is still in
the process of product mix adjustment. For its beverage business, the
Group actively invested in brand building and carried out IP cooperation
to attract young families, and met different consumer needs with
products available in multiple specifications in an effort to promote
sales. For its “Master Kong Bottled Drinking Water” business, the Group
carried out IP cooperation with “Boonie Bears” and communicated the
reassuring water quality image as represented by “the eight processes
with national patent” to attract young families. For its “Aquafina”
business, the Group raised prices in a move towards the mid-end water
market and met different consumer needs products available in multiple
specifications. In 2018, the Group launched natural mineral water
product “Han Yang Quan”, which with its brand image that conveyed
high quality and rich cultural implications, was used at the China
International Import Expo and the World Internet Conference. With this

product, the Group collaborated with “Tmall China Cool” during New
York Fashion Week to communicate its brand to the world in an effort

to establish a premium brand image.
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Carbonated drinks

For its Pepsi’s carbonated drinks bottling business, the Group promoted
multi-channel construction products available in multiple specifications,
met diverse consumer needs with low-sugar products available in
multiple packages and multiple flavors, and brought sales of Pepsi’s
carbonated drinks to a new high in the Chinese market through IP
cooperation and other marketing activities. For its “Pepsi-cola” business,
the Group built a dining platform while expanding the range of product
specifications, and attracted young consumers with marketing event
“Pepsi Concept Store” to increase sales. For its “Mirinda” business,
the Group carried out IP cooperation with animations and comics,
and made use of festive scenes to deepen the brand image of “Mess
with Your Senses”. "7 up” appealed to a variety of consumer groups
with multiple packages such as the “retro can” and “7 up Low Sugar”
health products; for this line of business, the Group made a sustained
effort to promote and reinvent specially prepared drinks to increase the
penetration rate of catering channels.

Juice drinks

The Group upgraded and raised the prices of juice drinks, launched
100% juice products, and made a sustained effort to consolidate the
leading position of Chinese juice products and promote the sale of
Western juice products. The Group created consumption scenarios and
expanded catering and take-out channels products available in multiple
specifications, and attracted young consumers and families through
IP cooperation and media marketing. Chinese-style juice “Rock Candy
Pear” was targeted at students and young families; for this line of
business, the Group cooperated with popular children’s TV programs
and started a trend for Traditional Chinese Culture with its own IP “Prince
Fresh” and “Princess Run” to deepen the brand image. The “Traditional
Drink Sweet-Sour plum juice” met the needs of consumers in catering
channels with the image of a Chinese classic drink. Western-style
juice “Master Kong Juices” promoted the sale of products of various
specifications by capturing festive scenes. “Nutrilight Fruits” came out
with new flavors, and “NutriLight Mix & Match BAR" was created to
expand the range of consumption scenarios. “Tropicana” met the needs
of different consumption scenarios such as dinner parties and take-
out through new flavors, new packaging and multiple specifications to
enhance consumers’ preference for mixed-flavored juices. In response
to a shift towards healthier choices, the Group launched 100% juices
“Tropicana 100% " to increase the brand's sales.
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Coffee drinks/functional drinks/probiotics

In the ready-to-drink (RTD) coffee market, the Group, having established
a foothold in the midhigh-priced RTD coffee segment, cooperated with
international strategic partner “Starbucks” to lead the development
of premium market, and expanded its market share in the room
temperature midhigh-priced RTD coffee segment with “Bernachon
coffee” to sustain sales growth. Starbucks continued to launch
new products such as the low-fat and lower-sugar “Starbucks Light
Frappuccino - Vanilla Flavor” and the espresso-based canned product
“Starbucks Doubleshot”; holiday gift boxes were provided to promote
sales. The coffee drink business accelerated its regional expansion and
city coverage. The focus was on e-commerce business and development
of specialty channels. For its “Bernachon coffee” business, the Group
actively sought to operate in core urban areas and modern channels and
combined online and offline marketing to establish a professional coffee
brand image and achieve rapid sales growth.

The functional drink “Gatorade” which was intended to project
the brand as the first sports brand saw its sales rise steadily. For its
“Gatorade” business, the Group carried out sports marketing through
sports events and sports venues and online promotion through KOLs (key
opinion leaders), and offered the product for sale offline in exclusive
brand refrigerators and at exclusive sales points to increase brand
exposure, enhance the image and promote sales.

“Wei Chuan Ambient Probiotics Drink” was in line with consumers’
pursuit of nutrition and quality. For this line of business, on the basis of
consolidating the Yangtze River Delta market, the Group expanded into
new sales territories and promoted the development of new channels.
Through new flavors, new packaging and the young and vibrant public
image of a high-traffic spokesperson, the product appealed to young
consumers, increased its visibility across the country and saw an increase
in sales.
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Instant Food Business

According to the data from Nielsen, overall sales amount of the biscuit
market for the full year of 2018 increased by 5.1% yoy, of which sales
amount of egg rolls increased by 3.6% sales amount of sandwich
crackers increased by 9.3%. In terms of sales amount, the market share
of Master Kong egg rolls was 22.5% and ranked No.1 in the market.
The market share of sandwich crackers was 10.2% and ranked No.2 in
the market.

In 2018, revenue of the instant food business was RMB779 million,
dropped by 9.27% yoy, and amounted to 1.28% of the Group's total
revenue. Gross margin increased by 1.43ppt. to 37.09%. Despite the
decrease in distribution costs and administrative expenses, in 2018,
instant food business recorded loss attributable to owners of RMB12.06
million.

For the instant food business, the Group continued to focus on the
core cake and cracker category and accommodated differing consumer
needs and the diversity of channels with products available in multiple
specifications. The Group rolled out a plan for channel expansion and
made arrangements for the development of new categories in order
to stay on top of consumption upgrade and snack trends. The Group
vigorously promoted its “3+2 sandwich crackers” available in small
packages in an effort to drive the growth of its biscuit products. In the
fourth quarter, the Group launched snack “3+2 Mini Crispy Rolls”,
which catered to young consumers and revitalized the brand image.

In the future, the instant food business will continue to focus on the
core cake and cracker category. But given that instant food accounts
for a very low proportion of the Group’s overall business and the
active adjustment of product structure, this line of business will not be
elaborated upon in future result announcements in the short run.
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The Group continued to maintain a stable and healthy financial
structure through effective control of the balances of trade receivables,
trade payables, bank balances and cash as well as inventories. As at
31 December 2018, the Group's bank balances and cash totalled
RMB13.840 billion, an increase of RMB3.556 billion from 31 December
2017. A sufficient amount of cash in hand was still maintained. As at 31
December 2018, the Group's total assets and total liabilities amounted
to RMB53.003 billion and RMB29.390 billion respectively. This showed
a decrease in RMB1.096 billion and a decrease in RMB2.415 billion
respectively compared to 31 December 2017. The debt ratio decreased
by 3.34ppt. to 55.45% compared to 31 December 2017. Gearing ratio
dropped to -15.29% from 22.26% as at 31 December 2017.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's total interest-bearing borrowings
was RMB10.835 billion which decreased by RMB3.550 billion from
31 December 2017. The Group repaid RMB1 billion notes payable
in August 2018. At the end of the reporting period, the Group's
proportion of the total borrowings denominated in foreign currencies
and Renminbi were 72% and 28% respectively, as compared to 69%
and 31% respectively as at 31 December 2017. The proportion between
the Group's long-term borrowings and short-term borrowings was
40% and 60% respectively, as compared to 46% and 54% respectively
as at 31 December 2017. In line with the Group's overall strategy of
Cash Is King, the Group has implemented sound control over capital
expenditure and has effectively implemented asset-light and activation
on asset, which is expected to generate stable cash inflows. During the
year, the Group sold the entire equity interests of two subsidiaries to
two independent third parties, realized a net cash inflow of RMB437
million. In the future, the Group will continue to gradually reduce the
level of interest-bearing borrowings through the usage of internal
resource so as to achieve more flexible and healthier financial structure
objectives and further improve the operational basis.

During the year, US dollars appreciated against Renminbi by 5.29%.
Due to the fluctuation of exchange rate, realized and unrealized
exchange losses in aggregate of RMB46.92 million has been recognized
in the Group's income statement.
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As at December 31, 2018, the number of employees of the Group
was 54,210. By optimizing the organizational structure and building
efficient organizations, the Group continuously optimized its staff
structure. Against the background of a generational transition, the
Group deepened human resources reform. By optimizing the strategic
deployment of talents, planning for talent development, streamlining
workflows, etc., the Group gradually injected young blood into its talent
pool and diversified its talent pool to provide talent support for the
Group to achieve its strategic objectives.

The Group continuously optimized its talent team, brought in a
diverse group of young talents through rational planning and scientific
selection, and differentiated programs between them when it came to
training. The Group continued to build up its reserve of campus talents
through the “Young Master Program” and paid attention to improving
the rotational training mechanism for them. The Group also deepened
campus-enterprise relationships, and cooperated with universities and
vocational schools through practice bases, scholarships, visits, etc. to
supply grassroots talent for the long-term sustainable development of
the Group.
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There are many uncertainties in the macro environment in 2019,
and China’s food and beverage industry also feels the pinch of a
slowdown in growth, but consumption upgrading and other favorable
factors are buoying the industry. Consumption stratification, channel
fragmentation, and fluctuations in raw material prices pose some
challenges to the Group, but market diversification also brings many
opportunities to the Group.

In order to seize opportunities and increase market share, the Group
will increase brand investment and optimize channel profits, taking
into account both short-term and long-term development. In addition,
the Group will push ahead with product mix upgrade and supply-side
reform to ensure sustainable development. It is expected that in 2019,
the instant noodle business will develop steadily, and the beverage
business will gradually stabilize and settle for cautious optimism.

In order to promote sales, the Group will continue product mix
upgrade, increase brand investment, and seek win-win cooperation
with channel partners. The Group will continue to focus on
consolidating the mass consumer market to ensure a stable source
of growth, and gradually move into the premium market in response
to consumption stratification and a shift towards healthier choices.
In terms of brand building, the Group will continue to enhance
the image of its brands and product categories through aerospace
cooperation, omnimedia marketing, IP cooperation, sports marketing,
etc. In response to the trend of channel fragmentation, the Group will
stick to the channel rationalization strategy, actively explore various
channels, deploy vending machines, promote big data applications
and deepen cooperation with new retail. In this process, the Group
will give attention to channel profits seeking win-win cooperation to
develop the market together with business partners.
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In order to adapt to a rapidly changing market environment and in
tandem with product mix upgrade, the Group will carry on with supply-
side reform. In order to make good use of capital expenditures, with the
initial success of the supply chain rationalization strategy, the Group will
continue to optimize the supply chain layout and make further efforts
to go asset-light and activate assets. The Group will also increase the
automation rate of production lines to improve operational efficiency.

In order to better serve the above-mentioned channel rationalization
and supply chain rationalization strategies, the Group will continue
to promote organizational transformation and upgrading. The Group
will improve the team’s responsiveness to market changes through
organizational delayering. The Group will improve operational
efficiency and cope with rising labor costs through share service center
construction. Meanwhile, the Group will seek to inject young blood into
its talent pool, diversify its talent pool and cultivate talents in order to
better serve organizations undergoing transformation and upgrading.

In addition, the Group will carry on with process optimization and
system simplification with a view to improving operational profit and
efficiency, and make use of new technologies such as Internet-enabling
(+Internet), big data applications, and artificial intelligence to meet the
needs from the consumers and serve the business partners.

Aiming to establish an enduring foothold in China’s food and
beverage industry, the Group regards food safety as the cornerstone of
development, and will capitalize on aerospace cooperation to further
promote the development of food safety technology and the creation of
a product traceability system. With fulfilling the needs of people’s lives
as its business fundamental, serving the demands of the middle class as
the long-term development goal and winning together with customers
and partners as the foundation for success, the Group will motivate
itself as a national brand, build itself into a comprehensive food and
beverage company, and continue to promote the healthy development
of the industry.
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This report aims to formulate the performance of Tingyi (Cayman
Islands) Holding Company (“Tingyi,” “the Company” or “We")
in environmental, social and governance (the “ESG”) in 2018 for
readers.For information regarding the governance section, please
refer to the Corporate Governance Report as incorporated in this
annual report.

ESG Concept

Master Kong has adhered to the mission of “promoting Chinese
food culture”, embraced the corporate vision of “Being the
Most Admired Food & Beverage Enterprising Company” and has
always committed to the principle of “sustainable operation,
contribution to society.” Master Kong has communicated closely
with stakeholders, actively fulfilled its social responsibilities,
and continuously explored and refined the strategic objectives
in environmental, social and governance (the “ESG”) and its
performance in this area, and dedicated to sharing corporate
values with stakeholders, achieving a life plus delicacy together,
enhancing social welfare.
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Small actions ending up as a great
blessing, spreading actions of love from
nearby, holding onto the national unity
“Bringing warmth to a life plus
delicasy”
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EGS Strategies and Polices

Master Kong increasingly searched for the actual needs of the
society, deeply integrated the essential appeals of stakeholder
with the characteristics of the industry. Adhering to the five core
strategies of food safety development, product liability, energy
conservation and environmental protection, win-win partnerships,
it continued to exploit the advantages of the industry, increase
investment, aiming to sustain its innovative contributions in ESG

area.
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Master Kong's Sustainable Development Vision

In 2015, The United Nations officially passed the Transforming
our World: The 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development, and
brought up 17 sustainable development goals(SDGs), in order
to eradicate poverty, hunger and solve climate change problems
from 2015 to 2030 around the world.

Master Kong profoundly understands the economic, environmental
and social challenges that all human face. It reviews the
development strategies and daily operative management with
global insights, leverages the advantages of the industry, aiming
to responding to the United Nation's SDGs and contributing to

N
\

\

HHRZIETE  UHLERA R the global sustainable development. and continues to take various
FEZREEZ RENUFERRE actions focusing on its self-imposed “five ESG core strategic areas”.
EH B’

AT ESG L B E Bl B ENTE SDGB#&

Master Kong's ESG Core

Strategic Areas Master Kong's Actions SDGS

RIFREEE
Good Health and
Well-being

EERE

AN O ;\,aé_‘vfi : ! .
Quality Education

RLEHR o BENREMEE
Food safety development e Strict food safety management
s HAEHEBHRRIEEE
o Promote the concept of food safety to

e

FRAKAEERE
Clean Water and
Sanitation

o

SEEHENLE
Responsible Production
and Comsuption

the society;
o  REHZEMSAKER
o Provide safe water products;
o RLEMAIR

o Food safety technology innovation;

EX - AIFHERRRE
Industry, Innovation and
Infrastructure

o

12

O
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Product liability e R&D of the product categories that meet a}’e‘ﬁ‘_ib':ﬁf;ha"d e hoccton
the nutritional demands;
. ARHBESBAEROESLIN \ 4 m)
o Innovate products to satisfy the
diversified needs of the consumers; 1 AT - EXERARAE 1 RERERRNIAEZ
Peace, Justice and Paternships for
° BETNESLEEERE Strong institutions the Goals

o Responsible management of o @
advertisement and trademark --!:

o  EE[EY - B EINBEIRMERST:

o Cultivate employees’ moral character

with “Conscientious, Integrity and
Expertise”;

s EBRRARRERIE:

o Carry out anti-fraud work seriously;

s HERFRHEEHESEEEE

o Conduct suppliers CSR management
actively;

EIREIRIR o FEMRBRMERERIETE BESE 13 rixam
: . . Quality Education Climate Action
Energy conservation and Continue to carry out effective energy

environmental protection conservation and emission reduction; |!!| ' ‘ 9
s  BINMBERGEVMER

o Gradually strengthen management of
disused packaging material; 14 E{gﬁ@vwaer

o  HRAMEHRRBEIERE

° Promote the concept of environmental

protection to the society;

oo 0 4t ST 8% RIFRESEL EERE
%914: 7 \-E,EJL . ® A& 1@ fBEAE . . Good Health and Quality Education
Win-win partnerships ° Harmonious employment relationship; b el

. RENREZIEBEZR _,\,\/‘, M|
o Complete health and safety

management system;
. BREAEINRMNSI Decnt Workong

Economic Growth

o Forbid hiring child labor and forced
labor;

e EENEIBRIEIEIR:

o Rich employee development and training

o

resources;
o  EERAGELER

o Active corporate culture development;
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Corporate contribution
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s  wEMAIKEER:

o Drive local economic development;

o SENE

o Emergency assistance;

° ]

o Sports and public welfare;

e HAHEMRELMARIE

o Food safety and space science
popularization to the society;

s  RA&

o College-enterprise cooperation to
cultivate talents for the society;
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No Poverty
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ZHER

Zero Hunger
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BEHE
Quality Education

|

RIFEEREEAL
Good Health and
Well-being

S

1 AFEHATAE
Sustainable Cities and
Communities

e BEHE AL

O FEEE QR

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT G:.:ALS

mEE
No Poverty

RIZTE
Climate Action

SR

Zero Hunger

BETENSEER
Decent Work and
Economic Growth

1 4 KTEY
Life Below Water

1

R {EREEAE
Good Health and
Well-being

by

EX  AIFNERRE
Industry, Innovation and
Infrastructure

BEHE
Quality Education

I!!‘ i
Sustainable Cities and

105575
Reduced Inequalltles i
Communities

':’ n éﬁ

R
Gender equality

R AEE R
Clean Water and
Sanitation

SEEHENLE
Responsible Production
and Comsuption

O

A AE 1

FE it A= 4] AT ERERARE [BERBRRMHINEE
Life On Land 1 Peace, Justice and 1 Patems?nps for AiFERERE
Strong institutions the Goals
SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT

G<3ALS
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RRER
Food safety
development

[ 1

REER EERR
Food safety Nutrients R&D
management

BREBERA
351218

wEEERRA
$B15EE90%
Rate of the
product categories
that meet the
nutritional
demands reached
90%

Investment in
food safety
management was
approximately
RMB 120 million
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Overview of Master Kong's Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) in 2018

RIBRE
Environmental

BHELR B
Win-win Corporate
partnerships contribution

protection

EigEERE
Energy conservation
management

201852017
BHER
&

EETH3%
2018V52017,
electricity
consumption per
10,000 boxes of
products
decreased by 3%
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FHERA
Continuous
investment

HFEEEE
Volunteer
activities

XERER
Water resources
management

EiEE SEERE
Low-carbon Legal
management employment

2018v52017
BRERBER
BHHBTE2%

2018v52017 FESEE
TEEERFR

17 8B/ EF
Annual
volunteer
activities
reached

178,000 hours

FEHE
RETH
57008 T
Annual
community

BLERLLH]
100%

2018 V52017, Legal

2018 VS2017,
water consumption
per 10,000 boxes of
products decreased

greenhouse gases employment
emission per ratio reached <
10,000 boxes of 100% investment
product decreased amounted to
by 2% RMB 57 million

by 2%

Organization and Operation of CSR

In 2018, Master Kong CSR Management Committee (the
“Committee”) maintained its good operation. On the basis of
clear CSR strategies and development directions, the Committee
guided implementation of work and performance evaluation,
and regularly conducted reviews and decision-making on targets,
reports and disclosures, and related major events. Also, the
Committee gradually promoted the corporate CSR management
mode of “business independence,” further continued to exploit
the advantages of the industry, promoted professionalization
and implementation in CSR management, continued its efforts
to enforce the concept of “sustainable operation, contribution to
society.”

Stakeholder Communication and Assessment of Importance
of Key Issues

The Company actively identifies the stakeholders’ expectations and
requirements on Master Kong through various communication
channels, in order to practically satisfy stakeholders’ needs while
fulfilling social responsibilities.



FlREEA
Stakeholders

BRRRREE

Stakeholders and investors

BT

Employees

REE(EEF)

Distributors (including
customers)

HER

Suppliers
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Stakeholders’ Expectation and Feedback

8B 75 5t A

Description

HEMEETEERE  BEFRENE
MIMRE A

Domestic and overseas legitimate equity
and debt investors to Master Kong

HEMERE EXEBE R REFRE
NERHNEE V30U

Personnel serving Master Kong's
businesses on a permanent basis under
formal labour contracts

BEREEMEETEmMEEMN B
X mHkEREP,

Enterprises, stores or individual
businesses legally operating various
branded products of Master Kong

[ ERAD (B S A M IE £ E WAL - EE R
AWAmBFNMRE  AHESEBES
Enterprises, stores or individual
businesses legally supplying production
material, accessories and office supplies
to Master Kong

BREERE
Communication Channels
RS -
HIEE

General meeting, annual report,

TEFHR XERE

results announcement, roadshow,
etc.

B BRg B8IFI B
TFM - tERBTHHE
Employee activities, staff congress,
training courses, employee manuals,
corporate publications, etc.

nE

CITEAT  BERASR
Product exhibition, industry survey,
customer service hotline and satisfaction
survey

BB REE
RREHES

Open bidding meeting, strategic

N NN

cooperation negotiation, exchanges
and visits, etc.
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BRREEHE

Governments and
regulators

B

Media

HERAR

Communities and the public

BR KBS

Universities and research
institutions

BREEERERLR

A AR W 2R o e

Stakeholders’ Expectation and Feedback

R B BR - £2FH - 0H
B BERSHERE

Food,
and other authorities; local governments;

taxation, environmental, safety

the SFC and other regulatory agencies

HEMER SRS ERERNRL - B
BE - BERAEREMAREN KIS
Newspaper office, television station,
Internet companies and other media
agencies legally cooperating with Master
Kong

BEAEM/NG SRR - BIELF|
Local communities, the public, non profit
organizations, etc.

HRME R SERERAARE
R EKE
Universities, colleges, research and other

Bh -

institutes partnering with Master Kong

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP

HEER -
EERES

Field visits, official correspondences,

DXER - BRATT

policy implementation, information
disclosure, etc.

O EEET Y -
BEDE

Business interviews, cultural publicity,

XEER HBER

featured activities, etc.

NEES - BEIEREESY A%
B HEEXEXFHERE
Community activities, employee
volunteer activities, public welfare
activities, project supporting social
undertaking, etc.

rERESHE BT EE M
g BMXRLEHAERAES
Recruitment presentations, training
programs, seminars, academic
exchanges and cooperative research
projects
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On the basis of communicating with stakeholders, Master Kong
has performed recognition and importance evaluation on ESG
substantive issues and hot topics in the industry, and illustrated
the evaluation results in the form of key issue importance
assessment matrix, and responded all issues in this report based

LR RIERE T AR E - on the results.

T
IS

0
&l

BERZEEE and services

@Health and safety HH -

management P E R
Emission

BoRER =3

Packaging waste
management

management

[oT=,
o1

E A ERERE =
E Intellectual property Employment

EmEE RBREERE
Product liability Food safety
V4 management

Greenhouse gases
emission

EREERER
Product nutrition
and health

7
J&%ﬁ)ﬁ@ﬁiﬁﬁ% ‘a B AR HEK
Complaints handing

BaEfd (LFI25A8REEE 1) External evaluation (importance to shareholders)

S

N REs protection
@ Anti-corruption
HEFREG SRR ER

Ho ] s
Labour standards

AREE
@ 4 Resources
Supplier environmental social lnapacemen
risk management
Social

investment O —_ BImEE|
Employees development
m/ and training

L nEgE

Low 1K

AERETML (H25M57E)  Internal evaluation (impact on the business) = High
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In 2018, Master Kong invested up to RMB 120 million in actual work on food
safety and quality control. The main targets of capital investment are:
« Operation of food safety center;
« Testing of all products throughout all processes;
« Launch of food safety and quality management
upgrade project
« Certification of factory food safety and quality

Social and Governance Report

EERRTREBERI00%
ERERARE - WRHLEIRN F 0 2018%F +
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Management system certification rate 100%:

Master Kong focuses on system protection and actively
promotes management system certification. In 2018, the
total passing rate for Master Kong's regular operations in

1SO 22000/FSSC22000 certification reached 100%. In

addition, the acquisition rate of NFS international
certification for the production of packaged

\

HEBRREEFREEE100%
2018% « HEHERMERRE KT RFIER
ZEE  BRBHRGFRMHEEERRAEER
BV HEFETREER  FREEEEI100% °

L
RERERX G EE  F
Supplier food safety level inspection coverage rate is 100%:
In 2018, Master Kong conducted multiple rounds of
inspections on raw material suppliers and food contact
packaging suppliers through supplier third-party
product quality inspections, on-site food safety

34

management system;

« Food safety and quality inspection/purchase
of upgrade equipment;

« Supplier management assessment and

product inspection.
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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

drinking water was 100% management inspection, and food safety

regulatory document inspections
Inspection coverage reaches
100%

Note: A normal operational plant is a plant that has been operating normally for

more than 6 months in 2018 and is not in downtime.

Food Safety Management

Master Kong is committed to its corporate mission of “Proclaiming
the Chinese Food & Beverage Culture” and takes food safety as
the cornerstone of corporate success and the “utmost priority”.
In 2018, the annual investment in food safety and quality control
amounted to more than RMB90 million, the acquirement rate of
food safety management system certificate was 100%, and the
supplier food safety management audit coverage rate was 100%,
achieving a management mode of full traceability from farmland
to dining-table.

In 2018, Master Kong's food safety management system
continued to perform robustly, driven by core technologies
developed by the Food Safety Center of the Central Research
Institute (the “Food Safety Center”). Its full-time food safety
management team maintained a strong presence at all businesses
and factories. Throughout the year, the Food Safety Center
invested nearly RMB30 million in technology research and
development, equipment upgrading and food safety-related
activities, continued to maintain its state-of-the-art research and
technological capabilities at the international level, performed
tests against more than 1,500 food safety monitoring indicators,
conducted more than 3.5 million tests against quality indicators,
and exercised strict control over pesticide residues, heavy metals,
food additives, allergens, microorganisms and genetically modified
food.
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During the year, Master Kong continued to strengthen its food
safety management, with a focus on improving the food raw
material control and management system, leading to further
improvement in the traceability and overall performance of
the Company's food safety management. Building on this
achievement, the Company furthered its cooperation with China’s
aerospace business. On 22 October 2018, the “Aerospace Spirit
China Tour and Master Kong Food Safety Science Popularization
Exhibition” debuted in Xi'an, and the application of aerospace
technology in the field of food safety fascinated and astounded all
attendees at the event.

Meanwhile, Master Kong actively carried out a number of food
safety-related activities, such as "the Month of Food Safety",
"3.15 Theme Activity of Food Safety Defense" and "Product
Quality Evaluation”. While raising awareness among its employees
about food safety, Master Kong conveyed the concept of food
safety to society.

Master Kong's efforts in the field of food safety management
have been recognized by society. At the China Food Development
Conference 2018 hosted by XINHUANET, and the Sixteenth
China Food Safety Annual Meeting jointly hosted by the General
Administration of Quality Supervision, Inspection and Quarantine
of the People's Republic of China and several authoritative
departments such as the China Food Industry Association, Master
Kong was awarded the China Food Enterprises Benchmarking
Golden Chopsticks Award,Top Ten Enterprises in Safety
Management at China Food Safety Annual Meeting, among other
important awards.
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Food Safety Management System Development

In 2018, Master Kong continued strengthening food safety
management system’s development and completion and
obtained the following results in achieving management system
certification.

o All Master Kong's normal operational factories met the
requirements of 1SO22000 Food Safety Management
System, and the overall ISO22000/FSSC22000 management
system certification rate reached 100%. In 2019, a further
upgrade from 1ISO22000 to FSSC22000 will be launched.

o All the normal operational factories of the Pepsi beverage
business have passed the AIB (American Institute of Baking)
uniform food safety standards,

o The 72 packaged drinking water factories of Master Kong
beverage and Pepsi beverage are the first to obtain NSF
International Certification in the industry, and 3 natural
mineral water factories obtain Green Food Certificate.

Traceability Management

In 2016, Master Kong launched a food raw material traceability
system, which makes it possible to trace raw materials back to the
shipment flow of finished products and trace finished products
back to relevant raw material information and track the flow
of finished products. In 2018, the Company further improved
its farmland to dining-table food traceability management and
focused on traceability management for agricultural products
bases and slaughterhouses that supplied its dehydrated
vegetables, pickles, mushrooms, starch and animal fats and oils,
so that consumers will feel reassured when using products.
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Food Safety Technology Innovation

At the China Food Safety Publicity Week 2018 cum 10th China
Food Safety Forum, Master Kong's “TGP detection Application
and Frying Control Technology” won the “2017-2018 Food
Safety Technology Innovation Award”. Co-developed by Master
Kong and Jiangnan University over the course of two years, the
tech is mainly used to check the quality of oil products and is of
groundbreaking significance for the prevention and control of
risks at the source of oils used in food processing.

According to the latest edition of the National Food Safety
Standard for Edible Vegetable Oil which was released during the
year, polar compounds as a percentage of edible vegetable oils
used in frying food must not exceed 27%. By Master Kong's self-
developed patented technology, Master Kong is able to keep its
percentage at around 16%. Master Kong will share its whole
process quality control system for oils used in food processing
freely across the industry in an effort to expand the system's
application and prevent and control food safety risks with better
technology.

Master Kong always regards food safety as a non-competitive
field. As a leading company in China's food industry, we, fueled

by two drivers of "food safety" and "R&D and innovation”,
adhered to the corporate mission of modernizing China's food
and beverage culture. With our forward-looking vision and
scientific spirit, we will promote the development of the industry
as a whole and make due contributions to the creation of a "life

plus delicacy" for consumers.
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N

2018%F - FRAM{B I 360 ZE M
PR EEFRAmBAGL
#90% ©

In 2018, among the new
development products of
Master Kong, the rate of
products that meet the
nutritional demands reached
90%.
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As a leading company in China's food industry, Master Kong
has responded positively to various national nutrition and health
policies, including the National Nutrition Plan (2017-2030). Based
on the guidance of external authorities, international experience
and internal technical research, Master Kong, guided by China's
current nutrition and health policy and the Dietary Guidelines for
Chinese Residents (2016), has proposed its own nutrition and
health strategy, namely “proclaim the Chinese food and beverage
culture, consistently provide a diverse range of high-quality
food and beverage, enjoy a healthy way, and lead a life plus
delicacy". By doing this, Master Kong aims to pursue nutrition
and health management along the two dimensions of extraction
the essence of food and beverage tradition and promoting new
generation food and beverage concepts. In 2018, among the new
development products of Master Kong, the rate of products that
meet the nutritional demands reached 90%.

Core nutrition concept

The extraction of traditional food essence is the core nutrition
concept of Master Kong.From the perspective of Master Kong, the
essence of infusing the essence of F&B tradition lies in not only
carrying forward traditional culture, but also promoting industry-
university cooperation under the guidance of policies. In this way,
Master Kong will create Healthy F&B Values and consistently
provide a diverse range of high-quality food and beverage for
consumers to accommodate the health needs of people in
different circumstances and with different lifestyles.

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP
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Nutrition Standard Participation

In 2018, Master Kong was deeply involved in the revision of the
Snack Guide and the Standard for Food Nutrition Enhancers,
actively responded to the “Reduce Salt, Sugar and Oil” joint
initiative launched by nine ministries and commissions including
the National Health and Family Planning Commission of the
People’s Republic of China, and vigorously promoted the
development of the industry in the field of nutrition and health.

Nutrition Categories Innovation

On the path of embodying the characteristics of Chinese food and
beverage culture, Master Kong has never stopped reforming itself.
Relying on our tea technology platform and soup technology
platform, we have innovatively developed a diverse range of
high-quality new healthy food and beverage products. The soup-
stock series brewed with pork bones, Golden Stock, pepper, etc.
focusing on "delicious taste and nutrition", the Soup Chef series
which comes with an emphasis on aginomoto-free and enhancing
flavor naturally. The affordable luxury and fresh vegetable noodles
which cater to young consumers and advocate a positive attitude
towards life represent high-quality new products that lay stress on
nutrition and health, the needs of individual customers and scenic
experiences. In September 2018, Master Kong ‘s two products
in Soup Chef series, namely “ Cordyceps Flower, Ginseng, and
Stewed Chicken Noodle” and “Medlar, Ginseng, Pork Belly
and Chicken Pot Noodle”, won “The Innovative Convenience
Food Grand Award 2018"at the 18th China Convenience Food
Conference and Convenient Food Exhibition held in Beijing.
Two new products not only carry forward the core benefit of
aginomoto-free upheld by the Soup Chef series but also inherit
the Chinese soup essence of Cantonese cuisine, No matter in the
ingredients, soup or side dish, the two products contain art of
living the which has been passed on over generations by Chinese
people. At the same time, the newly launched fresh vegetable
noodles also won widespread praise from the judges in the on-site
evaluation process.

On 11 November 2018, Master Kong launched new product
Express, which uses industry-leading flavor retention technology to
perfectly restore the color, fragrance, taste, shape, and nutrients
of high-quality ingredients.
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Promoting the Concept of Healthy Diet

Meanwhile, Master Kong actively espouses the healthy diet
concept of balance between food and exercise. We have been
actively applying for accreditation as a base of national food and
nutrition science education so that we can improve people's
nutritional knowledge through various forms of nutrition
education activities. For different groups of people, such as
college students (more interactions), primary and secondary school
students (more lecturing), sports people and the general public,
we will carry out targeted science education activities.

For more information on Master Kong's efforts to Promote New
Generation F&B Concepts, see "Support Sports Public Welfare."

Aiming to become the "the Largest Group for Chinese Instant
Food & Beverage in the World" and with integrity as its
cornerstone and quality products its foundation, Master Kong
is committed to understanding and meeting customer needs,
strengthening brand responsibility management and innovating in
its relentless effort to deliver a "life plus delicacy" for people from
all walks of life.

Customer Service

In order to fully listen to the suggestions and opinions of
consumers, Master Kong has set up a customer service center.
Master Kong maintains a strict confidentiality policy on consumer
information. A 400 service hotline, an official Weibo, WeChat
service channel, an information search platform, and efficient
communication and feedback channel have been created to
receive inquiries and feedback from consumers. The customer
service center will follow up on issues raised by consumers and,
through return visits and other means, to ensure these issues are
properly resolved. Issues of the same nature will be summarized
and discussed to form an optimized solution. Master Kong
identifies shortcomings in its service through customer satisfaction
surveys. Upon identifying any shortcoming, Master Kong will
make improvements and adjustments so as to improve consumer
satisfaction with its service continuously. During the year, Master
Kong's overall settlement rate of customer satisfaction reached
97.6%.
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Master Kong fully respects the personal privacy of customers
while providing sincere service to customers. Master Kong has
established and maintained a sound regime for protecting
customer privacy to close guard customers' personal information.

Supplier Environmental and Social Risk Management

During the year, Master Kong continued carrying out supplier
environmental and social risk management. Master Kong also
made advances in access and daily audit management for
suppliers and coverage of the Compliance Agreement Letter of
Suppliers” Environmental and Social Risk Management gradually
expanded. Meanwhile, Master Kong integrates the concept of
social responsibility into its daily business communication with
suppliers to actively inform suppliers about the requirements and
methods of environmental and social risk management. As a core
enterprise in a value chain context, Master Kong looks forward to
working with more like-minded partners to promote the general
progress of social responsibility performance in a value chain.

Breakthrough in Brand Power

On 7 December 2018, the Award Ceremony of the Second Public
Relations and Globalization Communication Summit and the 2018
Golden Flag Awards was grandly held in Beijing. After undergoing
a two-month review by more than 50 experts from preliminary
review, final review to all-star award competition, Master Kong's
21 Bowls of Master Kong Noodles" sports marketing case stood
out from among nearly 800 candidate cases, winning the "All-star
Award of 2018 Golden Flag Award" and the "Golden Award of
2018 Golden Flag Award Management".
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The emotional inclination of consumers has greatly affected on
brand promotion and communication and sales enhancement.
Therefore, shaping the emotional value of a product is crucial. In
a departure from the perspective of "talk about a product to the
exclusion of other things" Master Kong's DIY Noodles fosters in
consumers affection for the brand through storytelling from the
perspective of "food made for the people you love and respect. "

"21 Bowls of Master Kong Noodles" not only conveys the spirit
of unity and gratitude demonstrated by the Chinese women
volleyball team but also presents Master Kong's image as a
sponsor for China's sports undertakings in terms of delicious food.
This product stands as a testimony to Master Kong's excellent
brand power. It is worth mentioning that Master Kong has been
rated as the first by China Brand Power Index for its brand power
in the Chinese instant noodle industry for eight consecutive years.
As a national brand, we are committed to making the image of
China Quality Production acclaimed by people.

From product innovation to food safety to sports marketing that
is designed to win hearts and minds, Master Kong has succeeded
in making one breakthrough after another in brand power.In the
future, in the spirit of craftsmanship, Master Kong will continue
to spearhead the upgrade of the Chinese instant noodle industry
to high-quality Manufacturing in China and consistently meet
consumers' wide-ranging expectations.
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Advertising and Intellectual Property Management

When it comes to advertising and product trademarks, Master
Kong makes sure that statements are truthful and legal and
avoids false or misleading statements in strict compliance with the
requirements of laws and regulations such as the Advertising Law
of the People's Republic of China and the Trademark Law of the
People's Republic of China, so that consumers can correctly and
clearly identify important information about commodities.

Meanwhile, Master Kong deeply appreciates the importance of
intellectual property. For this reason, before launching a new
product, Master Kong will analyze the intellectual property
involved. Master Kong fully respects the intellectual property
of others. When it comes to introducing advanced technology
and obtaining the endorsement of famous brands, Master Kong
will conduct a professional legal evaluation of the intellectual
property involved in cooperation and obtain brand and technology
licensing.

Anti-corruption Management and Professional Ethics

Adhering to the principles of integrity and justice, Master Kong
opposes any form of direct or indirect bribery and other illegal
business practices and any form of commercial fraud in strict
compliance with the requirements of laws and regulations such as
the Criminal Law of the People's Republic of China and the Law
Against Unfair Competition of the People's Republic of China.
Master Kong strictly controls the flow of its funds and cash to
prevent the occurrence of money laundering. In the Company's
organizational structure there is an inspection department,
which performs rigorous checks for any possible illegal business
practice within the Company. Meanwhile, Master Kong will
sign a Commitment Letter on Anti-Corruption with external
suppliers when entering into partnerships with them and has
set up a reporting hotline for complaints against corruption and
commercial bribery, demonstrating an uncompromising stance
against bribery.

ERET R AR 43
2018 Annual Report F#§



IR HEEEAIRE | Environmental, Social and Governance Report

44

[#KE WL - st IR - FRED
BREERMERR  BRRETH
XERBREEZFEZH/NOEAZ R -
R AEGEEBRREOE
B BREEREKNRE  BHAE
BKELE MBS FABEE
ERERSERONNEHE  BF
RARKRER - AgalElF=1
RFEE INBIRE -

REE HABFELBEREBR
BB UADRSBESENERE
A2 RALBEESEMERNAK
B RAREBENERNAEER
BYRIRTEESCES R FBHFRE
%Iétﬂgﬁiﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁtlﬁﬁ i
ST 7] REVRKAA

BREEERERLR

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

"Lucid waters and lush mountains are invaluable assets." Master
Kong attaches great importance to energy conservation and
environmental protection, and strictly abides by the relevant
requirements of national laws and regulations on environmental
protection. Meanwhile, Master Kong has responded positively to
the State's call for energy conservation and cleaner production by
implementing its philosophy for "sustainable operation", exploring
the sections of the production process for opportunities for
improvement and striving to improve environmental performance
in an effort to create a clean environment where the public can
enjoy a "life plus delicacy".

During the year, in the light of the actual situation of its
operations, Master Kong centered its efforts on "reducing
electricity consumption per unit of product, reducing water
consumption per unit of product and reducing greenhouse gas
emissions per unit of product” and carried out a number of
effective energy conservation and emission reduction projects,
with tangible results achieved.
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Goal 1: To reduce electricity consumption
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In 2018, Master Kong continued to implement energy
management regimes such as the Energy Management
Specification, included energy conservation and consumption
reduction into its performance metrics, actively explored feasible
measures for energy conservation for various equipment and
processes, and pushed ahead with a number of key energy
conservation projects. As a result, its energy efficiency has
improved measurably, with electricity consumption per 10,000
boxes of products reduced by 3.3% as compared with 2017.
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Waste Steam Recovery Energy Saving
Project
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The instant noodle business fully implemented
the steamer WSR energy-saving technology to
achieve waste heat recovery and reuse, saving
94,355 tons of steam and reducing CO2 emissions
by 25,948 tons for the year;
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Hangzhou Plant Air Pressure Pipeline
Reconstruction
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Reconstruction were made to Hangzhou plan air pressure
pipe line of the instant food business, with the factory
switching from self-produced compressed air to compressed air
supplied by the development zone's pipe network. Electricity
consumption decreased by 768,000 kWh during the nine-
month period following the reconstruction compared with the
same period of the previous year.
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Goal 2: To reduce water consumption
per unit of product
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Recovery of Concentrated Water from Reverse
Osmosis System
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Zhengzhou Pepsi beverage recycled concentrated water to

increase the water production rate and reduce wastewater
discharge, reducing water consumption by approximately
30,000 tons throughout the year.

During the year, Master Kong actively carried out a number of
water conservation projects to improve water-use efficiency
from both a technical and management perspective. In 2018,
water consumption per 10,000 boxes of products fell by 2% as
compared with 2017.

Meanwhile, following an assessment by experts of the China
Beverage Industry Association, a total of 18 companies belonging
to the Master Kong's Pepsi beverage business won the honorary
title of “China’s Outstanding Beverage Enterprises in Water
Saving,” gaining wide recognition from society.
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Recycling of Steam Condensate
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Master Kong beverage business' Baotou factory collected steam

condensate from the production line UHT, the distribution
board and other places and returned collected steam
condensate to the soft water tank in the boiler room to be
used as boiler water. The recycling rate of average condensate
recovery reached approximately 60%. After the modifications,
steam consumption per box of products decreased by
approximately 10%.
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To reduce greenhouse gas emissions

per unit of product
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Low Carbon Management

As a major cause of global warming, greenhouse gases are a
universal concern. During the year, Master Kong made meaningful
progress in areas such as the cultivation of low-carbon awareness,
the implementation of the green office model, cleaner production
management, with greenhouse gas emissions per unit of the
product reduced by 6% as compared with 2017.

Emission Reduction Management

In 2018, Master Kong, in strict compliance with the requirements
of the Environmental Protection Law of the People's Republic of
China and other relevant laws and regulations, made sure that its
operations were compliant with applicable laws and regulations,
implemented internal refined management, replaced with and
upgraded to equipment with high environmental performance,
performed maintenance on facilities for treating wastewater,
waste gas and other effluents, and effectively ensured waste
disposal compliance to reduce the Company's impact on the
environment.
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Improved Capacity of Sewage Treatment

In 2018, Master Kong's beverage business invested a total of
approximately RMB31.8 million in sewage treatment; supply
chain departments adopted the anaerobic + aerobic treatment
technology to ensure complacence with the sewage discharge
standards. Most of the supply chain departments had installed
online sewage monitoring equipment. Factories in places such
as Guangzhou and Lanzhou upgraded their sewage treatment
stations; factories in places such as Suzhou and Wuhan performed
maintenance on their sewage treatment equipment and facilities.

HEEEENEREERE
A waste gas treatment unit was added to the
noodle production facility

In 2018, the instant noodle business invested RMB32 million
to deploy a system for treating waste gases generated during
noodle production. Waste gases are extracted the outlets of the
noodle steaming and the frying chimneys using the suspension-
type collection + slide damper multi-point adjustment method
and then transported to the treatment system, where they are
treated using the liquid automation and cooling technology in a
biological scrubbing tower before being discharged.
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Replacement of boiler burners
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In response to the government's “Atmospheric
Environmental Quality Improvement Plan”,
Shenzhen Pepsi beverage contributed to the
improvement of environmental management
by investing RMB530,000 to replace two boiler
heaters. This move will reduce natural gas
consumption by about 1,600 cubic meters per year,
nitrogen oxide emissions by 64.6% and carbon
emissions by 3 tons.
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Hazardous waste management
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The instant food business continued to strengthen hazardous
waste management at its two locations in Tianjin and
Hangzhou. Although its production process will not directly
generate hazardous waste due to the characteristics of its
products, it still stores and disposes of the small amount of
hazardous waste (such as waste lamps, used toner cartridges,
used batteries, etc.) indirectly generated in industrial
and household settings in strict accordance with national
regulations on the storage and disposal of hazardous waste,
makes a point of storing them in a separate closed space and
entrusts qualified entities with their disposal.
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Recycling of Disused Packaging Material

The impact of disused packaging material on the environment
has been escalating. Master Kong, perceptively aware of its
responsibility, has been actively carrying out environmental
protection education activities in society. Master Kong is willing to
work with people from the public to contribute to the protection
of the environment. On the eve of During the year's Earth Day,
Master Kong launched the second environmental protection
welfare event “Qing Love Earth” in Guangyang Island, Chongging.
At the event, Master Kong organized a team of more than 500
people comprised of student volunteers, parents and members of
Master Kong's staff to pick up garbage on the island that floated
down from the main districts of Chongqing and upstream sources,
and called on the general public to protect the environment.
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The Environmental Key Performance

In 2018, the environmental key performance indicators were
listed below. Unless otherwise specified, the environmental data®
covers all the domestic factories directly managed by the Shanghai
Master Kong Headquarters and each business?. The overseas
offices are not included in the statistics due to their small scale.
Disclosure in the future will be based on the actual situation and
in a timely manner.

Environmental Key Performance Indicators

Total greenhouse gas emission®

(Scope 1 and Scope 2)® (10,000 tonnes) 107.1
Greenhouse gas emission per 10,000 boxes®

(tonne/10,000 boxes of products) 7.34
Comprehensive energy consumption® (MWh) 5131083.8

Comprehensive energy consumption
per 10,000 boxes” of products

(MWh/10,000 boxes of products) 35.2™
Electricity 1329028.4
Electricity consumption per 1,000 boxes of products

(MWH/10,000 boxes of products) 9.1
Gasoline/diesel 10651.7
Natural gas/coal 780094.1
Purchased steam 3011309.6
Total water consumption® (m3) 43491873.2
Water consumption per 10,000 boxes of

products (tonne/10,000 boxes of products) 298.4
Total use of product packaging materials®

(tonne) 1034798.2
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Use of product packaging materials

per 10,000 boxes of products

(tonne/10,000 boxes of products) 7.09
Total COD emission"® (tonne) 94.1
Total hazardous waste (tonne) 784.0

Emission of hazardous waste per 10,000 boxes
of products (tonne/10,000 boxes of products) 0.005
Total non-hazardous waste

(tonne/10,000 boxes of products)

164082.6

Total COD emission"® (tonne) 1.12

(@)

Based on the nature of Master Kong's business, in 2018, its major
gas emissions are greenhouse gases, sulphur dioxide (SO,) and
nitrogen oxides (NOx), which are mainly from the use of fossil
fuel-converted electricity and fuels. As compared with 2017, with
significant reductions in sulfur dioxide (SO,) and nitrogen oxide
(NOx) emissions, the emissions were not disclosed as major gaseous
emissions for the year [ASLI].

The domestic factories directly managed by Master Kong include
all the domestic instant noodle, Master Kong beverage, and instant
food factories located inside the country, as well as all the domestic
Pepsi beverage factories except 7 factories in Shanghai, Wuhan,
Nanjing, Hangzhou, Guilin, Tianjing and Fuzhou. Pepsi beverage's 4
factories in Shanghai, Wuhan, Nanjing, and Hangzhou are managed
directly by PepsiCo International factories in Guilin, Tianjin and
Fuzhou was closed during the year and are therefore not included
in this statistics.

Master Kong's greenhouse gas calculation scope mainly covers
carbon dioxide, methane, and nitrous oxide. Greenhouse gas
emission data is presented in CO, equivalent and is calculated
according to the 2006 IPCC Guidelines for National Greenhouse
Gas Inventories.

Scope 1: Covering the greenhouse gas emissions directly generated
by the Company’s operations; Scope 2: “Indirect energy”
greenhouse gas emissions from the Company’s internal consumption
(electricity, either purchased or obtained).
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(5)  The number of product boxes is the total number of natural boxes
for each product of Master Kong.

(6)  Comprehensive energy consumption is calculated from direct and
indirect energy consumption, according to the General Principles
for Calculation of the Comprehensive Energy Consumption (GB/
T 2589-2008) by General Administration of Quality Supervision,
Inspection, and Quarantine of the People’s Republic of China, and
the Standardization Administration of the People’s Republic of
China.

(7)  As a result of changes in the structure of the product during the
year, the total energy consumption per 10,000 boxes of products
slightly increased (4.8%) compared to 2017.

(8)  Water consumption is the production water within the statistical
range together with employee’s consumption of water in the office.

(9)  Amount of product packaging materials is the sum of the total
amount of packaging materials used by all Master Kong products.

(10) Total COD emission is the sum of COD emission of all factories
within the statistical range.

The hard work of every member of Master Kong's staff is the
driving force behind the Company's vigorous growth. Master
Kong regards every employee who is “Conscientious, Integrity,
Expertise” as the Company's most valuable asset, conscientiously
safeguards the legitimate rights and interests of employees,
attaches importance to the cultivation of talents and is committed
to working with employees to advance the development of
corporate culture and share a "life plus delicacy”.
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RESTHZEERN Safeguard Employees' Rights, Interests and Benefits

PR A B AR i BB 2 A R AN B 45 Master Kong ensures that employees enjoy the legitimate rights,
FE) (PFRARAMELHEF interests and benefits due them in strict compliance with the
EOVREAMBREERERNER - F requirements of the Labor Law of the People's Republic of China,
ATRIHE - B2 &% MR INh the Labor Contract Law of the People's Republic of China and
XXt - REEIZXHEBEMS other relevant laws and regulations and in line with its corporate
EEmRER - BRMEAMBLE culture of “Visionary, Scientific, Effective, Collaborative” .Master
ABRBEFEORBHE  HEB— Kong provides equal employment opportunities for all workers,
TMERRIR - ik MR- F& - opposes discrimination based on such factors as nation, ethnicity,
KEMRAEFEMEARMEENER gender, age and family status, prohibits the employment of child
TR ZBIEAET  BERHES labor, forbids forced labor, and encourages workplace diversity.

B F@MEITEXNZ T -

The proportion of employees in 2018
20185 B L LLI

=N
A

7R E41.08%
Female 41.08%

’
oA ul

BHEE58.92%
Male 58.92%

EIBE AR ERIER - BAEST According to the actual situation of the Company, Master Kong
THENEIRE B UALER has formulated detailed management measures for recruitment,
WEBIE  HERHNBERRE promotion and resignation. Master Kong exercises control over
B ERAF - RIERERE K the implementation process, and signs labor contracts and
FHEBTHILHER BUB establishes labor relations with employees on the basis of fairness
B1E  RE100% MEEREFBEEER - and justice according to law to ensure that employment is 100%
B - AN ERB(PRE AR LME legal. Meanwhile, in accordance with the requirements of the
BENEINER - B EEEF A Labor Law of the People's Republic of China, Master Kong will
BHBINITHESRAARRARK clearly stipulate working hours and days off for employees in
ETHE UHESE  BEMD labor contracts and formulate reasonable and healthy attendance
EERPOENREE TR SR o management measures to protect employees' right to rest. Master
FRAEERRTRENTEEEH Kong has built a scientific payroll management system, under
B REIRETAEBRFINGE which employees are offered competitive salaries and entitled to
RE FEIZXTEHER 24 regular health checks, high temperature allowances, wedding and
2 BERESTEMBENIAR maternity gift money, and other benefits. Master Kong is active
ERABE R EREE  BIERM in organizing team-building activities, which are conducive to
BWIEARE - HAEETHEENR creating a good working atmosphere, strengthening employees'
A BHREIRZIREDE identification with the Company and making employees feel they
HIRAE - feel the warmth from the Company.
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Healthy and Safe Working Environment

Always solicitous about the health of its employees, Master
Kong has been actively creating a safe working environment for
employees through prevention, control, responsibility assignment,
etc. Master Kong has formulated various environmental, health
and safety management procedures and management measures
in strict compliance with the provisions of the Law of the People's
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Occupational
Diseases, the Production Safety Law of the People's Republic of
China and other relevant laws and regulations and according to its
own situation. Master Kong has launched a safety campaign and
increased investment in employee safety and health. Meanwhile,
Master Kong also requires all factories to perform annual EHS
annual audits, conduct EHS management activities and regularly
report on work safety.

Employee Career Development and Training

Adhering to the philosophy that caring for employees, Master
Kong combines training and education closely with employees'
career paths. In 2018, Master Kong launched a variety of training
courses and projects, with the total number of training hours
reaching more than 3.2006 million and the average number of
training hours per person reaching 104.9, a significant increase
compared with 2017. Master Kong implements a multi-level
systematic training model to train employees of different ranks
more effectively and accommodates reasonable evaluation
requests through online, line and other training evaluation models.
Meanwhile, adapting to the trend of fragmented learning, Master
Kong has launched the “KSF-Cloud” mobile network online
learning platform, allowing employees to access the Company's
rich educational and training resources anytime, anywhere.

2018 E-learning B2
2018 E-learning Project

EMEZERAERAT
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP
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Winning mentality experience training for middle and senior managers
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Corporate Culture Construction

Master Kong's "Visionary, Scientific, Effective, Collaborative"
corporate culture has led its people to forge ahead for more than
20 years. Along the way, Master Kong has carried on the corporate
vision of “being the Most Admired Food & Beverage Enterprising
Company”, undertaken the corporate mission of "Proclaiming
the Chinese Food & Beverage Culture", with the constant aim of
"provide consumers with more safe, convenient,delicious, and
worthy for money products.”. Meanwhile, Master Kong continued
with its corporate culture construction to deepen its employees'
sense of identity and belonging. In 2018, in order to cope with the
significant changes in the social and economic situation, Master
Kong introduced CIS evaluation into its management system of
employee promotion, focusing on cultivating employees who
conform to Master Kong's positive corporate values. In addition,
Master Kong initiated a survey called “Voice” to understand its
employees’ cognition and understanding of CIS corporate culture
from a bottom-up perspective, and received valid feedback from
8,711 employees to examine and improve its internal operations
from different angles.
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Community investment in 2018:

57008 JT
RMB 57 million
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2018 F BT HEMERIFK -
Hours donated by employee volunteers in 2018:

17 8B /N
178,000 hours

Master Kong deeply understands the positive role of community
investment in promoting social harmony and stability. As a
leading enterprise in the food industry, we attach importance
to community needs and actively participate in community
investment practices. In 2018, Master Kong successfully launched
a number of community investment activities in particular relation
to food safety and aerospace science popularization, sports public
welfare, disaster relief, helping the poor and needy, promotion of
national culture and college-enterprise cooperation, which won
wide social recognition.

Food Safety and Aerospace Science Popularization

Master Kong closely revolves around the state’s food safety
strategy and strives to promote the science popularization process
of food safety in the whole society, so as to enhance the overall
awareness of citizens regarding food safety knowledge. Among
the numerous food safety publicity activities that Master Kong
participated in, the "Food Safety Science Popularization Public
Welfare Competition" is the most representative one. Since
2015, Master Kong has sponsored this activity exclusively for four
consecutive years, aiming at improving the food safety awareness
of the public, helping the society to establish correct health
concepts, and vigorously promoting the deepening process of
"health for all". The "Food Safety Science Popularization Public
Welfare Competition" brought together political, academic and
business circles, covered more than 50 cities across the country,
conducted over 80 offline science popularization activities, and
collected more than 5,600 science popularization works of food
safety created by college students, affecting tens of millions of
people. Master Kong hopes to ignite the spark of food safety and
science popularization through such diversified and lively forms
of activities and contribute to the common governance of food
safety for every family and the whole society.
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As a partner in China's aerospace industry, Master Kong has
standardized its food safety management level to meet the
standards of aerospace quality, continuously promoted high-
end R&D of food safety technology and transformation of R&D
achievements, comprehensively upgraded the food safety control
level in the industry, and integrated aerospace knowledge into
food safety science popularization. In June 2018, the launch
ceremony of the Spirit of China aerospace and Master Kong
Selected in Xinhua News Agency's National Brand Project was
held in Beijing, highlighting Master Kong's ambition to define its
responsibility as a national brand by aerospace food quality. In
August, Master Kong launched, jointly with related institutions,
the public welfare project of the " Aerospace Spirit China Tour and
Food Safety Science Popularization Exhibition", and started its first
exhibition in Xi‘an in October.

The activities include more than 50 exhibitions including China
aerospace events, two bullets and one star, manned aerospace,
lunar exploration, aerospace science and technology interaction.
Academicians of both academicians and aerospace experts were
also invited to hold lectures on aerospace topics. At present,
Master Kong has held areospace science popularization exhibitions
in six cities including Xi'an, Yulin, Datong, Ankang, Taiyuan and
Chengdu. A total of more than 820,00 exhibitors entered the
venue, including more than 11,000 students from 61 schools.
Master also provided voluntary transport services for teachers
and students, enabling students( especially rural students and
inspirational children) to participate in the exhibition conveniently.
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In the next three years, this project will go through dozens of
nationwide cities, providing an opportunity for the general public,
especially the youth, to have zero distance contact with aerospace
technology and food safety, contributing to the construction
of China into a major power in the field of aerospace and the
popularization of food safety knowledge.

Proclaim National Culture

The Chinese food culture has accumulated in China for thousands
of years, and more and more foreigners have become big fans of
Chinese food. Master Kong is committed to promoting a national
culture with Chinese delicacies. In 2018, we opened our noodle
restaurant on the site of Pyeongchang Winter Olympics. During
that Winter Olympics, we provided highly featured Chinese food
to more than 4,000 Chinese sports delegates, media reporters,
volunteers and athletes from all over the world.
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In addition, Master Kong worked together with several primary
schools in Shanghai to carry out "Master Kong Rock Candy Pear
- Descendants of the Dragon Campaign”, advocating the school
students to inherit the traditional Chinese poetry culture and to
transmit the spirit of Chinese national studies, which reflected
Master Kong's consistent efforts to devote the enterprise to
promoting the Chinese food culture. Master Kong and Xinhua
News Agency also jointly organized thematic activities such as
"Red Marathon" and "Visiting" in response to "the Belt and
Road" initiative to promote Chinese food to foreigners and make
the world fall in love with a Chinese flavor.

Support Sports Public Welfare

Master Kong has been enthusiastically supporting sports,
advocating the health concept of "balance between food and
exercise", practicing sports spirit with a positive attitude and
high morale, and striving to create a youthful and energetic
social atmosphere. In 2018, Master Kong cooperated with and
supported NBA, CUBA, provincial games, marathons, bicycle
races, youth training camps, bicycle ridings, charity running
groups, dragon boat races, fluorescent runnings, cartoon parent-
child runnings, and other sports activities.

In 2018, Master Kong continued to join hands with the NBA to
carry out “Master Kong Burning Dream Public Welfare Activity”.
The “the Adream Charitable Foundation” (one of the initiators of
the “Burning Dream” charity project)”allocated RMB 200,000 to
help Zhengzhou City Experimental Primary School and Zhengzhou
City Zhongyuan District Tongbai Road Primary School to establish
two dream centers. Master Kong invited student representatives
to join its Disney BIG DAY to get in close contact with the NBA
legend David Robinson. In October 2018, Master Kong also held
a basketball charity project donation ceremony at Dandelion
Middle School in Huangzhuang, Daxing, Beijing. In 2019, we will
continue to donate sports facilities to more schools, in order to
help those schools that in need of basketball education resources
to build basketball facilities and provide skills training.Meanwhile,
Master Kong moved on with its continuous cooperation with
CUBA to provide sports meals for CUBA athletes and basketball-
loving teenagers during the 20th CUBA New Year's Game, the
120th Anniversary of Peking University Charity Competition,
CUBA National Top 24 Game and CUBA Finals, and organized
lively basketball skill classes to help the development of China's
basketball strength.
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During the year, Master Kong sponsored and supported more
than 50 marathons, including high-level domestic marathons in
Beijing, Guangzhou, Lanzhou, Wuhan, Xiamen, and Changsha,
providing instant noodles and after-game meal services to more
than one million runners. In addition to the thoughtful and
considerate competition-related services, Master Kong also took
this opportunity to pass on the concepts of healthy diet and
scientific exercise to more people.

Help the Poor and Needy

When a disaster occurs, as one of the outstanding national
enterprises, Master Kong will appear in the front line of the
disaster area, bringing warmth and hope to the locals. In July
2018, storms broke out in Guanghe County, Gansu Province,
which led to floods and mudslides, causing heavy losses of people
and property. Master Kong immediately launched the disaster
rescue plan, allocating 2,000 boxes of water and 500 boxes
of noodles to help with disaster relief. In August of the same
year, affected by Typhoon "Wambia", Shouguang in Shandong
Province experienced continuous storms, with rivers flowing
backward and farmlands and villages flooded. Master Kong
responded quickly and deployed resources near the disaster area
to deliver 4,000 boxes of mineral water to the disaster victims and
rescue teams in a timely manner.
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In terms of caring for society, Master Kong responded actively to
the government's call to make donation services and community
visiting activities. We went deep into rest homes, kindergartens,
schools, police stations, the army, and remote areas to carry
out visiting activities. In September 2018, Master joined hands
with Xinhua News Agency National Brand Project to visit the
"northernmost post office" in Beiji Village, Mohe , Heilongjiang,
sending 200 boxes of instant noodles and 12,000 bottles of
mineral water to local hard-working postal personnel. All over
the country, Master Kong also sent warmth to many industrious
workers under adverse working environment, such as traffic police
and sanitation workers, through such channels and methods like
water delivery trucks, “cool and refreshing stations", "unmanned
refrigerators”, "compassionate stations" and "warm winter
campaigns".

Benefit the "Agriculture, Rural Areas and Rural People"

In contributing to the corporate efforts to solve the issues of
the "Agriculture, Rural Areas, and Rural People", Master Kong
continued to promote the upgrading of agricultural technology,
stimulate the local economy through coaching farmers in planting,
strictly controlling the production-end quality, and testing and
monitoring. As a result , 40 million farmers were benefited. In
view of our outstanding contribution in helping the poor and
needy, during the year, Master Kong won the 12th”Poverty
Alleviation Award of the Year at People's Corporate Social
Responsibility Awards”and received "China Charity Award" and
and the honarary title "Most Compassionate Donation Enterprise"
for five consecutive years.
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Opening ceremony of Modern Apprenticeship Pilot
Program with Liaoning Vocational College
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In the future, Master Kong's compassion will continue to pass on,
making every effort to help and serve the individuals or groups
that need support. Master Kong will gathe each form of strength
of being optimistic and caring, and stride forward in the path to
public welfare.

College-Enterprise Cooperation

Master Kong has been developing in China for more than 20 years
and has always attached importance to giving back to education.
In 2018, Master Kong invested nearly RMB 20 million in the
college-enterprise cooperation. We actively implemented the
guiding spirit of the state regarding the "integrating production
and education”, and made full use of our resources and platforms
to establish and deepen the college-enterprise cooperation with
28 universities and 42 vocational schools nationwide. We have
successively carried out projects including apprenticeship program,
internship and practice base, scholarship program, enterprise visits
and exchanges, and support for innovation and entrepreneurship
competitions. Master Kong helped deliver outstanding talents for
the long-term sustainable development of the society .

FESMNERE R B A 2PN RN R AR
Students of Shangha| International Studies University
attended Master Kong's Enterprise Open Day
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In March 2018, students of the 5" scholarship prize visited
the Planning and Operation Center Master Kong Flavor
Hall prior to their overseas study.
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In terms of cooperation with international universities, Master
Kong has launched the "Master Kong Dream Come True
Scholarship” since 2016, aiming to cultivate future leaders with
an international outlook and capable of exerting their positive
influence. Together with five top domestic universities, including
Peking University, Tsinghua University, Fudan University, Shanghai
Jiao Tong University, and Zhejiang University, we have provided
full scholarships to support outstanding students to start a six-
month exchange program in Waseda University, Japan. In 2018,
Master Kong funded a total of 32 college students to complete
exchange studies in Japan.

2018F 11 AEAHIEZ RS B4 FEAAS AR
17 field trip
In November 2018, students of the 6th Dream Fulfillment
Scholarship prize went to Kochi of Japan for a field trip.

Meanwhile, Master Kong continued to cooperate with top
international universities such as Stanford University and Tsinghua
University Schwarzman College to carry out specialized project
internship programs. In 2018, through GMIX (Global Management
Immersion Experience) summer social practice program and
PTP (Practice Training Program) social training program, two
MBA students from Stanford Graduate School of Business and
two scholars from Tsinghua University Schwarzman College
participated in Master Kong's specialized internship programs
of finance and marketing, not only accumulating enterprise
experience for themselves but also bringing new ideas and
viewpoints to Master Kong.
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2EE+®ME  Top Ten Enterprises in Safety Management at

China Food Safety Annual Meeting 2018

Poverty Alleviation Award of the Year at the Thirteenth
People’ s Corporate Social Responsibility Awards

China Food Enterprises Benchmarking Golden
Chopsticks Award 2018

Outstanding Chinese Enterprise in CSR 2018

Honorary Title of the “Most Charitable Enterprise at the
China Charity Award

Poverty Alleviation Award in 2018

2018 GOLDEN FLAG AWARD

2018 GOLDEN FLAG AWARD BRAND

MANAGEMENT GOLD AWARD

C-BPI First Brand Power in Chinese Instant Noodle
Industry

Food Safety Innovation and Technology Award in 2017-
2018

The Innovative Convenience Food Grand Award 2018
China’ s Outstanding Beverage Enterprises in

Energy Saving

China’ s Outstanding Beverage Enterprises in

Water Saving

20 Best Innovative Enterprise in Green Food
Contribution Spirited Enterprise

Guangzhou Municipal Assured Consumption
Co-construction Unit in 2018

The honorary title of Cleaner Production Enterprise
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We have, throughout the year ended 31 December 2018, complied
with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”), except for the deviations from code provisions A.4.1 and A.4.2.
The reasons for these deviations are explained below.

Code provision A.4.1 provides that non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Our Company
deviates from this provision because the independent non-executive
Directors of our Company do not currently have specific terms of
appointment. However, the articles of association of our Company
provide that all the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and at each annual general meeting, one-
third of the Directors for the time being or, if the number is not a
multiple of three, then, the number nearest to but not less than one-
third, shall retire from office by rotation and may offer themselves for
re-election. As such, the Board considers that sufficient measures have
been put in place to ensure our Company’s corporate governance
practice in this aspect provides sufficient protection for the interests of
shareholders to a standard commensurate with that of the CG code.

According to code provision A.4.2, each director (including those with
a specific appointment period) shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years. According to the Company’s articles
of association, the chairman of the Board is not subject to retirement
by rotation. He is not included in the number of directors who are
required to retire each year. The Board believes that the continuity of
the leadership of the chairman of the Board is critical to the stability
of the Group’s development and the planning, formulation and
implementation of long-term strategies and business plans. Accordingly,
the Board considers that although the provisions of the above rules
deviate from Code Provision A.4.2, it is in the best interests of the
Company.

We will periodically review and improve our corporate governance
practices with reference to the latest corporate governance
developments.
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The overall management of the Company’s business is vested with the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for the leadership and control
of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the business
of the Group by directing and supervising the Group's affairs. All the
Directors should make decisions objectively in the best interests of the
Company. The main duties of the Board are as follows:

o Responsible for the shareholders of the Company;

° Formulate long-term and short-term strategic direction of the
Company, including development strategy, major investment,
acquisition and dispose of significant assets;

° Approve the Company’s annual budget and business plan;
o Supervise the management of the Company;
° Approve financial reports, annual reports and interim reports.

The functions of the Board are carried out either directly or through
the Board committees. To ensure the Board is in a position to
exercise its powers in an informed manner, management provides
monthly management accounts and updates to the Directors for
the management report, provide detailed data of the company’s
performance, financial position and prospects, supported by the most
up-to-date financial data, combined with easy and comprehensive
assessment, who also have full and timely access to all relevant
information and may take independent professional advice if necessary.

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills
and experience desirable for effective leadership of the Company and
independence in decision making.

The Board currently comprises 9 Directors in total, with 6 Executive
Directors and 3 Independent Non-executive Directors whose
biographical details are set out in “Directors’ profile” section on pages
82 to 85 of this report.
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The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance. Selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties with its written terms of reference as set out below:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(©)  to review and monitor the Company'’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;
and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year under review, the Board has reviewed the Company’s
corporate governance practices and the compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

We will periodically review and improve our corporate governance
practices with reference to the latest corporate governance
developments.

The Board has scheduled quarterly meetings per year and meets more
frequently as and when required. Agenda of the Board meeting are
collated by the board secretary and approved by the Chairman. Directors
may delegate some issues into the agenda of the Board meeting.
Board meeting notices issued in one month prior to the meeting to
each Director, and the accompanying agenda. During the financial
year ended 31 December 2018, seven Board meetings were held. The
attendance of individual director to the Board meetings in year 2018 is
summarised below:
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b BOESREERK
Number of Board
Directors Meetings Attended/Held
Executive Directors
Mr. Wei Ing-Chou 7/7
Mr. Junichiro Ida 7/7
Mr. Teruo Nagano 717
Mr. Wei Hong-Ming 7/7
Mr. Koji Shinohara 717
Mr. Lin Chin-Tang 717
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun 717
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock 7/7
Mr. Hiromu Fukada 717

The Company Secretary keeps the Board Minutes of the Company for
inspection by the Directors.

Apart from its statutory responsibilities, the Board of Directors discusses
and approves major issues such as the Group’s strategic plan, annual
budget, key operational initiatives, major investments and funding
decisions. It also reviews the Group’s financial performance, assess and
identifies principal risks of the Group's business and ensures appropriate
implementation of measures to manage these risks.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group. With the assistance of the Finance
and Accounting Department which is under the supervision of the
Chief Financial Officer of the Company, the Directors ensure that the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group is in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Directors also ensure that the publication of the financial statements of
the Group is in a timely manner.

The Company’s auditor’s reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements has been set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 108 to 116.
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Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the Company
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company.

Each newly appointed director receives induction on the first occasion of
his appointment, so as to ensure that he has appropriate understanding
of the business and operations of the Company and that he is fully
aware of his responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant regulatory requirements. Such induction is normally
supplemented with visits to the Group’s key business sites and/or
meetings with the senior management of the Company.

The Company provides, as appropriate, the latest developments in the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements and reading
material on relevant topics will be issued to directors where appropriate.
All directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the
Company's expenses. All directors are entitled to seek independent
professional advice on responsibilities, expenses paid by the company.
To ensure that the directors have deepened their understanding of
the Group, senior management of the Company has conducted a
continuing professional development plan for the directors during the
year.

Summary for 2018 Directors’ Continuing Professional Development
shown as below:

(@) visit the management team in different locals, and learn about
China's various regional channels operating conditions;

(b)  visit factories in different locations to understand the production
and operation status of each factory.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company organized
briefings conducted by the Company Secretary for all its directors, on
corporate governance and update on the Listing Rules amendments and
provided reading materials on regulatory update to all the directors for
their reference and studying.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
potential legal actions against its Directors and officers.
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The Company has established the Audit Committee in September 1999
and currently has three Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Lee
Tiong-Hock, Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun and Mr. Hiromu Fukada. Mr. Lee Tiong-
Hock acts as Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is responsible for assisting the Board of Directors
of the Company to ensure the objectivity and credibility of the financial
statements. The principal duties of the Audit Committee include the
review and supervision of the Group’s financial reporting system, the
preparation of financial statements, annual and interim reports and
integrity of accounts, risk management and internal control systems. As
well as maintaining good corporate governance standards and practices.
It also acts as an important link between the Board and the Company'’s
auditor in matters within the scope of the group audit. The Audit
Committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform its duties
and will meet regularly with management, internal auditors and external
auditors, as well as review their reports. Four meetings were held during
the financial year ended 31 December 2018. Details of the attendance
of the audit committee meetings are as follows:

HEBITEERRE
Members Number of meetings Attended/Hold
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock 4/4
Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun 4/4
Mr. Hiromu Fukada 4/4

The latest meeting of the Committee was held to review the results of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee was established on
11 August 2005. This Committee now comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors, Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun, Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock and
Mr. Hiromu Fukada. Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun acts as the Chairman of the
Committee. Two meetings was held during the financial year ended 31
December 2018.

HEBITERRY
Members Number of meetings Attended/Hold
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock 2/2
Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun 2/2
Mr. Hiromu Fukada 2/2
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The Committee was set up to review the structure, size and diversity
of the Board, identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members, assess the independence of the independent non-executive
directors, advise the Board on the remuneration of individual executive
directors and senior management, and consider and approve the
remuneration packages of the Directors and senior management of
the Group, including the terms of salary and bonus schemes and other
long-term incentive schemes. The Committee also reviews the structure,
size and composition of the Board from time to time, assess the
performance of the Executive Directors and approve the terms of the
Executive Directors’ and recommends to the Board on appointments of
Directors and the succession planning for Directors, and to ensure that
the appointment and re-appointment of Directors are in accordance
with fair and transparent principles.

The company’s remuneration policies are as follows:

(@ Remuneration policies and practices, including directors, should
be fair and impartial and transparent and comply with regulatory
requirements;

(b) a director must not be involved in the making of his personal
remuneration.

Details of the Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 10 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The emoluments paid to the eleven senior management individuals
during the year ended 31 December 2018 were as follows:

BEAE

Emoluments band Number of individuals

2,116,751 to RMB2,540,100

(HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000) 1
RMB2,540,101 to RMB2,963,450

(HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000) 1
RMB3,386,801 to RMB3,810,150

(HK$4,00,001 to HK$4,500,000) 2
RMB3,810,151 to RMB4,233,500

(HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000) 1
RMB4,233,501 to RMB4,656,850

(HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000) 2
RMB4,656,851 to RMB5,080,200

(HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000) 1
RMB7,196,951 to RMB7,620,300

(HK$8,500,001 to HK$9,000,000) 1
RMB8,467,001 to RMB8,890,350

(HK$10,000,001 to HK$10,500,000 1
RMB20,320,801 to RMB20,744,150

(HK$24,000,001to HK$24,500,000 1
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The principal spirit of the internal control and risk management
procedures established by the Group is in compliance with five elements
in the COSO structure, i.e. control environment, risk assessment, control
activities, information and communication, and monitoring. The goal
of risk management is to keep the overall risk of the Group within
acceptable levels and to lay a good foundation for the Group’s long-
term development. Meanwhile, it can achieve the goal of defining
the management structure and authorization so as to enhance
the operational performance and efficiency as well as asset safety
protection, which ensures the reliability of financial reports while
complies with the requirements of national regulations.

Under the supervision of the Board, the Group has established an
organization structure, responsibility and authority in the construction
of three lines of defense for risk management. The Audit Committee
will assist the Board to review the design and operation effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control system of the Group. As of
31 December 2018, the Group has been carrying out self-assessment
of internal control including finance, information and operation. At
the same time, according to operational needs, the Group sorted out
core restriction of authority again, announced and published it within
the Group on 28 November 2018. Besides, the Group has also been
prompting the implementating regulations and monitoring other work.
According to the internal audit of the internal control inspection and
audit department, we have not identified any material deficiency in risk
management and internal control. Therefore, the Board and the Audit
Committee believe that the Group’s risk management and internal
control system are effective.

The risk management system established by the Group sets “pursuing
sustainable development and assuming social responsibility” as
management objective. The management process includes risk
identification, risk assessment and evaluation, risk control and overall
monitoring. Firstly, the implementation of risk management objectives is
set through systematic and scientific methods. Then, through interviews
with management and risk seminars, risk identification and risk
management framework are completed. Thirdly, fully participate in the
discussion through senior management to complete the risk assessment,
and then formulate risk response strategies. Finally, continue to
implement risk control activities and supervision.

We will ensure the effective implementation of risk management
measure through periodic tracking and review after formulation of risk
response strategy. Through implementation of risk response measure to
our regulation and system, structural planning and operating process,
we further establish the enterprise risk management strategy to support
the Company in achieving the enterprise mid-to- long term vision and
strategic objective.
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According to the full discussion of the management of the Group and
taking into account the model of external standard enterprises, the
Group proposes countermeasures against the top five risks as detailed
below:

o Risk of operation is interrupted due to failure of
IT safety, operation and back-up system, such as
prevention and handling of system disorder, system
crash, safety protection or computer virus.

o Information management and control rights, network
threats, data center physical security risks, such as
malicious rights, network intrusion, data center power,
access control security or unauthorized access to the
information system as a whole.

o Risk of out-of-control information systems caused
by external threats such as theft of equipment/data,
computer fraud, unauthorized access, and vandalism.

o Failure to effectively integrate business information
among IT systems.

o Employee awareness of information protection is
weak, there is the risk of information leakage.

° Clearly define the division of responsibilities for trade
secret protection, improve the operation procedures
and raise the awareness of employees on the risk
protection of business secrets. Effectively reduce
the risks of the Group’s core technology, strategic
planning, operation and management, human
resources, financial reports, and company-related
information, thereby avoiding company losses and
safeguarding shareholders’ rights and interests.
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Improve the information security management system
based on PDCA:

[Plan] Determines the control objectives and control
measures based on risk assessments, laws and
regulations to measure organizational needs.

[Do] Implement the selected security controls.

[Check] To conduct compliance check on safety
measures based on the strategy, procedures, laws and
regulations.

[Action] Take corrective and preventive measures and
follow the improvement based on the internal control
and management review results.

Cross-functional collaboration promotes the feasibility
assessment of information systems, reviews and
coordinates cross-enterprise needs on a regular basis,
so as to avoid risks such as repeated establishment
or lack of synergies and inability of system data
integration.

Promote staff training to raise awareness of
information security management. The Information
Department and the Internal Control Department
work together to carry out information security
training through the online system and offline
teaching activities.

There are many kinds of raw materials and items, and
the management level of suppliers is uneven, which
threatens the risk of contamination of raw materials.

The supply chain process from raw material
procurement to product terminal sales is complicated,
and some links may be risky due to poor monitoring.
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At present, the dissemination of media information is
not effectively managed, consumer awareness of rights
violations, and if the food information acquisition,
transmission or communication is not timely, or the
clarification of the rumors is not properly handled, it
may cause consumers to panic or misunderstand, and
eventually affect brand reputation.

Learn from advanced countries or standard enterprise
management experience, establish a food quality
screening and access system for raw materials, and
prevent plugging from the design side to effectively
control risks.

Cooperate with relevant national requirements,
implement the main responsibility and quality system
of the enterprise, promote the “three-level” self-
examination system of food safety quality, and pay
attention to process traceability management and
inspection;

Do a good job of science popularization on the food
safety topic of concern to consumers, communicate
regularly with scholars and experts and government
regulatory authorities, use external professional
resources to transmit correct information, and improve
the food safety defense mechanism from crisis event
technical department to respond to SOP.

Traditional channel access to modernization upgrades,
traditional retail store service models will be upgraded
from low frequency/high volume/multi-suppliers to
high frequency/low/less suppliers. The labor/expense
costs required by brand owners continue to rise, and
it is still necessary to effectively cover out-of-control/
uncontrolled retail stores.

With the rise of urbanization, there is a huge business
opportunity for entertainment consumption, and it is
yet to be improved.
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o Rapid development of channels, and the cost control
measures are not adjusted accordingly, which may
lead to a decrease in profitability.

° Business decision-making should be driven by big
data and digitalized/smart establishment. However,
the current mobile access system and dealer invoicing
system cannot serve retail outlets better due to the
single function/data difference.

®  Channel intensive/deep tillage division is more clear.
Make good use of the Master Kong system to upgrade
the services of millions of high-quality stores, and
make use of eB2B to cover more terminals indirectly.

®  Focus on the development of chain store or special
access to enter the EC channel. Strengthen OP
operation and develop indoor beverage to increase
utilization rate: turnover rate from hotel/restaurant/
cinema/milk station continued to improve.

*  Intensively digitize the channel and implement Smart
GTM to achieve accurate matching of “people, goods,
shop and timing”.

* Go To Market Innovation Center is utilized, to
understand consumer needs through scientific data
analysis. Strengthen cooperation with channel partners
and pursue mutual benefits and win-win results.

To ensure sustainable operation of the Group and to show gratitude
to the social responsibility of stakeholders, the Group enhances risk
management and internal plan control. Through support from external
professional independent consultant, adhering to the operating idea and
CIS spirit of the Group, the three stages objective of optimization of risk
management and internal control system is specified and formulated.
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The first stage of the work focuses on the overall construction of the
internal control self-assessment system and the improvement of the
operational structure of the internal control department in each district
to define more clearly the responsibilities of the three lines of defense
for risk management. The Group continue to optimize the Group's
operating efficiency, simultaneously reduce the Group's operational risk
and enhance its awareness of risk management.

The focus of second stage of work is mainly based on the "Internal
Control Framework" issued by the COSO Committee, the guidance
of the Ministry of Finance, the Securities and Futures Commission, the
Audit Commission, the China Banking Regulatory Commission, and the
China Insurance Regulatory Commission on the "Basic Standards for
Internal Control of Enterprises”. The “Tingyi Holding's Internal Control
Manual” is a programmatic document for internal control operations
such as the group headquarters, each business unit, and sales and
marketing companies/factories.

The focus of the third phase is mainly on promoting the internal control
self-evaluation mechanism of the whole group, to design and establish a
normal and stable internal control assessment system combining reward
and punishment. All these are established based on time series analysis,
trend analysis, structure analysis, decision tree analysis, regression
analysis, compliance analysis and so on. Through the automated analysis
and continuous monitoring of risk data, we can achieve the goal of
positioning and management from the source of risk, hence reducing
the possibility of risk occurrence from the root.

The internal audit department is independent of the management
and reports to the Audit Committee. It is responsible for conducting
risk- oriented internal audits of the Group's significant operational
risks via conducting independent internal audits or investigations on
the effectiveness of risk management, related monitoring systems and
whistleblowing matters. The Company strives to promote a probable
operation environment and corporate culture, and formulates relevant
policy and measure of whistleblowing.

The Company plans to deepen the self-assessment mechanism for
internal control of the Group in 2019 and assist sales and marketing
companies and factories to improve the self-checking operation
program. The goal is to establish a sound risk management system.
Through the steady implementation of the above steps, we can
effectively ensure the Company's corporate reputation and brand image
maintenance, value creation and risk management mechanism are in
line with the expectations of stakeholders.
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In respect of the procedure of dealing with and disseminating insider
information as well as the internal control measure:

o The Group strictly complies with the disclosure requirements
of the Listing Rules and the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information published by the Securities and Futures Commission in
June 2012 for dealing with and disseminating insider information;

. The Group discloses broad and non-exclusive information to
the public through financial report, announcement and official
website;

° The Group has established the internal confidential rules, which
directing against the senior management and general staff who
can access insider information due to their rankings or duties,
providing education and training of confidential regulations,
requiring the aforesaid staff to sign the confidential commitment.
In respect of result announcement or material transaction, strictly
controlling and limiting the scope of staff who can accessing
information, the material sensitive information is concealed by
confidential code (including electronic, written and verbal), and
giving a written notice about the lock-up period and other matters
required for special attention to avoid insider information.

Mazars CPA Limited is the Independent Auditor of the Company.
For the year ended 31 December 2018, total fees paid/payable in
connection with the provision of audit and non-audit services to Mazars
CPA Limited amounted to RMB9,297,000 and RMB Nil respectively.

Mr. Ip Pui Sum of Sum, Arthur & Co., Certified Public Accountants,
an external service provider, has been engaged by the Company as its
company secretary. Mr. Ip’s primary contact person at the Company is
Mr. Liu Kuo Wei, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, Mr. Ip has taken no less
than 30 hours of relevant professional trainings to update his skills and
knowledge.
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The Company has only one class of shares. All shares have the same
voting rights and are entitled to the dividend declared. Details of
shareholders’ rights have been set out in the Company’s article of
association.

Any two or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than 25% in total of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall all time have the right, by written requisition to the
Board to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition
pursuant to Article 57 of the Company’s articles of association. Such
requisition must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
office of the Company. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the shareholder(s) making the
requisition may do so in accordance with the provision of Article 57 of
the Company’s articles of association.

The written requisition requiring an extraordinary general meeting called
can be sent to the principal place of business of the Company as set
out in the “Corporate Information” section of this annual report for the
attention of the Company Secretary.

The Company proposes to amend its articles of association at the
Company’s annual general meeting to be held on 3 June 2019 and
make the following changes in respect of the convening of the
extraordinary general meeting: any one or more shareholders holding at
the date of deposit of the requisition not less than 10% in total of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall all time have the right, by written
requisition to the Board to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition pursuant to Article 57 of the Company’s articles
of association. Such requisition must be signed by the requisitionists
and deposited at the office of the Company. If within 21 days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
shareholder(s) making the requisition may do so in accordance with the
provision of Article 57 of the Company's articles of association.
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The Company has issued guideline for the process of convening
the extraordinary general meeting to the board of directors and
management of the Company in accordance with the above proposed
amendment, if the board of directors of the Company receives any one
or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than 10% in total of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall all time have the right, by written requisition to the Board to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. The
board of directors shall convene the meeting within 21 days of the
date of deposit of the requisition. The guideline shall apply to the
convening of the extraordinary general meeting from the date of issue
of the guideline to the date immediately prior to the approval at the
shareholders' meeting to amend the company's articles of association.

The Board is committed to providing clear and full information
of the Group to shareholders through the publication of notices,
announcements, circulars, quarterly, interim and annual reports.
Moreover, additional information is also available to shareholders
through the Investor Relations section on the Company’s website. The
Board also welcomes the views of shareholders on matters affecting
the Group and encourages them to attend shareholder’s meetings
to communicate any concerns they might have with the Board or
management directly.

Shareholders could also send email directly through the Investors section
in the Company'’s website www.masterkong.com.cn for any enquiries.

There was no change to the Company’s constitutional documents for
the year ended 31 December 2018.
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The Company seeks to maintain a balance between meeting
shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital management with
a sustainable dividend policy. The Company's dividend policy aims
to allow shareholders to participate in the Company's profit and for
the Company to retain adequate reserves for future development.
In proposing any dividend payout, the Company would consider
various factors including the Group's actual and expected financial
performance, the Group's liquidity levels and future development plans,
general economic and financial conditions, business cycle of the Group,
internal or external factors that may have an impact on the business or
financial performance of the Group, and other factors that the Board
considers relevant.

The Group disseminates the latest information to investors and the
public in strict compliance with the Securities and Futures Ordinance and
the Listing Rules in an open, fair and transparent manner. To facilitate
communication between senior management and the public, the Group
regularly hosts shareholder meetings, investor and analyst briefings and
company visits. In addition, the Group organises road show and attends
investor conferences to meet with global Investors and shareholders
in an effort to gather suggestions and comments. In 2018, the Group
conducted more than 230 meetings with approximately 1,300 analysts
and fund managers. Investors can also obtain useful information and
updates on the Group’s business development from our websites. The
Group is committed to enhance corporate transparency and the quality
of disclosures.

The Company is a constituent stock of Morgan Stanley Capital
International (MSCI) China Index and Hang Seng China (Hong Kong-
listed) 100 Index. In July, Institutional Investor magazine released the
results of the 2018 All Asia Executive Team rankings. In the consumer
sector, Tingyi Holding was awarded the third place for the Best Analyst
Days, Mr. Liu Kuo-Wei was awarded the third place for the Best CFO
(voted by buyside investors). Being recognized by the international
investors, it provides a lot of encouragement to the investor relations
team of the Company. The Group is currently covered by 25
investment banks and securities firms, which shows our investment and
development potential.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. All Directors have confirmed, following specific
enquiry by the Company, that they fully complied with the required
standards as set out in the Model Code throughout the review period.
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Executive Directors

WEI Hong-Ming, aged 41, was appointed as Chairman of the Group
on 1 January 2019, elder brother of Mr. Wei Hong-Chen. Mr. Wei
holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Mathematics from King's College,
the University of London, a Master of Science degree in Mathematics
from Brunel University in the UK, and a Master of Science degree
in Management from the Graduate School of Business at Stanford
University in the USA. He had worked as an asset allocation analyst at
Makena Capital, a US-based co-founder of Paul Allen. Mr. Wei joined
the Group as a project manager of the CEQ’s office in 2006, and was
appointed as an Executive Director of the Group in 2015. Mr. Wei had
led many projects such as the development blueprint of the MIS Group
management system promoted by a number of international consulting
companies, and made long-term effective planning for the digital
transformation and supply chain layout of the future group system.

Junichiro IDA, aged 57, was appointed as Vice-Chairman of the
Group on 15 November 2013 and appointed as an Executive Director
of the Group in May 2002, is the President of Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd.
After graduating from Rikkyo University in 1985, he joined The Fuji
Bank, Limited and worked there for six years. In 1992, he joined Sanyo
Foods Co., Ltd. He became the President of Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd in
June 1998. Mr. Ida is currently the Director of Sanyo Foods Corp. of
America as well as the Director of Caraway Pte Ltd (J/V of package
foods business between Olam International Limited and Sanyo Foods
Co., Ltd in Africa). He is also the Representative Director of Sanyo Foods
Scholarship Foundation, the Representative Director of Sanyo Foods
Culture and Sports Foundation, the Director of Japan Convenience
Foods Industry Association and the Chairman of the Board of Save the
Children Japan, Vice Chairman of The Africa Society of Japan.
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LIN Chin-Tang, aged 69, was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Group on 4 August 2017, and was the director of KSF Beverage
Holding Co., Ltd. from April 2004 to January 2019. He joined the group
in October 1995 as the Vice President of the Hangzhou Comely Foods
International. Prior to his current appointment, he was the General
Manager of Hangzhou Tingyi International Food Co., Ltd., General
Manager of Hangzhou Tingjin International Food Co., Ltd., President
of the beverage business, the Group’s Chief Financial Officer and Vice
President of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, he was the Manager
of the Accounting Department of Nestle Taiwan Group, Director of
Management Department and Chief Accountant for General Food,
Taiwan and Guangzhou. Mr. Lin graduated from Soochow University
in Taiwan in 1972, majoring in accounting, and also received EMBA
degree from National Taiwan University and Shanghai Fu-Dan University
in 2018, respectively.

Teruo NAGANO, aged 70, was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Group on 19 September 2013. Mr. Nagano has been employed by
Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd. (“Sanyo Foods”) since January 2000 and joined
the Company in March 2000 as the Senior Advisor to the office of the
Chief Financial Officer. In July 2007 he returned to Sanyo Foods as the
Deputy General Manager of the Oversea Division and then joined the
Company again in November 2010 as the Senior Advisor to the office
of the Chief Financial Officer. He is currently Consultant of Sanyo Foods.
After graduating from Hitotsubashi University of Economics in 1972, he
worked in The Fuji Bank, Limited for over 29 years. He has substantial
working experience in the financial industry and has comprehensive
knowledge of the international financial markets.

Koji SHINOHARA, aged 51, appointed as an Executive Director of the
Group on 28 May 2015. Mr. Shinohara joined Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd.
in August 2014 as the executive director and Head of Marketing. After
graduating from Keio University of Economics in 1990, he worked in
Coca-Cola (Japan) for brand marketing, sales and business management.
In 2007, he was the Vice President of brand marketing of Coca-Cola
(Japan). In 2008, he was the Global Senior Director of ready-to-drink
(RTD) coffee and RTD tea section of Coca-Cola Atlanta headquarter. In
2010, Mr. Shinohara was the Senior Vice President of brand marketing
of Coca-Cola (Japan). He has more than 20 years working experience in
the brand marketing industry.
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WEI Hong-Chen, aged 36, was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Group on 1 January 2019, younger brother of Mr. Wei Hong-Ming.
Mr. Wei received his Bachelor degree from Imperial College London,
Master’s degree from Waseda University, and MBA from Harvard
Business School. He had worked at Blackstone Group’s New York office
and the headquarter of PepsiCo. He was appointed as a Director of KSF
Beverage Holding Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Tingyi-Asahi Beverages
Holding Co., Ltd.) a subsidiary of the Company, since February 2015.
Mr. Wei has accumulated many years of experience working in the
Group, and during which he has contributed to the forming of strategic
partnerships with international corporations such as Starbucks and
Disney.

Independent Non-executive Directors

HSU Shin-Chun, aged 63, was appointed as an Independent
Nonexecutive Director of the Group in October 1999. He received a
bachelor degree in Business Administration and EMBA degree from
National Taiwan University in 1979 and 2006 respectively. He has more
than 17 years working experience in the financial industry and has
comprehensive knowledge in securities investments, corporate finance
and financial engineering. He is also a Certified Financial Analyst in
Taiwan.

LEE Tiong-Hock, aged 79,has been appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Group since September 2004. Mr. Lee has
over 28 years of experience in commercial and investment banking.
From 1977 to 1987, he served as the senior manager of marketing
department of an international bank in Hong Kong and, concurrently,
as general manager of its two deposit-taking subsidiaries. During 1989
to 1997, he was engaged in corporate finance advisory business, and
since then in private financial consultancy business in Hong Kong. He
is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and the Hong Kong
Securities and Investment Institute and a fellow member of Hong Kong
Institute of Director.
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Hiromu FUKADA, aged 89, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Group since 3 January 2012. After
graduation from University of Tokyo, he went to University of Oxford,
and specialized in politics and economics. He held important positions
in Japanese Ministry of Foreign Affairs from 1951. He had worked as
counselor of America Bureau, ambassador in OECD, Singapore and
Australia, and director of Economic Affairs Mr. Fukada had been the
Auditor of Ueno Fine Chemicals Industry, Ltd. from 2006 to 2016, and
he is currently the Advisor of the same company.

IP Pui-Sum, aged 59, graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic with
a Higher Diploma in Accountancy in 1982. He is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (United Kingdom) and
an associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
the Society of Chinese Accountants & Auditors, the Chartered Institute
of Management Accountants, the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators and the ordinary member of Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries. He also obtained a Master Degree in Business
Administration in 1996. Mr. Ip has over 20 years of experience in public
accounting and company secretarial practices. He is also a certified
public accountant (practising) in Hong Kong. He joined the Group in
September 1995.

James Chun-Hsien WEI, aged 61, was appointed as Chief Executive
Officer of the Group on 1 January 2015. Prior to that Mr. Wei was
appointed as CEO of Food Business of the Group on 1 January 2013.
Prior to joining the Group, he was a senior advisor of CVC Capital Asia
Pacific. From 2009 to 2011, he was the Executive Board Member and
the President of the Asian region of Beiersdorf Aktiengesellschaft Group.
From 2003 to 2009, he served as the Senior Vice President of Asia
Pacific region of Avon Products Inc., where he was responsible for the
operations in 10 markets, including Japan, Taiwan, Australia, Philippines
and India. Before that, Mr. Wei spent 19 years at Procter & Gamble
where he rose to become the Vice President and General Manager of
Great China, overseeing the company'’s health and beauty care business
in that region. Mr. Wei built P&G Pantene PRO-V and SK || business
model with global turnover in multibillion-dollar, based on Taiwan's
success models. Mr. Wei holds a B.S.E.E from National Taiwan University
and an M.B.A from the University of Chicago Booth School of Business
in USA.
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KuoWei LIU, aged 48, is the Chief Financial Officer of the Group.
He joined the Group in 2006, has been the Manager, Assistant Vice
President and Vice President of Finance and Accounting Department.
Prior to joining the Group, he was the Assistant Manager of Finance
Department, General Manager's Office of Taiwan Mobile Co., Ltd. Mr.
Liu holds a Bachelor of Science in Mechanical Engineering of Taiwan
National Cheng Kung University, Master of Computer Science of
Imperial College, University of London and an M.B.A. from Wharton
School at the University of Pennsylvania. During his study in Wharton
School, he was awarded the Fulbright Scholarship, Mr. Felix Chang's
Memorial Scholarship, Dr. CF Koo's Scholarship, Wharton MBA
Graduate Grant and First Year Honor. At the end of 2014, he was
invited to be State Alumni by Bureau of Educational and Cultural Affairs,
Department of State of USA.

Walt WU, aged 58, Chief Human Resources Officer. He graduated from
the Institute of Human Resource Management, National San Yat Sen
University (Taiwan). Mr. Wu joined the Group in November 2005 as the
Senior Assistant Vice President and Senior Vice President of Beverages
Business. He was the Chief of Staff of CEO office in September 2014
and in November 2014 was appointed as the Chief of Human Resources.
Prior to joining the Group, he worked in Twinhead International Corp.
as an Assistant Manager of Human Resources, Tsrc Corporation and
The Home World Group as an Vice President of Human Resources.
Mr. Wu has 28 years of experience in human resources management,
with expertise in strategic human resource management, human
development. He endeavors to build the sustainable development talent
team, to promote organizational change and make full advantage of
human resources benefits, realizing the organizational transformation.

Richard CHEN, aged 56, Chief R&D Officer,
in February 2013. He graduated from the Chemical Engineering

joined the Group

Department, National Taiwan University. Prior to joining the Group, he
had 25 years of global R&D experience in Procter & Gamble. Mr. Chen
is trilingual and worked in Taiwan, US, Japan and China for leading
Consumer Product Innovation and R&D Capability Building.
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Frank WANG, aged 48, is the Executive Vice President of CEO Office
and the Board Secretary of the company. He joined the group in 2008,
has been the Head of Strategic Management dept. of Instant Noodle
BU, Head of Strategic Management dept. of Master Kong Beverage
BU and Pepsi Beverage BU, Head of Chairman’s Office and Head of
Corporate Development dept. Mr. Wang is responsible for corporate
strategy, organization restructure, information technology, legal and
public affairs in the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang served
as Associate Director in KPMG Taiwan, Senior Consultant in Computer
Associates’ JV, where he was in charge of Asia Pacific business. He
has years of experience in company transformation and value chain
integration. Mr. Wang holds a Bachelor of Science in Bioenvironmental
Systems Engineering from National Taiwan University, a Master Degree
in Civil Engineering from Columbia University, and a Master Degree of
Graphic Communication Technology and Management from New York
University.

Joey CHEN, aged 55, Chief Customer and Marketing Officer of the
Group. Prior to joining the Group in 2015, he was a Sales General
Manager of Modern Retailer Channel in P&G China. He started his
P&G career in 1993 and had 22 years of management experience in
P&G. In P&G, Joey experienced different roles in IT, Marketing, Sales
and had accumulated professional trophy in areas of multifunctional
team management, Talent Recruiting, Demand Management, and Sales
Planning. Mr. Chen holds a Bachelor degree of Electrical Engineering of
National Taiwan University of Science and Technology and an M.B.A.
from University of lowa in USA.

Max HUANG, aged 55, is the Executive President of the Group’s Instant
Noodle Business. He holds a BBA from National Taiwan University
of Technology. Mr. Huang joined the Group in December 2010 and
successively served as Supervisor of Sales Department, General Manager
of Northwestern District, General Manager of East China District,
Regional Executive Vice President of North District, and Executive Vice
President of Instant Noodle Business. Prior to joining the Group, in a
total of 22 years, Mr. Huang served for DaChan Group and business
planning department of the Lucky Royal Co., Ltd, which is the related
company of Nanchow Chemical Industrial Co., Ltd. Mr. Huang has over
29 years' extensive management experience in sales and marketing.
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TSAI, Tzu-Yuan, aged 58, is the Executive President of the Group’s
Beverage Business. He joined the Group in December 1994, General
Manager of Shenyang Tingyi Food Co., Ltd in November 1998, Vice
president of South District of the Group’s Beverage Business in March
2016 and was the President of the Group’s Beverage Business in
November 2018. Prior to joining the Group, he worked for Fukeyule
Co., Ltd and Qiaoju Trading Co., Ltd. Mr. Cai is particularly familiar in
sales & marketing and business strategy, familiar with the China market.
And especially skilled in management and strong executive force.

Vincent LIU, aged 59, was appointed as the President of the Pepsi
Beverage Business in December 2014. He joined the Group in 2000
and has served as General Manager or Regional General Manager of
Chong Qing Tingyi, Chong Qing Tingjin, Wuhan Tingjin and Hangzhou
Tingjin. Prior to joining the group, he has worked for British Trading
Company TAIT CO. Mr. Liu is particularly familiar management in sales
and marketing, and has over 20 years extensive experience.

Bob CHEN, aged 60, is the Executive Vice President of the Group’s
Instant Food Business. Mr. Chen holds a BBA from Fu Jen Catholic
University and an EMBA from National Taiwan University. He joined the
Group in August 2014. Mr. Chen has an intensive experience of more
than 30 years in the field of marketing and strategic management. He
worked for NamChow Chemical Industrial Co., Modern Home Products
(@ JV of P&G and NamChow), P&G Singapore/Malaysia, P&G Taiwan,
Great Wall Co., Hwa Wei & Grey Advertising Agency (a subsidiary of
WPP group), Nirvana Brand Consulting Group and DaChan Foods (Asia)
Limited.

WANG Tek-Kang, aged 52, bachelor of Taiwan University, and
graduated in Corporate Management from Soochow University, is the
Executive Vice Executive President of the Group's Beverage Business.
With 28 years’ professional experience of FMCG, he joined the Group
in May 2001 as Head of Marketing Department of the Group’s Instant
Noodle Business, General Manager of Master Kong (Shenyang)
Beverage Co. Ltd., Head of Brand Department of the Group's Beverage
Business, and was the Vice President of the Group’s Beverage Business
in October 2017.Mr. WANG s particularly familiar in integrating brand
marketing resources, organizationally enabling and marketing planning.
An active and creative team player with good analytical capability, and
has planned many key brand marketing campaigns.
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The directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 49 to the
financial statements.

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and sale of
instant noodles, beverages and instant food in the PRC.

An analysis of the Group's revenue and profit (loss) attributable to
owners of the Company by major segments is set out below:

BRREMER (BE)
Profit (loss)
& attributable to
Revenue owners of the Company

2018 2017 2018 2017
AR¥Fr AR ETFr AR¥For ARMTFr
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
23,916,674 22,620,155 1,708,581 1,490,544
35,312,931 34,754,288 548,715 425,971
779,376 859,011 (12,059) (2,306)
676,664 720,334 218,084 (95,132)
60,685,645 58,953,788 2,463,321 1,819,077

A review of the business of the Group during the year under review and
a discussion on the Group’s future business development, possible risks
and uncertainties that the Group may be facing and important events
affecting the Company occurred during the year ended 31 December
2018 are provided in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” on
page 7, the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 10 to 22, the section headed “Prospects” on pages 23 to 24 and
in the section headed “Risk management and Internal control” of the
Corporate governance report on pages 65 to 81 of this annual report.
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An analysis of the Group's performance during the year ended 31
December 2018 using financial performance indicators is provided
in the “Financial Summary” on pages 3 to page 5 and in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 10 to 22 of
this annual report.

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 117.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of US3.20
cents per ordinary share, and a special dividend of US3.20 cents per
ordinary share, totalling US$359 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB2,463 million).

The final dividend and special divided will be paid on or before 10 July
2019. Shareholders registered under the Hong Kong branch register of
members on 10 June 2019 will receive their dividends in Hong Kong
dollars.

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 122 to 123.

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment are set out
in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of the investment properties of the Group are set out in note 15
to the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on pages 3 to 4.

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company's
shares by the Company or any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year.
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REHBE
RHBEH Number of share
Date of grant options granted
2008 43 A20 H 11,760,000
20 March 2008
2009 F4 A22 H 26,688,000
22 April 2009
2010 %F4 A1 H 15,044,000
1 April 2010
2011 %4 A12 H 17,702,000
12 April 2011
2012 F4 A26 H 9,700,000
26 April 2012
2013 %5 A27 H 11,492,000
27 May 2013
2014 F4 A17 H 12,718,500
17 April 2014
2015 %6 A5 H 17,054,000
5 June 2015
2016 7 A4 A 10,148,000
4 July 2016
2017 4 A21 H 11,420,000
21 April 2017
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At the extraordinary general meeting (the "EGM") of the Company
held on 20 March 2008, the shareholders approved the adoption of the
share option scheme (the “2008 Share Option Scheme”), with a term of
ten years from the date of adoption.

In view of the expiry of the 2008 Share Option Scheme, the shareholders
of the Company adopted the new share option scheme (the “2018
Share Option Scheme”) at the EGM held on 26 April 2018, with a term
of ten years from the date of adoption.

(a) 2008 Share Option Scheme

During the twelve months ended 31 December 2018, no share
options were granted by the Company in accordance with the
terms of the 2008 Share Option Scheme.

The terms of the 2008 Share Option Scheme are in accordance
with the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. Detailed
arrangement for the 2008 Share Option Scheme is shown as

below:
Table A
TEE

Exercise price
1T1EH (&)
Exercisable period (HK$)
2013 %£3 A21 HZE2018 3 A20 H(1) $9.28
21 March 2013 to 20 March 2018 (1)
2014 %4 A23 BE2019 %4 A22 HQ) $9.38
23 April 2014 to 22 April 2019 (2)
2015 F4 A1 BZE2020 %3 A31 HQR) $18.57
1 April 2015 to 31 March 2020 (3)
2016 F4 A12 HZ=2021 F4 A11 B4) $19.96
12 April 2016 to 11 April 2021 (4)
2017 %4 B26 BE2022 F4 A25 H(5) $20.54
26 April 2017 to 25 April 2022 (5)
2018 45 A27 BZE2023 %5 A26 H(6) $20.16
27 May 2018 to 26 May 2023 (6)
2019 F4 A17 BZE2024 F4 A16 B(7) $22.38
17 April 2019 to 16 April 2024 (7)
2020 %6 A5 HZE2025 F6 A4 H(9) $16.22
5 June 2020 to 4 June 2025 (8)
2021 7 A4 BE2026 7 A3 H(9) $7.54
4 July 2021 to 3 July 2026 (9)
2022 %4 A21 BE2027 %4 A20 H(10) $10.2

21 April 2022 to 20 April 2027 (10)
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AT ZEE 582201812 A31H 1t The summary below sets out the details of movement of the share
+ = {B B 1R #2008 F B fx #E 7T B FT % options during the twelve months ended 31 December 2018 pursuant

2 BRI BT to the Share Option Scheme:
=B Table B
BREHR
Number of share option
SRATRA
4
RTRHZ 20185 HIYHE
BikmE R2018% £ EREHH 128318 Weighted
Closing price 1818 ERi B /5% k33 average
%8 of theshares 28 Granted Exercised Cancelled/ Balanceas  closing price
#% RTEH Exerdse  onthedate  Balance asat during during  lapsedduring at31December  immediately HE
Name Date of grant price ofgrant 1 January 2018 the period the period the period 2018  before exercise  Note
AR B B
HKS HKS HKS
HrES
Executive Director
N 2008534208 9.8 8,55 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 - - 159 EA()
Wei Ing-Chou 20 March 2008 Table A (1)
00954R228 938 937 2,816,000 - - - 2,816,000 - B
22 April 2009 Table A(2)
201054A18 1857 1842 2,200,000 - - - 2,200,000 - BAB)
1 April 2010 Table A(3)
011548128 1996 19.9 2,264,000 - - - 2,264,000 - Eng
12 April 2011 Table A (4)
201254K268 2054 19.88 1,368,000 - - - 1,368,000 — B
26 April 2012 Table A (5)
2013854278 20.16 20.05 1,390,000 - - - 1,390,000 —  [EAb)
27 May 2013 Table A(6)
2014545178 238 2.3 1,486,000 - - - 1,486,000 - B
17 April 2014 Table A (7)
201556450 16.22 159 1,726,000 - - - 1,726,000 — EAB
5 June 2015 Table A (8)
&% 013554278 20.16 2005 218,000 - - 218,000 - — B
Lin Chin-Tang 27 May 2013 Table A(6)
2014545178 2.38 235 224,000 - - - 224,000 - B
17 April 2014 Table A (7)
20155658 16.22 159 334,000 - - - 334,000 — Eng
5 June 2015 Table A(§)
iy 201754A21R 10.20 10.20 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 — B0
WeiHong-Ming 21 April 2017 Table A(10)
WRATHGES
Director of a subsidiary
Eyvid 01754R218 1020 1020 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 — BA10)
WeiHong-Chen 21 April 2017 Table A(10)

92 B EERERAR
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#% R¥EH

Name Date of grant

ThER

Chief Executive Officer

EL 201358278

James Chun-Hsien 27 May 2013

Wei 014548178

17 April 2014
201556A5F
5 June 2015
201657A4R
41Uy 2016
1754F1E
21 April 2017

RthEEMA

Other employees  2008%3720F
inaggregate 20 March 2008

2009%47228
22 April 2009
201054A18
1 April 2010
W011F4A128
12 April 2011
20124545268
26 April 2012
013858278
27 May 2013
14547178
17 April 2014
201546758
5 June 2015
01657748
4uly 2016
WITE4ANA
21 April 2017

2
Total

8
Exercise
price
B
HKS

20.16
2238
16.22

754

10.20

9.28
9.38
18.57
19.96
20.54
20.16
238
16.22
754

10.20

RFA82
BikmE
Closing price
of the shares
on the date
of grant

o

HKS

20.05
2235
15.92

754

10.20

8.55
9.37
18.42
19.96
19.88
20.05
2235
15.92
754

10.20

20185
1818
25k

Balance as at
1 January 2018

904,000
1,148,000
2,006,000
4,300,000

4,000,000

300,000
4,145,000
7,803,000
9,946,000
6,088,000
7,588,000
8,484,000

11,754,000
5,123,000

5,270,000

9,385,000

EhBL
Granted
during
the period

Table B (Continueq)
EREHA

Number of share option

£ EREHS

gk /5%

Exercised Cancelled/

during lapsed during

the period the period

150,000 150,000

999,000 718,000

- 675,000

- 782,000

- 220,000

- 1,080,000

- 130,000

690,000 149,000

400,000 -

500,000 -

4,739,000 4,122,000
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SHTRA

4

20185 HIWHE

128318 Weighted

26t average

Balanceas  closing price
at31December  immediately Kz
2018 hbefore exercise  Note

B
HKS
904,000 )
Table A (6)
1,148,000 — BAY
Table A(7)
2,006,000 — [EAQ)
Table A(8)
4,300,000 — Bno)
Table A(9)
4,000,000 — BA10)
Table A(10)

- 159 EA()

Table A (1)
2,428,000 1521 BAQ)
Table A2)
7,128,000 - BAQ)
Table A(3)
9,164,000 — EBAW
Table A (4)
5,868,000 — BAD)
Table A(5)
6,508,000 — AW
Table A (6)
8,354,000 — BAD)
Table A(7)
10,915,000 1766 BA®Q)
Table A(8)
4,723,000 15.15 [EAQ)
Table A(9)
4,770,000 1594 [EIA10)
Table A(10)

88,024,000
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(b)

94

HZE2018F12A831HIE+=1@R
M AEEEBEIRHRETE
4,739,000 M2 - M TFIHITERE
£10.26/87T - 118 B Z BIE ANiEF
HUWHEA15.988 T - FFHERE
RS B TS R MIRE32 ©

2018 BB AR T &I (b)
20185 FEAERT BI VIR RIT & LT AR
AIE17EMERX - BRAAATR20184
BT B 2 ZH TS
B3RC

RHERE
wEBAH Number of share
Date of grant options granted
2018 4 H 27 H 2,478,000
27 April 2018
2018%F 4 A 27 H 5,626,000
27 April 2018

B EERERA R

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP

For the period of twelve months ended 31 December 2018,
4,739,000 options had been exercised under the 2008 Share
Option Scheme. Weighted average exercise price was HK$10.26
and the weighted average market closing price before the date of
exercise was HK$15.98. For details, please refer to note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

2018 SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The terms of the 2018 Share Option Scheme are in accordance
with the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. Detailed
arrangement for the 2018 Share Option Scheme is shown as

below:
Table C
1T1EH TEE
Exercisable period Exercise price
(#&7T)
(HK$)
2021 F4 A30BZE2028F 4 A26H (1a) $16.18
30 April 2021 to 26 April 2028 (1a)
2021 F 4 A30HE2024%F 4 A26 H(1b) $16.18

30 April 2021 to 26 April 2024 (1b)
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TN EH 5| EHE2018F12A31H
1FF = ARE2018F BB 2 P
Bz BRI

The summary below sets out the details of movement of the share
options during the twelve months ended 31 December 2018
pursuant to the 2018 Share Option Scheme:

=D Table D
BREHA
Number of share option
SERAN
R¥B®  joons ROBE  ETERHE
ZRBUTHE 181R FREE/ 128318 Weighted
Closing k3] M 28 average
price of Balance EREE ERBAE Cancelled/ Balance  closing price
b4 the shares asat Granted Exercised [apsed asat  immediately
5] R¥EH Exercise on the 1 January during during during 31 December before i3
Name Date of grant price  date of grant 2018 the period the period the period 2018 exercise Note
B A7 B
HKS HK$ HKS
gz
Executive Director
SN 2018545278 16.18 15.02 - 470,000 - - 470,000 - BC(1b)
Wei Ing-Chou 27 April 2018 - Table C (1b)
e 2018F4R278 16.18 15.02 - 385,000 - - 385,000 - Bc(1a)
Wei Hong-Ming 27 April 2018 - Table C(1a)
01854A278 16.18 15.02 - 98,000 - 98,000 - ElC(1h)
27 April 2018 - Table C(1b)
WEARHGES
Director of a subsidiary
REK 018548278 16.18 15.02 - 385,000 - - 385,000 - ElC(1a)
Wei Hong-Chen 27 April 2018 - Table C (1a)
W018F4R278 16.18 15.02 - 98,000 - - 98,000 - ElC(1b)
27 April 2018 - Table C (1h)
finas,
Chief Executive Officer
BB 018547278 16.18 1502 - 1,708,000 - - 1,708,000 - Bc(1a)
James Chun-Hsien 27 April 2018 - Table C (13)
Wei 201854A278 16.18 15.02 - 797,000 - - 797,000 - ElC(1h)
27 April 2018 - Table C (1b)
HihE S5 2018547278 16.18 15.02 - 4,163,000 - 36,000 4,127,000 - ElC(1b)
Other employees 27 April 2018 - Table C (1h)
in aggregate
5 - 8,104,000 - 36,000 8,068,000 -
Total -

HZE2018%F12A31H I+ A&

During the twelve months ended 31 December 2018, no share
fE 8 EE2018F RSP T
KRG AR IR 1T ©

options were exercised under the terms of the 2018 Share Option
Scheme.
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REEZ RITERZFBHNEETHBR
RHIFE34 -

REEARBERARERRBHIEZAR
AIEERITHERE

BITEE

MG (201941 A1 HEHT)
BREEE

FHE—B A

RHEHELE

wREREE

WEREE

BRRHHE(2019F 1 A1 HERT)

BUIHHTEF

RIERFEE
FRE\ELE
ARARRE

T AR,
BRESE

BREZMERARBFLERMARREE
WMESAIR—FRRLEZREEH -

ARREEEBIFRTERRRIELD
HRIZE 313165 BE I8 LM 9 5 E RO AR
o ARRRBABBILIIFNTEST B

N

AV
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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

Details of bank loans of the Group are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The directors and chief executive officer of the Company during the year
and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wei Ing-Chou (resigned on 1 January 2019)
Mr. Wei Hong-Ming

Mr. Junichiro Ida

Mr. Teruo Nagano

Mr. Koji Shinohara

Mr. Lin Chin-Tang

Mr. Wei Hong-Chen (appointed on 1 January 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock
Mr. Hiromu Fukada

Chief Executive Officer

Mr. James Chun-Hsien Wei

None of the directors have a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without the payment
of compensation.

The Company received confirmation of independence from the
Independent Non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considered all the Independent Non-
executive Directors are independent.
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M2018F 12 A31H » EFERITHAEN
RAAmRERABEZBE(EEREFLFRIE
RBI([E 5 REE R ) E+1ER) 2 ik
7 MBI SEH R 2 = ROK B A (a)
BEEFFRAERIETABELREN
DEHAERRRRBEBHREIHMBRA
Al ([ ?aﬁﬁj)(ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬂiﬁﬂwu ek
WRARB 2 EEZIAR)  H(b)BIEF
%&Eﬁ;ﬂﬂﬁﬂ’éﬁ%zﬂﬁﬁmaﬁzﬁ%wﬁ
BRSO BB LM AR ER#ETT
BER G 2 ZESFRIBMNE AR T R
FranT -

(a)-1 RROKEEROHRR

HE Name

55 Directors
ZRIEM Wei Ing-Chou
BARE Wei Hong-Ming
WER Lin Chin-Tang
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Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are set
out on pages 82 to 88.

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and Chief Executive Officer in the Shares, underlying Shares
or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")) which are required (a) to be notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (c) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies relating to
securities transactions by Directors to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange were as follows:

(a)-1 Long position in the shares and the underlying Shares

RHEE IR E
Number of Shares BoLE
BARER EERER Percentage
Personal Corporate of the issued
interests interests share capital
(#fit2) (#fit1)
(note 2) (note 1)
13,942,000 1,882,927,866 33.76%
5,000,000 — 0.09%
674,000 — 0.01%

ERET R AR 97
2018 Annual Report F#§



EE=EE | Directors’ Report

(a)-2 REQRBRETHRE (FiEE2)

ERE

(b) BEZEROZRA

BEEHR

Name of Directors

RN
Wei Ing-Chou

98 B EERERAR

SO RERME
Capacity and
Name nature of interest
Directors
Wei Ing-Chou E=MAA
Beneficial owner
Wei Hong-Ming EnEEA
Beneficial owner
Lin Chin-Tang EmA A

Beneficial owner
Chief Executive Officer

EmfEAA
Beneficial owner

James Chun-Hsien Wei

BELEER

Name of associated Corporation

FRENE SR mIERER A A

KSF Beverage Holding Co., Ltd.
(formerly known as “Tingyi-Asahi
Beverages Holding Co., Ltd.")

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP

REFEEE 2
BREE
(B1at3)

Number of
shares of

the associated
corporation
(Note 3)

232,645

gk ¢E|
Number of
shares

13,720,000

1,483,000

776,000

14,863,000

1R B
AL
Percentage
of the issued
share capital

22.10%

(a)-2 Long position in share options of the Company (note 2)

1 IR0 2L
BaLE
Percentage
of the issued
share capital

0.24%

0.03%

0.01%

0.27%

(b) Long position in shares of associated corporation

ERME
Nature of
interest

prAE]

Corporate
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%% 1,882,927,866 Mk 1 M TEHT (R £
E)ERBERATTER DG RAES
EEL BHAMEAR(FE]) EEE
BH44.761% - HELEERERAT(E
4 1)#754930.239% - Rich Gold Capital
Inc. ¥ 4617.835% * B A & B EREKR
@4t 2 MB AR China Foods Investment
Corp. F5H6.482% KB E=E1FHHHK
#90.683% © Rich Gold Capital Inc. ERTER
B AN B BR A A (Tingho Capital Holding
Co., Limited) 2&¥H « MIBRE TR
BRARBABRGZ(ZREMN ZBEMB) -
MERBRER 2 EB) - B S5Hm(EHE
o2 BB M2 E (BRET BB &4
B 25% o A& &% Ty 8 Profit Surplus
Holdings Limited ([ Profit Surplus]) 100%
% A o Profit Surplus @ E{{E 5T 0 & 5F
A - MEREFER B EENBEERES
LEBIHEA - Lion Trust (Singapore) Trustee
Limited 7 Fit M EMIFETS B 2 X5t
A v B E RS E R R A REE
ZmAWAT

- WESTA AR —(EREE
MRIA - ZEEREARRSE
RN BEEEHA ¢

- MERA/LAEP—ERIBETEN
RIZA - BB ETARER R
X RIBERA

- BHAFRRLiES—EARBERER
BIRRIZA - BB (E AR 540
RRERBBEZEA - R

- HArEA/LAHEP—ERBETEN
RIA - ZERBEETARZE KRR
EITREIBEAA °

BRFE N E A TR 13,942,000 i A
m WIREA LA R200843 A20H
520184 A26 ARIT 2 RRERI RS
il AR T IRRERTEIREE 13,720,000
MDIERE(D B INE R BEKRBLE
95 B B D) - R4 E(ERZLEINE S
TMEAR AP BRIE N FTRE A Z R 19 R AB BB AR
DA R o

Note:
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These 1,882,927,866 shares are held by and registered under the name
of Ting Hsin (Cayman lIslands) Holding Corp. (“Ting Hsin”). Ting Hsin is
beneficially owned as to approximately 44.761% by Ho Te Investments
Limited (“Ho Te"), as to approximately 30.239% by Rich Cheer Holdings
Limited (“Rich Cheer”), as to 17.835% by Rich Gold Capital Inc., and
6.482% by China Foods Investment Corp., a subsidiary of Asahi Group
Holdings, Ltd., and as to the remaining 0.683% by unrelated third parties.
Rich Gold Capital Inc. is wholly owned by Tingho Capital Holding Co.,
Limited, which is owned as to 25% each by Wei Chang Lu-Yun (spouse
of Wei Ing-Chou), Lin Li-Mien (spouse of Wei Ying-Chiao), Wei Hsu Hsiu-
Mien (spouse of Wei Yin-Chun) and Wei Tu Miao (spouse of Wei Yin-
Heng). Ho Te and Rich Cheer were owned as to 100% by Profit Surplus
Holdings Limited (“Profit Surplus”). Profit Surplus is the trustee of a unit
trust, which is in turn held by four discretionary trusts in equal proportions.
Lion Trust (Singapore) Trustee Limited is the trustee of each of the above
four discretionary trusts, the settlors and discretionary objects of the above
four discretionary trusts are as follows:

—  Wei Chang Lu-Yun is the settlor of one of the above discretionary
trusts with Wei Chang Lu-Yun and Wei Ing-Chou as discretionary
objects;

— Lin Li-Mien is the settlor of one of the above discretionary trusts
with Lin Li-Mien and Wei Ying-Chiao as discretionary objects;

—  Wei Hsu Hsiu-Mien is the settlor of one of the above discretionary
trusts with Wei Hsu Hsiu-Mien and Wei Yin-Chun as discretionary
objects; and

—  Wei Tu Miao is the settlor of one of the above discretionary trusts
with Wei Tu Miao and Wei Yin-Heng as discretionary objects.

Wei Ing-Chou is also personally interested in 13,942,000 shares and holds
13,720,000 share options (details shown as Table B and Table D on page
92 and 95 respectively) under the share option schemes of the Company
passed by extraordinary general meetings of the Company held on 20
March 2008 and 26 April 2018 respectively. Wei Chang Lu-Yun, being the
spouse of Wei Ing-Chou, is also deemed to be interested in the shares and
the underlying shares held by Wei Ing-Chou.
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BREBHEAZEEIKE) + 3 (b) BRIFEFESH
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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

Lin Chin-Tang is also personally interested in 674,000 shares and holds
776,000 share options (details shown as Table B on page 92) under the
share option scheme of the Company passed by extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 20 March 2008.

Wei Hong-Ming is also personally interested in 5,000,000 shares and holds
1,483,000 share options (details shown as Table B and Table D on page
92 and 95 respectively) under the share option schemes of the Company
passed by extraordinary general meetings of the Company held on 20
March 2008 and 26 April 2018 respectively.

James Chun-Hsien Wei holds 14,863,000 share options (details shown
as Table B and Table D on page 93 and 95 respectively) under the share
option schemes of the Company passed by extraordinary general meetings
of the Company held on 20 March 2008 and 26 April 2018 respectively.

3. These 232,645 shares are held by and registered under the name of Ting
Hsin. Please refer to note 1 for the shareholding structure of Ting Hsin.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the nine months ended 31
December 2018 were there rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Directors or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or
were there any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire such rights in or any other body corporate.

Save as disclosed in this paragraph, as at 31 December 2018, none of
the Directors and Chief Executive Officer had interests in any securities
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which are required (a) to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (c) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies relating to securities
transactions by Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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BME) TERRAREMATEEERAR
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REREHE

Name of shareholder

FERFEER

Interest of Substantial Shareholders

TR (ZHzt 1)

Ting Hsin (see Note 14
MERE(EHE1)4

Ho Te Investments Limited (see Note 7)4
BlemRARNE(ZMHE1)A

Rich Cheer Holdings Limited (see Note 1)
Profit Surplus Holdings Limited (£ 4772 1)4
Profit Surplus Holdings Limited (see Note 1)4
Lion Trust (Singapore) Limited (2 f#:# 1)4
Lion Trust (Singapore) Limited (see Note 1)4
RRGE (M2 R2)4

Wei Chang Lu-Yun (see Notes 1 & 24
MER(RHE1)A

Lin Li-Mien (see Note 1)4

BT AH (M)A

Wei Hsu Hsiu-Mien (see Note 1)4

BRE (RN )4

Wei Tu Miao (see Note 1)4
ZHFRmRA g

Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd.

A EEVRERAFREGE
GRR(NE=v=y

B BatE SN - 22018412 8318 1RIE
(BELHEED)FE 3B IEBTFHENE
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So far as was known to any Director or Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, as at 31 December 2018, the interests or short positions
of substantial shareholders and other persons of the Company, in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to the kept under section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company, were as follows:

HEET
B
ZEDHE %
% of the
g1 BERNEE issued share
Capacity Number of shares held capital
ERBEEA 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.52
Beneficial owner
RERA#ER 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.52
Interest of controlled company
YNl £ 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.52
Interest of controlled company
BUEFAXFA 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.52
Trustee of a unit trust
BEELXTEA 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.52
Trustee of discretionary trusts
HEETEEETEA 1,910,589,866 (L) 34.01
Settlor of a discretionary trust
HEETEEETEA 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.52
Settlor of a discretionary trust
BEETEETEA 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.52
Settlor of a discretionary trust 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.52
HEETEEETEA 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.52
Settlor of a discretionary trust 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.52
EnBEEA 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.52
Beneficial owner 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.52

A Note 1 and 2 are set out on page 99

Note: (L): Long Position

Apart from the above, no other interest or short position in the shares

or underlying shares of the Company were recorded in register required
to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2018.
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Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors, as at the latest practicable
date prior to the printing of this report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued
shares as required under the Listing Rules.

Except for the related party transactions as disclosed in the financial
statements, no other contracts of significance in relation to the
Company’s business to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

Changes of Directors’ information which are required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules are set out below:

Mr. Wei Ing-Chou has resigned as Executive Director of the Company
with effect from 1 January 2019.

Director Wei Hong-Ming has been appointed as the Chairman of the
Group with effect from 1 January 2019.

Mr. Wei Hong-Chen has been appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company with effect from 1 January 2019.

Mr. Junichiro Ida, an Executive Director of the Company was appointed
as the Director of Japan Convenience Foods Industry Association and
the Vice Chairman of the Africa Society of Japan in 2018.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

Donation made by the Group during the year amounted to RMB22.215
million.

During the year, the Group purchased less than 30% of its goods and
services from its 5 largest suppliers and sold less than 30% of its goods
to its 5 largest customers.
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On 15 November 2016, the Company entered into (1) the TZCI Supply
Agreement with Tingzheng (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. ("TZCl"),
pursuant to which, TZCI agreed to supply the TZCl materials (which
are flexible plastic packaging materials and plastic products) to the
Group for a term of three financial years from 1 January 2017 to 31
December 2019; (2) the TFS Supply Agreement with Tianjin Ting Fung
Starch Development Co., Ltd. (“TFS"), pursuant to which, TFS agreed
to supply the TFS products (which are modified potato starch, modified
cassava starch and seasoning flavor products) to the Group for a term
of three financial years from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019.
Both TZCl and TFS are beneficially majority owned by Mr. Wei Ing-Chou,
the former chairman and a former executive director of the Company,
and his associates. The ordinary resolutions approving such continuing
connected transactions were passed at the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 29 December 2016. Details for these
transactions may be found in the Company’s announcements and
circular dated 15 November 2016, 8 December 2016 and 29 December
2016, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the amount of purchases from
TZCl was RMB2,245.354 million, and the amount of purchases from TFS
was RMB260.184 million, and such purchases as disclosed in note 40
to the financial statements of the Company were continuing connected
transaction of the Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules.

On 14 December 2017, the Company entered into a products supply
agreement with Ting Chuan (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (“Ting
Chuan”) in relation to the supply of products of the Group to Ting
Chuan and its subsidiaries, and for Ting Chuan and its subsidiaries
to provide sales promotion services to the Group for a term of three
financial years ending 31 December 2020. Ting Chuan operates the
“Family Mart” chain of convenient stores in the PRC and is a wholly
owned subsidiary of Ting Hsin. Ting Hsin held approximately 33.58%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the
agreement. Details for the transaction may be found in the Company’s
announcement dated 14 December 2017.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the transactions with Ting
Chuan amounted to RMB185.538 million, such transactions with
Ting Chuan as disclosed in note 40 to the financial statements were
continuing connected transaction of the Company for the purpose of
the Listing Rules.
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On 4 May 2016, KSF Beverage Holding Co., Ltd. (“"KSF Beverage”,
formerly known as Tingyi-Asahi Beverages Holding Co., Ltd.), an non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company entered into the Logistics
Agreement with Tingtong (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (“Tingtong”)
under which Tingtong agreed that it and its subsidiaries will provide
logistics services to KSF Beverage and its subsidiaries for a term of three
financial years ending 31 December 2018. KSF Beverage is held by the
Group and Ting Hsin. Ting Hsin held approximately 33.61% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the agreement.
The Company and Japanese Itochu Corporation hold 50.01% and
49.99% shares respectively in Tingtong.

On 10 November 2017, KSF Beverage and Tingtong entered into the
Supplemental Logistics Agreement to revise the annual caps for the
transactions under the Logistics Agreement for the two financial years
of 2017 and 2018. Details for the transaction may be found in the
Company's announcements dated 5 May 2016, 10 November 2017 and
14 December 2017, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, an aggregate service income of
RMB460.694 million was received by Tingtong from KSF Beverage under
the Logistics Agreement.

On 27 December 2018, KSF Beverage and Tingtong entered into a new
Logistics Agreement under which Tingtong and its subsidiaries agreed
to provide logistics services to KSF Beverage and its subsidiaries for a
term of three financial years ending 31 December 2021. Details for the
transaction may be found in the Company’s announcement dated 27
December 2018.

On 14 December 2017, the Company entered into the Food Products
Purchase Agreement with Weizhen Investment Limited (“Weizhen
Investment”) in relation to the Group’s purchase of frozen and dried
food materials, dried meat floss and other meat products from Weizhen
Investment and its subsidiaries for a term of three financial years ending
31 December 2020. Weizhen Investment is beneficially owned as to
75% by Great System Holding Limited (“Great System”), a company
which is beneficially owned by Mr. Wei Ing-Chou, the former chairman
and a former executive director of the Company, and his associates,
and as to 25% by Sanyo Foods, a substantial shareholder of the
Company. Details for the transaction may be found in the Company's
announcement dated 14 December 2017.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018, the purchases of goods from
Weizhen Investment amounted to RMB436.388 million, which has
been disclosed in note 40 to the financial statements under continuing
connected transaction of the Company for the purpose of the Listing
Rules.

On 12 May 2017, the Company entered into the Master Supply
Agreement with Marine Vision Investment Inc. (“Marine Vision”) in
relation to the Group's purchase of carton boxes from Marine Vision
and its subsidiaries for a term of three financial years ending on 31
December 2019. On 10 November 2017, the Company and Marine
Vision entered into the Supplemental Supply Agreement to revise the
annual caps for the transactions under the Master Supply Agreement
for the three financial years of 2017, 2018 and 2019. Marine Vision was
acquired by Great System, a company beneficially owned by Mr. Wei
Ing-Chou, the former chairman and a former executive director of the
Company, and his associates, in May 2017. Details for the transaction
may be found in the Company’s announcements dated 12 May 2017,
10 November 2017 and 14 December 2017, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the purchases by the Group
of goods from Marine Vision amounted to RMB2,016.915 million,
which has been disclosed in note 40 to the financial statements under
continuing connected transaction of the Company for the purpose of
the Listing Rules.

On 15 May 2018, the Company entered into the Products Supply
Agreement with Nature Investment Group Ltd. (“Nature Investment”)
in relation to the Group's purchase of sesame oil, animal oil and other
sesame products from Nature Investment and its subsidiaries for a term
of three financial years ending 31 December 2020. Nature Investment
was acquired by Mr. Wei Ing-Chou, the former chairman and a former
executive director of the Company, and his associates, on 15 May
2018. Details for the transaction may be found in the Company's
announcement dated 15 May 2018.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the purchases by the Group
of goods from Nature Investment amounted to RMB106.351 million,
which has been disclosed in note 40 to the financial statements under
continuing connected transaction of the Company for the purpose of
the Listing Rules.
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The Directors (including the Independent Non-Executive Directors),
have reviewed and confirmed that the above continuing connected
transactions have been entered into:

(@  inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b)  on normal commercial terms or better which are no less
favourable to the Group than those available to/from independent
third parties; and

(c) according to the agreements governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The auditor of the Company has been engaged to report and they have
provided a letter to the Board confirming that the above continuing
connected transactions have nothing that would cause them to believe
that the transactions:

(@  have not been approved by the Company’s board of directors;

(b)  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group if the transactions involve the provision of
goods or services by the Group;

(c)  were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreement governing the transactions; and

(d)  have exceeded the cap.

The Directors (including the Independent Non-executive Directors), have
reviewed and confirmed that, except for the continuing connected
transactions as stated in the prior paragraphs, all other continuing
connected transactions entered by the Group are exempted under Rule
14A.73 of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, such transactions are exempt
from the reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s
Articles of Association although there are no restrictions against such
rights under the laws in the Cayman Islands.

Additional information of business review is set out on pages 10 to 22
under “Management Discussion and Analysis” and on pages 23 to 24
under “Prospects” of this Annual Report.

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of the
Company to re-appoint Mazars CPA Limited as auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board
Wei Hong-Ming
Chairman

Shanghai, the PRC, 25 March 2019
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Mazars CPA LIMITED

o AR (VS )t o 2 A LA )
42nd Floor, Central Plaza,
18 Harbour Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong

T VS TS V0 1 8908 PP BR R 4048

To the shareholders of
Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tingyi (Cayman
Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) set out on pages 117 to 277, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018,
and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
"HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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Key Audit Matter
Impairment of machinery and equipment

The carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
amounted to RMB24,928 million at 31 December 2018. Of which, the
carrying amount value of the Group’s machinery and equipment as at
31 December 2018 was RMB 15,420 million and the related depreciation
charge for the year then ended was RMB2,377 million. Any impairment
of those assets identified may have material impact on the consolidated
financial statements. An impairment loss of RMB626 million has been
recognised for certain machinery and equipment for the year ended 31
December 2018.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviewed internal and
external sources of information, including but not limited to technical
obsolescence to usage, significant change in use of assets with adverse
effect on the Group, prolonged period of time being idle and economic
performance of an asset was expected to be worse than expected, to
assess whether there is any indication that machinery and equipment
may be impaired.

If any such indication exists, an impairment test will be conducted. The
carrying amounts of the assets will be written down to their recoverable
amounts which are the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. The Group shall perform impairment assessment on
machinery and equipment by estimating the recoverable amounts of the
cash generating units (“CGUs") to which the assets belong principally
based on their value in use or, if applicable, to measure the recoverable
amount of certain individual assets with reference to their fair value less
costs of disposal.

We identified the carrying amount of machinery and equipment as a
key audit matter because of its significance to the consolidated financial
statements and the judgment and estimation involved in the impairment
review and test of machinery and equipment including the consideration
of the indicators of impairment and the determination of the key
assumptions applied in the impairment model.

Related disclosures are included in notes 5(ii) and 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our key procedures in relation to management'’s impairment assessment
of property, plant and equipment included:

a)

Discussing the process and basis used to identify indicators of
impairment of machinery and equipment with management
and reviewing utilisation records and profitability of machinery
and equipment, where such indicators were identified, assessing
whether management had performed impairment testing in
accordance with the requirements of HKFRSs;

Assessing the appropriateness of the impairment model applied by
the management in calculating the impairment charges and the
judgments applied in determining the CGUs to which the assets
belong;

Verifying the mathematical accuracy of the discounted cash flow
model used in the value in use calculation;

Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions based on our
knowledge of the food and beverage industry and market;

Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as future
production plans and approved budgets and assessing the
reasonableness and feasibility of such plans and budgets;

Verifying the estimated fair value less costs of disposal by making
reference to the market price of an active market, if applicable;
and

Considering the adequacy of the Group’s disclosure in respect of
the impairment assessment.
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Control over Hangzhou Pesi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd ("HZPS”) and
impairment assessment of goodwill

Key Audit Matter

HZPS became a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group through an
execution of sale and purchase agreement (the “SPA") and a contractual
arrangement in September 2017. The Group currently holds 50% equity
interest in HZPS and has a majority of the voting rights of HZPS.

The consolidation of HZPS required a significant amount of judgement
and estimations, including the determination of control over HZPS. At
the end of the reporting period, the Group re-assesses whether any facts
and circumstances indicate there are changes of its control over HZPS.
Based on the results of the re-assessment, the management concluded
that the Group has power over HZPS; has exposure to variable returns
from its involvement with HZPS; and has the ability to use its power
over HZPS to affect its returns. Therefore, the financial statements of
HZPS continue to be consolidated in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Group recognised goodwill of RMB98 million from the acquisition
in September 2017. Management performs an annual impairment
test on goodwill. The goodwill was allocated to related CGU, and the
recoverable amount of CGU will be determined by management based
on value-in-use calculation using cash flow projection. The calculations
involved significant judgement and estimations, such as forecast cash
flows, discount rates and growth rates.

We identified the control over HZPS and carrying amount of goodwill
as key audit matters because of their significance to the consolidated
financial statements and the judgment and estimation involved in
determination of control over HZPS and accounting for any impairment
on goodwill which involves significant degree of management judgment
in determining key assumptions applied in estimating recoverable
amounts based on value in use model.

Related disclosures are included in notes 5(ii),19 and 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
Our key procedures in relation to the control over HZPS included:

a)  Discussing with the management to identify any facts and
circumstances that indicate changes of the Group’s control over
HZPS;

b)  Evaluating the appropriateness of the Group’s re-assessment on
its control over HZPS;

¢)  Obtaining direct confirmation from the vendor to ascertain the
existence of rights and benefits the Group entitled to through the
execution of the SPA and the contractual arrangement.

d)  Obtaining legal opinion from an independent lawyer to ascertain
the legal enforceability of the contractual arrangement in the PRC;
and

e)  Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
lawyer.

Our key procedures in relation to the recoverability assessment of
goodwill included:

a)  Assessing the value-in-use calculation methodology;

b)  Assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions based on our
knowledge and understanding of the business and market;

)  Verifying the mathematical accuracy of the cash flow model used,;
and

d)  Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as approved
budgets and considering the reasonableness of the budgets.



BERRBERAREMESASE - HUES
BREER 72018¢¢&Wm}5ﬁ7ﬁ,§ﬂ (=}
TREFE M HRR REFIBL B RAZ
GRS

BPEGREMBREANELL TRERM
B8 BATFTRU BEXREMEANRE

iEm o

iH- un\

HBEZGEMBREE - RANETEH
BEMER  ANPEEEMEEEE A
RAEVBRRARMERTBRETIT
MBERBEARE  KEUFEEEKRHE
AR o MEREMTHITHIE - B
RAEMESFEERERRL - RMA
WEZFE - Bt RFPRBEMAERS -

AR A G M
EPNCIRESY P 3
MIE - ﬁé%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%@?ﬁ’]&?éﬁﬁ%#&
K UERBEBRRELZEAMBREAL
ZHABIESH - AEFEEMBERERIFE
AP HRRF S BE ER T G B B K #E AR R -

ERBGANGREN EFAKT
f REBREEENLS  LEEDNS
RTRERSEERERNEE - AR
REEEEASHER RATEAE
# BEEBRLEIEE  LRImL
BEHERFE -

Bazegas

BT REBIE -

BN AZEEIERE | Independent Auditor’s Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information in the 2018 annual
report of the Company but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information, and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsibility for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities and business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law and regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 25 March 2019

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is:

Chan Chi Ming Andy
Practising Certificate number: P05132
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k=3
Note
g Revenue 6
SHE AR Cost of sales
EH Gross profit
E bz Other revenue 8
EFUA Other net income 9
DA AR Distribution costs
THEA Administrative expenses
Hite 2 &R Other operating expenses
Y% E A Finance costs 10
JEEERE A NR%¥4E  Share of results of associates
and joint ventures

BRBE AR Profit before taxation 10
IE Taxation 12
7 g F Profit for the year
FEARRF Profit attributable to:

RAEIRER Owners of the Company

DHRRE R Non-controlling interests
AEERF Profit for the year
FRER Earnings per share 14

AR Basic

g Diluted

2018
AREFT
RMB’000

60,685,645
(41,958,429)

18,727,216
348,388
803,974

(11,817,315)
(2,267,636)
(1,465,191)

(421,682)

71,580

3,979,334
(1,250,565)

2,728,769

2,463,321
265,448

2,728,769

RMB43.85 cents

RMB43.77 cents

2017
ARBTIT
RMB 000

58,953,788
(41,615,827)

17,337,961
270,786
719,726

(11,268,583)
(2,189,111)
(1,124,355)
(454,868)

101,180

3,392,736
(1,137,368)

2,255,368
1,819,077
436,291

2,255,368

RMB32.45 cents

RMB32.42 cents
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)

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive (loss) income:

Items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss:

Remeasurement of defined

benefit obligations

Fair value changes in equity instruments
designated as at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Items that are or may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:

Exchange differences on consolidation

Fair value changes in available-for-sale
financial assets

Reclassification adjustments relating to
available-for-sale financial assets
disposed of during the year

Other comprehensive (loss) income
for the year

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP

2018
AREFT
RMB’000

2,728,769

(40,003)

(16,265)

(56,268)

(379,686)

(379,686)

(435,954)

2,292,815

2,061,011
231,804

2,292,815

2017
ARETIT
RMB 000

2,255,368

52,037

52,037

316,324

95,396

(21,080)

390,640

442,677

2,698,045

2,218,857
479,188

2,698,045
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AftHESREE
HiIEREEE
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B RER
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ASSETS

Non-current assets

Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment

Prepaid lease payments

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Interest in associates

Interest in joint ventures

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Equity instruments designated as at
fair value through other
comprehensive income

Available-for-sale financial assets

Other non-current assets

Deferred tax assets

Current assets
Inventories
Trade receivables
Tax recoverable
Prepayments and

other receivables
Pledged bank deposits
Bank balances and cash

Total assets

ok=3
Note

15
16
17
18
19
21
22

23

23
23
24
36

25
26

27
28
28

2018
AREFT
RMB’000

1,119,000
24,927,630
3,570,367
186,458
97,910
127,725
698,743

448,121

114,018

375,964
429,262

32,095,198

2,651,740
1,715,471
30,150

2,669,689
32,458
13,807,963

20,907,471

53,002,669

2017
ARETIT
RMB 000

1,106,000
28,014,779
3,730,767
162,936
97,910
120,568
660,691

638,526
317,964
308,010

35,158,151

2,396,941
1,636,385
23,393

4,599,397
58,312
10,226,577

18,941,005

54,099,156
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EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves
Issued capital

Share premium

Reserves

Total capital and

reserves attributable

to owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Non-current liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Long-term interest-bearing
borrowings

Other non-current liabilities

Employee benefit obligations

Deferred tax liabilities

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP

k=3
Note

29
30
31

33

34
41
35
36

2018
AREFT
RMB’000

235,204
664,400
18,753,872

19,653,476
3,958,955

23,612,431

9,862

4,372,723
40,000
115,436
967,682

5,505,703

2017
ARBTT
RMB 000

235,053
611,736
17,565,290

18,412,079
3,881,965

22,294,044

5,258

6,608,953
40,000
101,226
1,070,026

7,825,463
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Hfat
Note
Current liabilities
Trade payables 37
Other payables and
deposits received 38
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
33
Current portion of interest
bearing borrowings 34
Advance payments
from customers 42

Taxation

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities
Net current assets (liabilities)

Total assets less
current liabilities

H A& —EB Junichiro Ida
ZEF Director

2018
AREFT
RMB’000

6,953,961

8,522,996

6,461,785

1,678,782
267,011

23,884,535
29,390,238
53,002,669

(2,977,064)

29,118,134

2017
ARETIT
RMB 000

7,119,423

7,417,032

37,448

7,775,320

1,284,590
345,836

23,979,649
31,805,112
54,099,156

(5,038,644)

30,119,507

These consolidated financial statements on pages 117 to 277 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25
March 2019 and signed on its behalf by
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At 1 January 2017
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive (loss) income
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation
Exchange differences on consolidation

financial assets

Reclassification adjustment relating to
avallable-for-sale financial assets disposed
of during the year

Total other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year

Transactions with owners of the Company:
Contributions and distribution
Equity settled share-based transactions
Shares issued under share option scheme
Put options written to a non-controlling
shareholder
Written back of financial liabilities upon
cancellation of put options written to a
non-contralling shareholder
2016 final dividend approved and paid

Changes in ownership inferests
Non-controlling interest arising from
business combination
Change in ownership interest in subsidiaries
without change in control

Total transactions with owners
of the Company

At 31 December 2017

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

RREREER
Attributable to owners of the Company
buyiér
kA FhaE Total
Issued Share i capitaland
capital premium Reserves Teserves

NRRTT  ARETT  ARETL  ARETT
RMBO0O  RMBOO  AMBOOD  AMBUOD

234,767 523278 17365495 18,123,540

- - 1,819,077 1,819,077

- 41,664 41,664
- 283,800 283,800

- - 95,39 95,3%

- - (21,080) (21,080)
- - 399,780 399,780

- - 2,218,857 2,218,857

- - 44,234 44,234
286 88,458 (21,357) 67,387

- — 41351200 (4135120

- - 4,135,120 4,135,120
- - (580,849) (580,849)

286 88,458 (557,972) (469,228)

—  (1461,000)  (1,461,090)

- - (1,461,000 (1,461,090

286 8458 (019062 (1930318

235,053 611,736 17565290 18,412,079

controlling
interests
NEETFT
RIB000

5977039

436,291

10,373
3254

42,897

479,188

(119,876)

(119,876)

171,560

(2,625,946)

(2,454,386)

(2.574,262)

3,881,965

BE
ERBE
Total

equity
NEETFT
RMB 000

24,100,579

2,255,368

52,037
316,324

95,39

(21,080)
442,671

2,698,045

44234
67,387

(4,135,120)

4,135,120
(700,725)

(589,104)

171,560

(4,087,036)

(3.915,476)

(4,504,580)

22,094,044
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AnARRER

Attributable to owners of the Company

BiREE SRRRER

§RA RiaE Total Non-

Issued Share ffE  cpitaland  controlling

capital premium Reserves eserves interests

AREFR  ARETR  ARETT  AREFT AREFR

RMB00 RMB000 RMB900 RMB000 RUB000

At 1 January 2018 235,083 611,736 17,565,290 18,412,079 3,881,965
Profit for the year - - 2,463,321 2463321 265,448

Other comprehensive (loss) income
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation (ote 35)

- - (37,562) (37,562) 441

Fair value changes in equity instruments - - (16,265) (16,265) -

designated as at fair value through
other comprehensive income (Aote 23(¢)

Exchange differences on consolidation = = (348,483) (348,483) (31,203)
Total other comprehensive loss = = (402,310) (402,310) (33,004)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 2,061,011 2,061,011 231,804
Transactions with owners

of the Company:

Contributions and distributon
Equity settled share-based transactions - - 2719 32,79 -
Shares issued under share option scheme (Aote 29)
151 52,664 (13,025) 39,790 =
017 final dividend approved (Note 13)
- - (909,539) (909,539) (167,478)
151 52,664 (889,765) (836,950) (167,478)
Changes in ownerstp inferests
Change in ownership interest in a subsidiary
without change in control (Vote 20) - - 17,336 17,336 12,664
= = 17,336 17,336 12,664
Total transactions with owners

of the Company 151 52,664 (872,429) (819,614) (154,814)

At 31 December 2018 235,204 664,400 18,753,872 19,653,476 3,958,955
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Total

equity
ARBTE
RMB 000
20,294,044

2,728,769

(40,003)
(16,265)

(379,686)
(435,954)

2292815

32,799
39,790

(1,077,017)

(1,004,428)

30,000

30,000

(974,428)

23,612,431
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OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from operations

The People’s Republic of China (“PRC")
enterprise income tax paid

Interest paid

Net cash from operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received

Dividend received from a joint venture

Dividend received from available-for-sale
financial assets

Dividend received from financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Proceeds from disposal of
available-for-sale financial assets

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Proceeds from disposal of equity
instruments designated as at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Purchase of debt investment

Redemption of debt investment

Purchase of available-for-sale
financial assets

Purchase of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Deposit paid for acquisition of
a property

Prepaid lease payments

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payments

Proceeds from sale of investment
properties

Net cash inflow on acquisition subsidiaries

Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries

Net movement of loan receivables

Net movement of amount due from
former subsidiaries

Capital refunded upon deregistration of
associates and joint ventures

Capital contribution to associates

Net cash generated from
(used) in investing activities

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP

2018

Bt AR¥FoT
Note RMB’000

39 8,947,083
(1,555,331)
(423,863)

6,967,889

348,388

22 17,232

6,500

79,443

23(c) 8,521

27(b) 900,000

23(a) =
23(a) (48,735)
(1,358,638)
24 (58,000)
(23,706)

42,263

43 437,438
27(a) (153,000)

1,347,253

9,575

1,554,534

2017
AREFT
RMB'000

8,499,095

(1,367,551)
(449,626)

6,681,918

270,786
93,001

1,103

79,484

(900,000)

(16,983)

(1,048,568)

(190,778)
(18,371)

162,575

223
100,027
663,128

(11,788)

(15,605)

(831,766)
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FINANCING ACTIVITIES

A ERER | Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HZ=20184F12 A31 BILS/E Year ended 31 December 2018

Bt
Note

Dividends paid to owners of the Company
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests
Issue of shares under share option

scheme

29

Proceeds from bank borrowings
Repayments of bank and other borrowings
Net movement of other short-term

borrowings
Payment for acquisition of
non-controlling interests

Proceeds from disposal of ownership
interests in a subsidiary that does not
result in a change of control 20

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at

beginning of year
Effect on exchange rate ch

anges

Cash and cash equivalents

at end of year

28

2018
AREFT
RMB’000

(928,370)
(141,619)

39,790
3,548,339
(5,529,936)

(2,005,498)

15,000

(5,002,294)

3,520,129

10,284,889
35,403

13,840,421

2017
AREFT
RMB'000

(598,505)
(114,752)

67,387
5,944,184
(9,085,460)
2,028,635

(4,003,636)

(5,762,147)

88,005

10,231,812
(34,928)

10,284,889
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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP

Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. The address of its principal place of business
is Suite 5607, 56th Floor, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong and No. 1688, Wuzhong Road, Minhang
District, Shanghai, the PRC.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the manufacture and sale of instant noodles,
beverages and instant food products. The principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in note 49 to the consolidated financial
statements.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless
otherwise indicated.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted in the
2017 consolidated financial statements except for the adoption
of the new/revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group and
effective from the current year as detailed in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements. A summary of the principal
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out in note 3 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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) ARESEREFEAERT
ARARZEEESRBERRK -

EEERNAKREREAPHAZRTT
EENBRT  RAEAEBREANR
5 2R A T 10 B R 5T & 5 B B
o Bt BRAEMBMRIAFEL
B2 EARE

Fuse

mBR AP B MREARERF
RBERE REQANEET
R REUREME - HBARE
BIRLEEGEREEN SR
BE EERAALEBEIIER
FEEM 2 S REE A
TAREBERAREEIERIER
SREESRAEENAARER
FAERIN - FBEHN T ZE
TR -

(a)

(b)

REMBBRREBARALS
MEBARZHERME - RETF
NEF B RERE 2 MEFEEAR
REER - S BRTER—
B o

AEBEAFZ QR ZEETR
IR BEER X5 W
X RB@RYEHIRE - HEA
AIH) SR AR B AN 5 [ BUAS 12 ) 4
ZBHIREAH  WHEEBS M
BAREEEHIEERILEAN -

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the

directors have carefully assessed the working capital and

financing requirements of the Group in the foreseeable future,

as the Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
RMB2,977,064,000 (2017: RMB5,038,644,000) at the end of the
reporting period.

Taking into account the existing banking facilities of the Group,

the directors are satisfied that the Group has sufficient resources

to meet in full its financial obligations as they fall due in the

foreseeable future. Accordingly, these consolidated financial

statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

(a)

(b)

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements is historical cost, except for
investment properties, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, equity instruments designated as at fair value
through other comprehensive income and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss, which are measured at
fair value as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting year as that of the Company using
consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and
expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

BRAEER
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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP

(b)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented, separately from
owners of the Company, in the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and within equity in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The non-controlling interests in
the acquiree, that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net assets in event of liquidation, are measured
initially either at fair value or at the present ownership
interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. This choice of
measurement basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are initially
measured at fair value unless another measurement basis is
required by HKFRSs.

Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
is attributed to the owners of the Company and the non-
controlling interest even if this results in the non-controlling
interest having a deficit balance.

Changes in ownership interests

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
“transactions with non-controlling interests reserve” within
equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.
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REEE(E) (b) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

HHEEE(E) Changes in ownership interests (Continued)
MASEEKLERIEAT 2% When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
HliE - BEBSRETYIMIE or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
CEBEGE  (OBEWREBEZA (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
nREEREAREERCAAE received and the fair value of any retained interest and (i)
ZHREENBE AR ZEE the carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
(BHEME)RaBERREME liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
ThE s REE - WAEE The amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
HEELEHREEESNEE & income in relation to the disposed subsidiary are accounted
AT L 2 T8 W 25 2 B P65 B for on the same basis as would be required if the Group
BARER s 2REAAERIER had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
EA®R - HEHRAEER Any investment retained in the former subsidiary and any
iR AT B A EREE 2 amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary are accounted
& R R R AT BT B A A for as a financial asset or liability, interest in associate,
ZEMEBBARAERMEER interest in joint venture or others as appropriate from the
BE -BEAREZ AR date when control is lost.

AliEm e H M AT o

BE () Goodwill

AU s — B H (BRI LR
B — B AR E B PEK
M—IBXB)MELENEET
BEERNRE BT
B R 5 S DA R4 A #0 1EIK
BB REREEEN R RE
B BEANAIHRBEEMK
W AENRESHE

W R R B R RSB
BE  WRKARZFRER
RIER  BFEETRENFSL
EEHHIERE(CERREE
AIRERER BATHETRE
A o REITRER A IEE
BRERGEHIEXR HEOIERE
ReEAEUN(REELE
fiz]) - BEBEBES TSR
¥ o

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business (including
the acquisition of joint control of a joint operation in which
the activity constitutes a business) is measured at the excess
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of
any previously held equity interest in the acquiree over the
acquisition date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed of the acquired business.

Goodwill on acquisition of business is recognised as a
separate asset and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, which is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. For the
purpose of impairment test and determination of gain or
loss on disposal, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units (“CGUs"). An impairment loss on goodwill is not
reversed.
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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP

(c)

(d)

Goodwill (Continued)

On the other hand, any excess of the acquisition date
amounts of identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed of the acquired business over the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree, if any,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as an income from bargain purchase.

Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is not depreciated and stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. All other property, plant
and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use. Repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property, plant and
equipment, other than construction in progress, over
their estimated useful lives as set out below from the date
on which they are available for use and after taking into
account their estimated residual values, using the straight-
line method. Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the costs of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis and depreciated separately.

Buildings 10 to 30 years
Machinery and equipment:

— Instant noodles 10 to 12 years
— Beverages 10 to 12 years
—Instant food and others 5to 10 years
Electrical appliances and equipment 5 years

Miscellaneous equipment 3to 10 years
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M WBEREREE) (d) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
ENERNEEHETHEERE An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
B & B A R R R4S B B 25 upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
- W% HERXEEES expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
WL IEHER - BWE - K gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
BELHEIERAEMREZR as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
B RHENEMGFREREE carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in
FREERZZEABNUE - I the year in which the item is derecognised.

RYINIEHRA o

EYE O BELEREBE M When property, plant and equipment becomes an
KEMEME R #REAR investment property, any difference at the date of change in
BRZMENERABRAD use between the carrying amount and the fair value of the
ZENAMEBEeRBREES property is accounted for in the same way as a revaluation
FHERIZE 1698 2 kR ER in accordance with HKAS 16.

REMERE -

EREIR (e) Construction in progress

FREIEREEEZERAKL Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
BT BRERKEE - &K machinery under construction or pending installation and
KRR REEEAE) is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
AR o AN BIE & R U AR Cost includes the costs of construction and acquisition
REERMEZBERA L2 and capitalised borrowing costs. No depreciation is made
ITREEEMEETKRATE on construction in progress until such time as the relevant
RERZATHARTE -EF assets are completed and ready for intended use. When
MEERHEAR  KAHE the assets concerned are available for use, the costs
BRmME - BEREE - LR are transferred to property, plant and equipment and
% BT RE 3(d) P sl < BRI depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated in 3(d)
BINE - above.

REMFEILE (f) Investment properties

BREMFHEN LM MET B
PRE AREABARBERER
E8HF  AREBES KA SHE
BAREE  EEERERYE
BN HEE FE B R 2R 455 A a8 AN
KEHEERME - MERE
HEHEEELATARRE
BFft & -

Investment properties are land and building that are held by
owner or lessee under finance lease, to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation. These include properties held
for a currently undetermined future use and properties that
are held under operating lease, which satisfy the definition
of investment property and carry at fair value.
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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

()

(9)

Investment properties (Continued)

Investment properties are stated at fair value at the end
of the reporting period. Any gain or loss arising from a
change in fair value is recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value of investment property is based on a valuation by an
independent valuer who holds a recognised professional
qualification and has recent experience in the location and
category of property being valued. The fair value is based
on market value, being the estimated amount for which
a property could be exchanged on the date of valuation
between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s
length transaction after proper marketing wherein the
parties have each acted knowledgeably, prudently and
without compulsion.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in profit or loss in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Intangible asset
Concession right

Concession right acquired in a business combination is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Concession
right has finite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method over its estimated useful life. Both the period and
method of amortisation are reviewed annually.
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BREE(E) (9) Intangible asset (Continued)

K EIREF AT Water resource license

1S /K ERET 0] 7% /) W) 45 B AR The initial cost of acquiring water resource license is
BAR c KERFAFHES capitalised. The water resource license has finite useful
PR {50 PR EF BRI A AR R 5T 8H lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
R E2FREEBR - #igik accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is provided on
HEbE I AFRNEFERT the straight-line basis over its estimated useful lives.

b

T HARE (h) Prepaid lease payments

THBERERNEEHNE Prepaid lease payments are up-front payments to acquire
ANBAFABAGRAZWEER fixed term interests in lessee-occupied land that are classified
B JE R 2 e 2 TR SRR » as operating leases. The premiums are stated at cost less
i 18 T LARK 2N $0 B 2 51 88 55 F0 accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
ZFHREEKRFIER - I 578 E losses and are amortised over the period of the lease on a
NIABE RAH Y - straight-line basis.

MEATE (i) Subsidiaries

MEBAR DD ASEEZESZE
B AEEE2EZERER
BAEENSEIEERRERE
NBEBEE S EE LD RE
BREHZER - HEEER
BRRERE Ll — AR Z IR
HIRRHRE(L  AEEKE
A ER DGR E T -

FEM TR BRR 2 AR B B ISR
MRA - K8 A A AR PARK A
AR ERBEIED SR
AR HEBARER  REE
S E R MO E H A £ 58 -
MBARERERARFIZE K
Ko e A B 2 AR -

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the elements of control.

In the Company's statement of financial position, which
is presented within these notes, an interest in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less impairment loss. The carrying
amount of the interest in a subsidiary is reduced to its
recoverable amount on an individual basis, if it is higher
than the recoverable amount. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.
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Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the arrangement. A joint arrangement is
an arrangement of which two or more parties have joint
control. Joint control is a contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control. The Group reassesses whether
it has joint control of an arrangement and whether the type
of joint arrangement in which it is involved has changed, if
facts and circumstances change.

The Group's interest in associate or joint venture is
accounted for under the equity method of accounting,
except when the investment or a portion thereof is classified
as held for sale. Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for
the post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment. Except to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the investee, the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses when the Group's share of losses
of the investee equals or exceeds the carrying amount of
its interest in the investee, which includes any long term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the investee.
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(k)

Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the
investees, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments
Financial assets
Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments and on a trade date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group's contractual rights to future cash flows from the
financial asset expire or (ii) the Group transfers the financial
asset and either (a) it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset but it does not retain
control of the financial asset.

Classification and measurement applicable from 1 January
2018

Financial assets (except for trade receivables without a
significant financing component) are initially recognised at
their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
assets. Such trade receivables are initially measured at their
transaction price.
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(k)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and measurement applicable from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as (i)
measured at amortised cost; (i) debt instruments measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“Mandatory FVOCI"); (iii) equity instruments designated
as at fair value through other comprehensive income
("Designated FVOCI"); or (iv) measured at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL").

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the Group’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics. Financial assets are not reclassified
subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group
changes its business model for managing them, in which
case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first
day of the first annual reporting period following the change
in the business model.

Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract in which a host
is an asset within the scope of HKFRS 9 are not separated
from the host. Instead, the entire hybrid contract is assessed
for classification.

1) Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it
meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
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(k) £WMIAE) (k) Financial instruments (Continued)

EHEEE) Financial assets (Continued)

1) IRt KA By 1) Financial assets measured at amortised cost
DEEEE) (Continued)
IR A E RS RE Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
R AN £ measured using the effective interest rate method and
2 asceHEiEmE - are subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising
FE -~ RIFFER S B from impairment, derecognition or through the
T2EA U AN L AR amortisation process are recognised in profit or loss.
BRI o
I = B R IR SR AR S B The Group's financial assets at amortised cost include
e BB EBERITAS bank balances and cash, pledged bank deposits and
RE4  EIRRTEZ R trade and other receivables.
W LAt PR KUK o
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A financial asset is measured at Mandatory FVOCI if
both of the following conditions are met and is not
designated as at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows and for sale; and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

The financial asset is subsequently measured at
fair value. Interest calculated using the effective
interest method, impairment gains or losses and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss. Other gains or losses are recognised
in other comprehensive income until the financial
asset is derecognised. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss as a reclassification
adjustment.

The Group does not have financial assets at Mandatory
FVOCI.
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(k)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

3)

Designated FVOC/

Upon initial recognition, the Group may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument that is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies
in other comprehensive income. The classification is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

These equity investments are subsequently measured
at fair value and are not subject to impairment.
Dividends are recognised in profit or loss unless the
dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. Other gains or losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income and shall
not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Upon derecognition, the cumulative gain or loss is
transferred directly to retained profits.

The Group’s financial assets at Designated FVOCI
include unlisted equity securities as further detailed in
note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Financial assets (Continued)

4)

Financial assets at FV/PL

These investments include financial assets that are
not measured at amortised cost or FVOCI, including
financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL, financial
assets resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 applies and financial assets that are otherwise
required to be measured at FVPL. They are carried at
fair value, with any resultant gain and loss recognised
in profit or loss, which does not include any dividend
or interest earned on the financial assets. Dividend or
interest income is presented separately from fair value
gain or loss.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is:

(i) acquired principally for the purpose of selling it
in the near term;

(i) part of a portfolio of identified financial

EBREBENN& instruments that are managed together and
TE RS A for which there is evidence of a recent actual
ReMmITAEAED pattern of short-term profit-taking on initial
— &5 ¢ K recognition; or

(i) TBRMBEERSE
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SRERAEEERR

(i) a derivative that is not a financial guarantee
contract or not a designated and effective
hedging instrument.

Other receivables are considered to be low credit risk
when they have a low risk of default and the counter
party has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term.
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(k)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

4)

Financial assets at FVPL (Continued)

Financial assets are designated at initial recognition
as at FVPL only if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or
liabilities or recognising the gains or losses on them on
different bases.

The Group's financial assets at FVPL include investment
funds and listed equity securities as further detailed in
note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

Classification and measurement

Financial assets — applicable before 1 January 2018

Financial assets are initially recognised at their fair value plus,

in the case of financial assets not carried at FVPL, transaction

costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the

financial assets.

The Group classified its financial assets into one of the

following categories before 1 January 2018:

7)

Financial assets at FV/PL

Financial assets at FVPL include financial assets held
for trading, financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at FVPL, and financial assets resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement in a
business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies.
They are carried at fair value, with any resultant gain
and loss recognised in profit or loss, which does not
include any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets. Dividend or interest income is presented
separately from fair value gain or loss.
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EWMIAE) (k) Financial instruments (Continued)
EHEEE) Financial assets (Continued)

DEEHAE () Classification and measurement (Continued)
1) BALEEIERFERE K 1) Financial assets at FVPL (Continued)
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Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they
are (i) acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near future; (i) part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or (iii) derivatives that are not financial
guarantee contracts or not designated and effective
hedging instruments.

Financial assets are designated at initial recognition
as at FVPL only if (i) the designation eliminates or
significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or
liabilities or recognising gains or losses on a different
basis; or (ii) they are part of a group of financial
assets and/or financial liabilities that are managed
and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with a documented risk management
strategy; or (iii) they contain embedded derivatives
that would need to be separately recorded.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial asset at FVPL, except where
the embedded derivative does not significantly modify
the cash flows or it is clear that separation of the
embedded derivative is prohibited
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(k)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

2)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables including bank balances and
cash, pledged bank deposits and trade and other
receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market and are not held for trading. They
are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, except where receivables are interest-
free loans and without any fixed repayment term
or the effect of discounting would be insignificant.
In such case, the receivables are stated at cost less
impairment loss. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition
over the period to maturity. Gains and losses arising
from derecognition, impairment or through the
amortisation process are recognised in profit or loss.
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SRMIAE) (k) Financial instruments (Continued)
EHEEE) Financial assets (Continued)

DIEFEE () Classification and measurement (Continued)
3) AREEZHEE 3)  Available-for-sale financial assets
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Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are either designated at this
category or not classified in any of the other categories
of financial assets. They are measured at fair value
with changes in value recognised as investment
revaluation reserve (recycling) until the assets are sold,
collected or otherwise disposed of, or until the assets
are determined to be impaired, at which time the
cumulative gain or loss previously reported in other
comprehensive income shall be reclassified to profit or
loss as a reclassification adjustment.

Available-for-sale financial assets that do not have a
guoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured are stated at
cost less impairment loss.
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(k)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities
Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments and on a trade date basis.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the
liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value
plus, in the case of financial liabilities not carried at FVPL,
transaction costs that are direct attributable to the issue of
the financial liabilities.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, interest-bearing borrowings and other non-
current liabilities. All financial liabilities, except for financial
liabilities at FVPL, are recognised initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method, unless the effect of discounting
would be insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.

Financial liabilities at FVPL include financial liabilities held
for trading, financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at FVPL and financial liabilities that are
contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 applies. They are carried at
fair value, with any resultant gain and loss excluding interest
expenses recognised in profit or loss, except for the portion
of fair value changes of financial liabilities designated at
FVPL that are attributable to the credit risk of the liabilities,
which is presented in other comprehensive income unless
such treatment would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. The amounts presented in other
comprehensive income shall not be subsequently transferred
to profit or loss. Upon derecognition, the cumulative gain
or loss is transferred directly to retained profits. Interest
expenses are presented separately from fair value gain or
loss.
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(k) £@IEE) (k) Financial instruments (Continued)

eHEEE) Financial liabilities (Continued)

DR E(E) Classification and measurement (Continued)

RIRAB AR GRS EAE Before the adoption of HKFRS 9, all the fair value gain or

SEAET - FRARAREBENRR loss of financial liabilities at FVPL is recognised in profit or

EESRREENEREEND loss.

REKEKEBEHNER R

FERMBERREARAER A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is:

S H

iy WEIERSTHEEHA (i)  incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it
EliE&B 8 in the near term;

(ih ZEESTER  AFR (i)  part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
HIEN M ST BEREAR that are managed together and for which there is
AHReMmITAEEGHN— evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term
o Bk profit-taking on initial recognition; or

(i) TERMBERER - K (i) a derivative that is not a financial guarantee contract
RAEEEARBRENT or not a designated and effective hedging instrument.
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(k)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

Financial liabilities are designated at initial recognition as at
FVPL only if:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

the designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or
recognising the gains or losses on them on different
bases; or

they are part of a group of financial liabilities or
financial assets and financial liabilities that are
managed and their performance evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management strategy; or

they contain one or more embedded derivatives,
in which case the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial liability at FVPL, except where
the embedded derivatives do not significantly modify
the cash flows or it is clear that separation of the
embedded derivatives is prohibited.

Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract with a host that

is not an asset within the scope of HKFRS 9 are treated as

separate derivatives when they meet the definition of a

derivative, their economic characteristics and risks are not

closely related to those of the host, and the hybrid contract

is not measured at FVPL.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under
HKFRS 9

Applicable from 1 January 2018

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses (“ECL") on financial assets that are measured at
amortised cost to which the impairment requirements
apply in accordance with HKFRS 9. Except for the specific
treatments as detailed below, at each reporting date, the
Group measures a loss allowance for a financial asset at
an amount equal to the lifetime ECL if the credit risk on
that financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial asset at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e.
the present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life
of the financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are due
to an entity under the contract and the cash flows that the
entity expects to receive.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument while 12-month ECL represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped on the following one or more
shared credit risk characteristics:

(i)  past due information

(i) nature of instrument

(i) nature of collateral

(iv)  industry of debtors

(v)  geographical location of debtors
(vi)  external credit risk ratings

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk and
loss since initial recognition. The resulting changes in the
loss allowance are recognised as an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the financial instrument, except in the
case of Mandatory FVOCI, the loss allowance is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve (recycling).

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes
as historical experience indicates that the Group may not
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full if the
financial instrument that meets any of the following criteria.

(i) information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group);
or

(i) there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty.
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(k)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. In particular, the following information
is taken into account in the assessment:

° the debtor’s failure to make payments of principal or
interest on the due dates;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating
(if available);

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

o actual or expected changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have or
may have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date.

Low crediit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk
if:

() it has a low risk of default;

(i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term; and

(i) adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
flow obligations.

As detailed in note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements, amounts due from associates, joint ventures and
related parties are determined to have low credit risk.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Simplified approach of ECL

For trade receivables without a significant financing
components or otherwise for which the Group applies
the practical expedient not to account for the significant
financing components, the Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECL. The Group recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date
and has established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired include observable data
about the following events:

(a)

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower.

a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event.

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider.

it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

(f)  the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a
deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has
no reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual
cash flows on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. The Group has a policy of writing off the gross
carrying amount when the financial asset is 1 year past due
based on historical experience of recoveries of similar assets.
The Group expects no significant recovery from the amount
written off. However, financial assets that are written off
could still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group's procedures for recovery of amounts due., taking
into account legal advice if appropriate. Any subsequent
recovery made is recognised in profit or loss.

Applicable before 1 January 2018

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses
whether there is objective evidence that financial assets,
other than those at FVPL, are impaired. The impairment loss
of financial assets carried at amortised cost is measured as
the difference between the assets’ carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flow discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. Such
impairment loss is reversed in subsequent periods through
profit or loss when an increase in the asset’s recoverable
amount can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction that
the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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(k)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Applicable before 1 January 2018 (Continued)

When an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired,
a cumulative loss comprising the difference between
its acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value, less any previously
recognised impairment loss in profit or loss, is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.
Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect
of available-for-sale equity instrument are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in fair value
of available-for-sale equity instrument after recognition
of impairment loss is recognised in equity. Reversal of
impairment loss of available-for-sale debt instruments are
reversed through profit or loss, if the increase in fair value
of the instrument can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit
or loss.

For an available-for-sale financial asset that is carried at cost,
the amount of impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Such impairment loss shall not be reversed.
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(m)

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, net of bank overdraft, if any.

Revenue recognition

Rental income from commercial properties is recognised
when the properties are let out and on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms while rental income from car parks are
recognised on an accrual basis.

Applicable from 1 January 2018

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

Nature of goods or services

The nature of the goods or services provided by the Group is
manufacture and delivery of instant noodles, beverages and
instant food products.

Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the goods
or services promised in a contract with a customer and
identifies as a performance obligation each promise to
transfer to the customer either:

(@ a good or service (or a bundle of goods or services)
that is distinct; or

(b) a series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same and that have the same pattern
of transfer to the customer.
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Identification of performance obligations (Continued)

A good or service that is promised to a customer is distinct if
both of the following criteria are met:

(@  the customer can benefit from the good or service
either on its own or together with other resources that
are readily available to the customer (i.e. the good or
service is capable of being distinct); and

(b) the Group's promise to transfer the good or service
to the customer is separately identifiable from other
promises in the contract (i.e. the promise to transfer
the good or service is distinct within the context of the
contract).

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a promised good or
service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred
when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset.

The Group transfers control of a good or service over time
and, therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and
recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria
is met:

(@)  the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group's performance as
the Group performs;

(b)  the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
(for example, work in progress) that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

(©) the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.
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(m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the
Group satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the promised asset. In
determining when the transfer of control occurs, the Group
considers the concept of control and such indicators as
legal title, physical possession, right to payment, significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset, and customer
acceptance.

Sales of instant noodles, beverages and instant food
products is recognised at a point in time at which the
customer obtains the control of the promised asset, which
generally coincides with the time when the goods are
delivered to customers and the title is passed.

Service income of logistic services is recognised over time
when services are rendered.

For revenue recognised over time under HKFRS 15,
provided the outcome of the performance obligation can
be reasonably measured, the Group applies the output
method (i.e. based on the direct measurements of the value
to the customer of the goods or services transferred to
date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract) to measure the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligation
because the method provides a faithful depiction of the
Group’s performance and reliable information is available
to the Group to apply the method. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of the costs incurred until
such time that it can reasonably measure the outcome of
the performance obligation. The principal input applied in
the output method for transportation services to external
customers is based on the distance already travelled to date.
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Transaction price: significant financing components

When the contract contains a significant financing
component (i.e. the customer or the Group is provided with
a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer), in determining the transaction
price, the Group adjusts the promised consideration for
the effects of the time value of money. The effect of the
significant financing component is recognised as an interest
income or interest expense separately from revenue from
contracts with customers in profit or loss.

The Group determines the interest rate that is
commensurate with the rate that would be reflected in
a separate financing transaction between the Group and
its customer at contract inception by reference to, where
appropriate, the interest rate implicit in the contract (i.e.
the interest rate that discounts the cash selling price of the
goods or services to the amount paid in advance or arrears),
the prevailing market interest rates, the Group’s borrowing
rates and other relevant creditworthiness information of the
customer of the Group.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph
63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration for
the effect of the significant financing component if the
period of financing is one year or less.

Variable consideration

If the consideration promised in a contract includes a variable
amount, the Group estimates the amount of consideration
to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
promised goods or services to a customer. The variable
consideration is estimated by using either the expected-
value or the most-likely-amount method whichever is better
to predict the entitled amount. The estimated variable
consideration is then included in the transaction price only
to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised of
the contract will not occur when the uncertainty associated
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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Variable consideration. volume-based rebates

The Group gives rebates to selected customers. The Group
estimates the volume rebates using the expected-value
method and assesses whether the estimated variable
consideration is constrained with reference to the customer’s
historical rebates entitlement and accumulated purchases to
date. Any significant estimation variances will be analysed
and taken into consideration in the current estimation and
assessment. Typically, the estimated consideration is not
constrained.

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using
the effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost or Mandatory FVOCI that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the assets while it is applied to the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) in case of credit-impaired financial assets.

Applicable before 1 January 2018

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably and on the
following bases:

Sale of goods is recognised on transfer of risks and rewards
of ownership, which generally coincides with the time when
the goods are delivered and title has been passed.

Service income of logistic services is recognised when
services are rendered.

Interest income from financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable.
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Contract assets and contract liabilities

If the Group performs by transferring goods or services
to a customer before the customer pays consideration
or before payment is due, the contract is presented as
a contract asset, excluding any amounts presented as a
receivable. Conversely, if a customer pays consideration, or
the Group has a right to an amount of consideration that is
unconditional, before the Group transfers a good or service
to the customer, the contract is presented as advance
payments from customers when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). A receivable is
the Group's right to consideration that is unconditional or
only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

For a single contract or a single set of related contracts,
either a net contract asset or a net advance payment from
customers is presented. Contract assets and advance
payments from customers of unrelated contracts are not
presented on a net basis.

It is common for the Group to receive from the customer
the whole or some of the contractual payments before the
goods are delivered (i.e. the timing of revenue recognition
for such transactions). The Group recognises an advance
payment from customers until it is recognised as revenue.
During that period, any significant financing components,
if applicable, will be included in the advance payment from
customers and will be expensed as accrued unless the
interest expense is eligible for capitalisation.

Given that the Group applies the practical expedient in
paragraph 121(a) of HKFRS 15, the transaction price
allocated to the performance obligations that are unsatisfied
(or partially unsatisfied) at the end of the reporting period
have an original expected duration of one year or less is not
disclosed.
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(n) Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
("functional currency”). The Company's functional currency
is United States Dollar (“US$") and majority of its subsidiaries
have Renminbi ("RMB") as their functional currency. The
consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB,
which is the Company’s presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in profit or loss.

The results and financial position of all the Group’s
entities that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency (“foreign operations”) are translated
into the presentation currency as follows:

(@  Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the end of the reporting period;

(b)  Income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at the weighted average exchange rates;

(©)  All resulting exchange differences arising from the
above translation and exchange differences arising
from a monetary item that forms part of the Group's
net investment in a foreign operation are recognised
as a separate component of equity;
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Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d)  On the disposal of a foreign operation, which includes
a disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foreign
operation, a partial disposal involving the loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign
operation of which the retained interest is no longer
equity-accounted for, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to the foreign operation
that is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the separate component of equity is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the gain
or loss on disposal is recognised.

(e)  On the partial disposal of the thee Group's interest in
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation which
does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences recognised in the
separate component of equity is re-attributed to the
non-controlling interests in that foreign operation and
are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and,
where applicable, costs of conversion and other costs
that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition, is calculated using
the weighted average cost method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.
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(p)

(q)

Impairment of other assets, other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess
whether there is any indication that its property, plant
and equipment, intangible assets, interest in associates,
interest in joint ventures and prepaid lease payments may be
impaired or impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may be reduced. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated, based on the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the smallest group of assets that generates cash
flows independently (i.e. a CGU).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a CGU is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset or CGU is reduced to its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised as an expense immediately.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the carrying
amount of the asset or CGU that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversal of impairment losses is recognised as income
in profit or loss immediately.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on
the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, that
are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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eEHE (r) Operating leases

B E 2B AR A B ] & Rk B Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks

HHARRBZHEE  BIEA and rewards of ownership to the lessee are classified as

HEMESR HEHRECH operating leases. Rentals payable and receivables under

XN EEBHEE 2 HERA operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-

NESERNEREER - &8 line basis over the lease term of the relevant lease. Lease

ME MR P RHHEE DY incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an

FHEEERETRRAEEREF integral part of the net consideration agreed for the use

BB B - B M of the leased asset. Contingent rentals are recognised

SRIRBEE ST HRENER as expenses in the accounting period in which they are

ARR incurred.

BB (s) Government grants

HEHB B AERESR Government grants represent incentive grants from the

ARERLSE NEREBFMKE relevant PRC authorities in respect of the running of

HR BB B B0 PR 2 = R o business by the Group in certain development zones and to
encourage the furtherance of such business.

I 46 B = 1E A & IR M B E A Government grants are recognised at their fair value where

WIS % & B A 75 & BB B there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received

HRERERAREBEAK 8 and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the

ZEMPRFXIER - BILE grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income

e A EMEEBF N over the years necessary to match the grant on a systematic

YW R AW E - A EE basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where

TEMERNAE - EZEBHEE the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a

EE@RE  RABEDEHER deferred income account and is released to profit or loss

BEEWAAF - WAESESER over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal

BESHREEEENTEAE annual instalments.

AFBHREBEEREPERAK

Ao

BIER (t) Employee benefits

(THE S a1 Short term employee benefits
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Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost
of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.
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(®)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement scheme are recognised as expenses in profit or
loss as incurred and are reduced by contributions forfeited
by those employees who leave the scheme prior the
contributions are vested fully in those employees. The assets
of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund.

Defined benefit plans

The Group's obligation in respect of defined benefit plans
is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the
ultimate cost of benefit that employees have earned in
return for their services in the current and prior periods,
which is discounted to determine the present value of those
benefits.

The calculation of the obligation is based on the
recommendations of the independent qualified actuaries
using the projected unit credit method annually. Service cost
and interest expense on the net defined benefit liability are
recognised in profit or loss. Current services cost is measured
as the increase in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation resulting from employee service in the current
period. Past service cost is measured as the change in the
present value of the defined benefit obligation resulted
from a plan amendment or curtailment and is recognised in
profit or loss. Interest expense for the period is determined
by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined
benefit obligation at the beginning of the reporting period
to the defined benefit liability. The discount rate is the
yield at the end of the reporting period on government
bonds that have the currency and terms consistent with the
currency and estimated term of the obligations.

Gain or loss on settlement is measured as the difference
between a) the present value of the defined benefit
obligation being settled and b) any payments made by the
Group in connection with the settlement. It is recognised
when the settlement occurs.
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BEIRFAE) (t) Employee benefits (Continued)

REEFIEE () Defined benefit plans (Continued)

HAERKEAEFE 2 EHER Remeasurements arising from defined benefit retirement
H b 2 U 2 3R A I BN plans are recognised in other comprehensive income and
MiEERAN - EMERERE are reflected in equity immediately. Remeasurements
A rEIEE W& (TRE comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan
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FEFKIR)  UREELRE (L net defined benefit liability (asset)) and any change in the
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DROBARINERZRS (u) Share-based payment transactions
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Equity-settled transactions

The Group’s employees, including directors, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered services in
exchange for shares or rights over shares. The cost of such
transactions with employees is measured by reference to
the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.
The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as a staff cost with a corresponding increase in
a share-based payment reserve within equity. The fair value
is determined using the binomial model taking into account
any market conditions and non-vesting conditions.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the vesting conditions are to be fulfilled,
ending on the date on which the entitlement of relevant
employees to the award is no longer conditional on the
satisfaction of any non-market vesting conditions ("”vesting
date”). During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest ultimately is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior
periods is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of
review, with a corresponding adjustment to the reserve
within equity.
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(u)

(v)

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)
Equity-settled transactions (Continued)

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment reserve
will be transferred to share premium account. When the
share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Share-based payment transactions in which the Company
grants share options to subsidiaries’ employees are
accounted for as an increase in value of interest in
subsidiaries in the Company’s statement of financial position
which is eliminated on consolidation, with a corresponding
credit to the share-based payment reserve within equity.

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the year as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, any deferred tax arises from initial recognition
of goodwill, or other asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss is not recognised.
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(v)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax assets and
liabilities arising from investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from such
investment properties are measured based on the expected
manner as to how the property will be recovered.

The deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and
credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on interest in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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(w) Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group:

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) Has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) Has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) Is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.
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(w) Related parties (Continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies: (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which

it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be

influenced by, that person in their dealings with the Group

and include:

(a)

(b)

(0

that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;

and

dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or

domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes

subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes

subsidiaries of the joint venture.
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Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The Company’s executive directors, who
are responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, have been
identified as the chief operating decision-makers that make
strategic decisions.

Future changes in HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new/
revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the current
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year, which the Group has not early adopted.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 20752017 Cycle ™"

HKFRS 16
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 9
Amendments to HKASs 1 and 8
Amendments to HKFRS 3
HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Leases "

Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments!"

Employee benefits [

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures'”

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation!"

Definition of Material ?!

Definition of a Business !

Insurance Contracts ¥

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®
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(y) EBUBREEARRZEH(E) (y) Future changes in HKFRSs (Continued)

m MR2019F1A1BE 2% H m Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
IR BRI A R 2019

@ HR2020F 1 A1BE 2% H @ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
IR BRI A R 2020

Gl 7 OF B8 3 A 52202041 A Bl Effective for acquisitions that occur on or after the beginning
H sk 2 1% & 187 46 & 5 /Z 57 of the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January
BE 2020

@ R22021F1A1BE 2% H @ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
IR BRI A R 2021

&l AR A HEE Bl The effective date to be determined

B& T ST L& S B 7% 3R 5 2 R
F 1655 - NAREFTEFR
REA M ITE] BT BB
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BB BHREERE165% - 1
g
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AN RIEI A E —
RABMREAGFERE 175
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ABHEEEAE RN 12168 A WK
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BEEEK - Lo BREME (L
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ABEEE - BIBWLTE - B
BERE BEEBSEER
FI175%  AEERRDEAK
EHENE TYENHEERS
BRI R B SR E LR E 16
RERAREECAEREESR
BEEERENTEP  ERR
BIEX - WER - AMFEH 5
TERREENMEESERE
R HPEEREHNEFTE
BHEAT2EETARNRER
BEFENF17RERDH
MEaHERST - KRLillg?
SN TEERBR BB RS 2ERIE
165 BBE T HAEER
REBRR - MBRBARES
MEEETATLE -

Except for HKFRS 16 as set out below, the directors of the
Company do not anticipate that the adoption of the new/
revised HKFRSs in future periods will have any material
impact on the Group'’s financial information.

HKFRS 16: Leases

HKFRS 16 significantly changes the lessee accounting by
replacing the dual model under HKAS 17 with a single
model which requires a lessee to recognise right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for the rights and obligations
created by leases with a term of more than 12 months,
unless the underlying assets is of low value. Besides, among
other changes, it requires enhanced disclosures to be
provided by lessees and lessors. Based on the preliminary
assessment, the management is of the opinion that the
leases of certain properties by the Group which are currently
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17 will trigger
the recognition of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in
accordance with HKFRS 16. In subsequent measurement,
depreciation (and, if applicable, impairment loss) and interest
will be recognised on the right-of-use assets and the lease
liabilities respectively, of which the amount in total for each
reporting period is not expected to be significantly different
from the periodic operating lease expenses recognised
under HKAS 17. Apart from the effects as outlined above,
it is not expected that HKFRS 16 will have a material impact
on the future financial position, financial performance and
cash flows of the Group upon adoption.
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(y)

Future changes in HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16: Leases (Continued)

The Group plans to elect to use the modified retrospective
approach for the adoption of HKFRS 16 and will recognise
the cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment
to the opening balance of equity at 1 January 2019 and will
not restate the comparative information.

As set out in Note 47(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, at 31 December 2018, the total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases of the Group in respect of office premises amounted
to approximately RMB841,810,000. The management of
the Company does not expect the adoption of HKFRS 16 as
compared with the current accounting policy would result in
significant impact on the Group’s financial performance but
it is expected that the Group has to separately recognise the
interest expenses on the lease liabilities and the depreciation
expense on the right-of use assets, and that certain portion
of the future minimum lease payments under the Group's
operating leases will be required to be recognised in the
Group’s consolidated statements of financial position as
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities. The Group will also
be required to re-measure the lease liabilities upon the
occurrence of certain events such as a change in the lease
term and recognise the amount of the re-measurement
of the lease liabilities as an adjustment to the right-of-use
assets. In addition, payments for the principal portion of the
lease liabilities will be presented within financing activities in
the Group's consolidated statements of cash flows.
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Adoption of New/Revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new/revised HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group.
Of these, the changes in accounting policy relevant to the
consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Amendments to HKAS 40: Transfer of Investment Property

The amendments clarify that, to transfer to or from, investment
properties, there must be a change in use. A change in use would
involve (a) an assessment of whether a property meets, or has
ceased to meet, the definition of investment property; and (b)
supporting evidence that a change in use has occurred.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2: Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment Transactions

The amendments provide requirements on the accounting for the
effects of vesting and non-vesting conditions on the measurement
of cash-settled share-based payments; share-based payment
transactions with a net settlement feature for withholding tax
obligations; and a modification to the terms and conditions of
a share-based payment that changes the classification of the
transaction from cash-settled to equity-settled.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle:

HKAS 28 — Measuring an associate or joint venture or its
subsidiaries at fair value

The amendments clarify that the election to measure associates
or joint ventures at fair value or retain the fair value measurement
applied by investment entity associates or joint ventures can be
made separately for each associate or joint venture at the relevant
date.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Adoption of New/Revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HK(FRIC)- Int 22: Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration

The Interpretation clarifies that, in determining the spot exchange
rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or
income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to advance consideration,
the date of the transaction is the date on which an entity initially
recognised the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability
arising from the advance consideration.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
HKFRS 9: Financial instruments

The following terms are used in these consolidated financial
statements:

e  FVPL: fair value through profit or loss.

e FVOCI: fair value through other comprehensive income.

e Designated FVOCI: equity instruments designated as at
FVOCI.

e Mandatory FVOCI: debt instruments measured at FVOCI.

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018. It introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities,
impairment for financial assets and hedge accounting.
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Adoption of New/Revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 9: Financial instruments (Continued)

In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS 9,

comparative information has not been restated and the Group

has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively to financial instruments that

existed at 1 January 2018 (i.e. the date of initial application),

except as described below:

(a

The following assessments are made on the basis of
facts and circumstances that existed at the date of initial
application:

() the determination of the business model within which
a financial asset is held;

(i) the designation of financial assets or financial liabilities
at FVPL or, in case of financial assets, at Designated
FVOCI; and

(i)  the de-designation of financial assets or financial

liabilities at FVPL.

The above resulting classification shall be applied
retrospectively.

If, at the date of initial application, determining whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition would require undue cost or effort, a
loss allowance is recognised at an amount equal to lifetime
ECL at each reporting date until the financial instrument is
derecognised unless that financial instrument is low credit
risk at a reporting date.

For investments in equity instruments that were measured
at cost under HKAS 39, the instruments are measured at fair
value at the date of initial application.

The following table summaries the impact of transition to HKFRS

9 on reserves and retained profits at 1 January 2018:
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Reclassification

Adoption of New/Revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 9: Financial instruments (Continued)

At 1 January 2018

()

RESMERE RESHERRE

(FI§EmE) (“~PIEEE]) RERM
Investment Investment
revaluation revaluation

reserve reserve

(recycling) (non-recycling)  Retained profits

AREFT ARETT ARETT

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(158,608) 10,458 148,150
(158,608) 10,458 148,150

Classification and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has no significant effect on the
classification and measurement of the Group’s financial
liabilities.

The following table reconciles the original measurement
categories and carrying amounts under HKAS 39 to the
new measurement categories and carrying amounts under
HKFRS 9 for each class of the Group's financial assets as at 1
January 2018.
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Financial assets
HEES

Investment funds

BAFES - Eh

Equity securities, listed

BAFES - FELE™M

Equity securities, unlisted

AES - £

Equity securities, listed

& W B K

Trade receivables

FEA RO H A B U RIR
Repayment and other
receivables

ReMReFEY

Cash and cash equivalents
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(iii)
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Adoption of New/Revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 9: Financial instruments (Continued)

(i) Classification and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities (Continued)

FTEER
Measurement category

BB GEHER]
%3958
Under HKAS 39

AfHE

BAREAE

Available for sale,

at fair value

AfHE

BAREAE

Available for sale,

at fair value

AHHE
WA E

Available for sale,

at cost

AHEE
WAET B

Available for sale,

at cost
Amortised cost

Amortised cost

Amortised cost

BEMBHRE
ZERIZE 95
Under HKFRS 9

FVPL

FVPL

8 7F FVOCI

Designated FVOCI

8 7F FVOCI

Designated FVOCI

FVPL

FVPL

Amortised cost

Amortised cost

Amortised cost

RREE

Carrying amount

BAGETER
%395

Under HKAS 39
AREFT
RMB’000

504,359

110,722

21,971

1,474

1,636,385

4,599,397

10,284,889

BB WS
£BIFI5%
Under HKFRS 9
AR¥FTT
RMB’000

504,359

110,722

21,971

1,474

1,636,385

4,599,397

10,284,889
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Adoption of New/Revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 9: Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Classification and measurement of financial assets and

financial liabilities (Continued)

Notes:

0

(ii)

At the date of initial application, the investment in investment
funds that were previously classified as available-for-sale
financial assets, at fair value are now reclassified to FVPL.
They do not meet the criteria to be classified as amortised
cost or Mandatory FVOCI or be designated as Designated
FVOCI in accordance with HKFRS 9, because their cash flows
do not represent solely payments of principal and interest
and they are not equity investments. Related fair value gains
of RMB148,150,000 as at 1 January 2018 were transferred
from the investment revaluation reserve (recycling) to
retained profits on 1 January 2018.

At the date of initial application, certain equity securities,
which amounted to RMB132,693,000, that were previously
classified as available-for-sale financial assets are now
classified as Designated FVOCI, because these equity securities
are neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to when
HKFRS 3 applies. Related fair value gains of RMB10,458,000
as at 1 January 2018 were transferred from the investment
revaluation reserve (recycling) to investment revaluation
reserve (non-recycling) on 1 January 2018. The remaining
equity securities with carrying amount of RMB1,474,000 at 1
January 2018 are classified as FVPL.



LA BTTEIRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE 201812 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2018

RS BTz BB EREER Adoption of New/Revised HKFRSs (Continued)
(&)
BB BHEERFEIN - AT A HKFRS 9: Financial instruments (Continued)
() HEENTEEELNSEN (i)  Classification and measurement of financial assets and
FE(E) financial liabilities (Continued)
Biat - (&) Notes: (Continued)
(i) FZETHE EEIREHEK ARG (i) The item continued to be measured at amortised cost
B2 -AAREXRERARH because, at the date of initial application, the Group's business
B AEEZEBEX AR model is to hold these assets to collect the contractual
BREEENKBMEHNRS cash flows and the cash flows represent solely payments of
mE - MBAREEREKRK principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
BEASENASRFE - Impairment based on expected credit loss model on these
ERZEcREENTARE financial assets has no significant financial impacts.
Ef)gﬂéﬁ’”ﬂﬁﬂﬁlﬂ%ﬁ
VBT E
BBUBIREERFI159  KEEF HKFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers
BRI 2
BB GRS AE RIS 15 SR AV (E e HKFRS 15 replaces, among others, HKAS 18 and HKAS 11 which
BB EANFI18SHEEAEE specified the revenue recognition arising from sale of goods
STEAE R - Ao RlEAREEE and rendering of services and the accounting for construction
BEmREHEREmE SO BA#ER contracts respectively. HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive
NEESHNEFTRE - BEYK framework for revenue recognition and certain costs from
HHEAFISREL 2 EA AR contracts with customers. It also introduces a cohesive set of
RERREZFPEOE TR - disclosure requirements that would result in an entity providing
ZEAESIAT —RINEFTNEE users of financial statements with comprehensive information
Zk EHEEHERAAFPREED about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and
MBBREXEE2EHMNERBS & cash flows arising from the entity’s contracts with customers.

BEZPHAKMESHNKRATMIE
ERNME  #BE - BEMTEE

o

A B W E R E 1558 8 The adoption of HKFRS 15 does have significant impact on
EUHAREENRERREETARY the Group's revenue recognition. However, the application of
20T ERAEBAEMBREED HKFRS 15 results in the additional disclosures in note 6 to the
E1SRERGRAETBREMTR consolidated financial statements.
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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and judgements
are made by the management in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. They affect the application
of the Group’s accounting policies, reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made. They are
assessed on an on-going basis and are based on experience and
relevant factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Where
appropriate, revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period of revision and future periods, in case the revision also
affects future periods.

(i) Critical judgement in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors have
made in the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Loss allowance for ECL

The Group’s management estimates the loss allowance for
trade receivables by using various inputs and assumptions
including risk of a default and expected loss rate. The
estimation involves high degree of estimation and uncertainty
which is based on the Group'’s historical information, existing
market conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying amount of trade receivables. Details of
the key assumption and inputs used in estimating ECL are
set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.
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For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising
from investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the directors have reviewed the Group's
investment property portfolio and concluded that the
Group's investment properties are held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring
the Group's deferred taxation on investment properties, the
directors have determined that the presumption that the
carrying amounts of investment properties measured using
the fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is
rebutted. As a result, the Group has not recognised deferred
taxes on land appreciation taxes in respect of changes in fair
value of investment properties situated in the PRC but has
recognised deferred tax on income tax on the assumption
that these investment properties will be recovered through
use.

Deferred tax liabilities have not been provided for the
withholding tax that would be payable on the undistributed
earnings of certain entities of the Group in the PRC as
those earnings are not expected to be distributable in
the foreseeable future. Details of deferred tax liabilities
are disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP

(i)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payments

The directors review the residual value, useful lives and
depreciation/amortisation method of property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payments at the end of each
reporting period, through careful consideration with regards
to expected usage, wear-and-tear and potential technical
obsolescence to usage of the assets.

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the
directors have to assess whether an event has occurred that
may affect the asset value or such event affecting the asset
value has not been in existence. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amounts of the asset would be determined
by reference to value in use and fair value less costs of
disposal. Value in use is determined using the discounted
cash flow method. Owing to inherent risk associated with
estimations in the timing and magnitude of the future cash
flows and fair value less costs of disposal, the estimated
recoverable amount of the asset may be different from
its actual recoverable amount and profit or loss could be
affected by accuracy of the estimations.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

As described in notes 15 and 46 to the consolidated
financial statements, the valuation techniques applied by
various external parties for the level 2 and level 3 assets or
liabilities have been agreed with the management of the
Company. The management determined whether valuation
techniques and assumptions applied are appropriate to the
circumstances of the Group. The estimation of fair value of
level 3 assets included some assumptions not supported by
observable market prices or rates. Change in assumption
could affect the reported fair value of the assets in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Deferred tax assets

As at the end of the reporting period, deferred tax asset
of RMB 27,782,000 (2017: RMB27,782,000) in relation to
unused tax losses had been recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The recognition of the
deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient
profits or taxable temporary differences will be available
in the future. In cases where the actual future profits
generated are different from the original estimate, a
material recognition or reversal of deferred tax assets may
arise, after taking into account the utilisation of previously
unrecognised tax losses, which would be recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which such estimate is changed.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the
value in use of the CGUs to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected cash flows from the CGU and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. Details of the estimates
used to calculate the recoverable amount are given in note
19 to the consolidated financial statements.
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2018 2017
it AR¥FT AR T
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
RBE S IR & 28 Revenue from contracts with customers  6(a)
155 #E NI A within HKFRS 15
BEPERES 2 WS 60,607,190 58,885,364
mEMISRES 27Uz Revenue from other sources
—REREEEHE — Rental income from investment
#HE 2 WA properties 78,455 68,424
60,685,645 58,953,788
6(a) AEFENEEZREZZAS 6(a) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers
2018
HEaE R HERR Hitr CXl
Instant Instant
noodles  Beverages food Others Total
ARETFT AEETFT AREFT AREFT AREFZT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
TEERRBRH Major products and services
WERFREEM Sales on instant noodles 23,916,674 = = — 23,916,674
HEHNBER Sales on beverages — 35,312,931 — — 35,312,931
HERSER Sales on bakery = = 779,376 = 779,376
B R Transportation = = — 1,217,883 1,217,883
Hit Others = = = 778,925 778,925
23,916,674 35,312,931 779,376 1,996,808 62,005,789
R Less: Elimination (728) (1,823) (343) (1,395,705)  (1,398,599)
23,915,946 35,311,108 779,033 601,103 60,607,190
DE-E e o3 Timing of revenue
recognition:
EE B2 Recognised at a point in time 23,915,946 35,311,108 779,033 424 60,006,511
Bk 1325 Recognised over time = = = 600,679 600,679
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6(a) HEFEHNEEZREZAS 6(a) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
(%) customers (Continued)
2017
ikid #fm  AERm Hit At
Instant Instant
noodles Beverages food Others Total

ABBRTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETZT
RMB'000  RMB000 ~ RMB000  RMB000  RMB000

IEERRERH Major products and services

HEAFREMD Sales on instant noodles 22,620,155 — — — 22,620,155

SHEBURLE M Sales on beverages — 34,754,288 — — 34,754,288

HERSER Sales on bakery — — 859,011 — 859,011

B R Transportation — — — 933,447 933,447

Hity Others — — 742,524 742,524
22,620,155 34,754,288 859,011 1,675,971 59,909,425

ek = Less: Elimination (722) (1,345) (363)  (1,021,631)  (1,024,061)
22,619,433 34,752,943 858,648 654,340 58,885,364

DE-E g =3 Timing of revenue

recognition:
EX 2R Recognised at a point in time 22,619,433 34,752,943 858,648 18,583 58,249,607
BE R I 25 Recognised over time — — — 635,757 635,757
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The Company’s executive directors have been identified as
the chief operating decision-maker of the Group. The Group
has identified its operating segments and prepared segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the Company's executive directors for their decisions
about resources allocation to the Group’s business components
and review of these components’ performance. The Company'’s
executive directors consider the business principally from a
product perspective which forms a basis for business segment
information as over 99% of the Group's revenue and business are
conducted in the PRC from a geographical perspective. Business
reportable operating segments identified are instant noodles,
beverages, instant food and others. The segment of others
includes investment holding, properties investment for rental
purpose, logistics and supportive functions.

For the purposes of assessing the performance of the operating
segments and allocating resources between segments, the
executive directors assess the performance of reportable segments
based on profit (loss) for the year and profit (loss) before taxation,
share of results of associates and joint ventures and unallocated
income (expenses), net.

Segment assets include all assets with the exception of interest in
associates and joint ventures and unallocated assets which include
financial assets at FVPL and Designated FVOCI (2077: available-
for-sale financial assets). Segment liabilities include all liabilities
with the exception of employee benefit obligations.

Inter-segment sales are priced at cost plus profit margin. The
accounting policies of the reporting segments are the same as
the Group’s accounting policies as described in note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The geographical location of the Group's customers is based on
the location at which the goods are delivered. Over 99% of the
revenues from external customers of the Group are attributable to
customers located in the PRC, the place of domicile of the Group’s
operating entities. Meanwhile, all of the Group’s non-current
assets, other than financial assets at FVPL and Designated FVOCI
(2017 available-for-sale financial assets), are located in the PRC.

No revenue from a single external customer amounted to 10% or
more of the Group’s revenue.
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M2018F K 2017F 12 A31B 25 The segment information for the years ended 31 December 2018
FERT and 2017 is as follows:
ES T Business segment analysis
2018
Ak
HER FERR Inter-
Instant B Instant Hft  segment B
noodles  Beverages food Others elimination Total

ABRTFT ARETT AREFT ARKFT ARBETT AR¥FZ
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000

WE Revenue
HEEAMNESL ZIRE  Revenue from contract with
customers 23915946  35311,108 779,033 601,103 — 60,607,190

HEMAEES 2 Revenue from other sources _ _ 78,455 _ 78,455
DEE 2 Inter-segment revenue 728 1,823 343 1495337 (1,498,231) =
Pz Segment revenue 23,916,674  35312,931 779376 2174895  (1,498,231) 60,685,645

PHEE Segment result after finance

(BHREBER) costs 2,505,302 1,124,905 (8.271) 335,190 1497 3,958,623
EiEBENa R Share of results of associates

RER T%ﬁz and joint ventures 212 71,021 347 — — 71,580
) EEZ@?Z i Unallocated expenses, net = = (50,869) = (50,869)
BREAER (FE) Profit (Loss) before taxation 2,505,514 1,195,926 (7,924) 284,321 1497 3,979,334
B Taxation (800,387) (398,051) (4,135) (47,992) —  (1,250,565)
REEZHF(EE)  Profit (Loss) for the year 1,705,127 797,875 (12,059) 236,329 1497 2,728,769
B Assets
NHEE Segment assets 19,508,958 27,360,079 746,733 4,769,793 (771,501) 51,614,062
H”M AR Interest in associates = 127,725 = = = 127,725
RENAER Interest in joint ventures 399 650,509 47,835 = = 698,743
ﬂi YREE Unallocated assets 562,139
BEE Total assets 53,002,669
=l Liabilities
PEHERE Segment liabilities 8,181,378 14,704,521 231904 7,517,635  (1,360,636) 29,274,802
FEERE Unallocated liabilities 115,436
BeE Total liabilities 29,390,238
HER Other information
FEREH Depreciation and amortisation 716954 2,465,003 43,364 98,186 — 3323507
EXRY Capital expenditures 370,086 978,848 12,305 84,553 — 1,445,792
FEMA Interest income 201,172 158,004 4,113 15477 (30,378) 348,388
B Interest expenses — 180,131 — 271,929 (30,378) 421,682
nEx - BEREE Impairment loss of property,

ZRESE plant and equipment 280,274 340,672 = 4,900 = 625,346
HEMBARIFHE  Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries = (3,225) = 391,069 = 387,844
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XBIWAIW(E) Business segment analysis (Continued)
2017
Py
bt i Inter-
Instant #um FERM i segment Gh
noodles Beverages  Instant food Others  elimination Total
NREFT  ANREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
g Revenue
HEEANESZWE  Revenue from contract with
customers 22,619433 34,752,943 858,648 654,340 — 58,885,364
HEMREEEZME  Revenue from other sources - - - 68,424 - 68,424
ARz W Inter-segment revenue 72 1,345 363 1121347 (1,123,777) —
Pl Segment revenue 22,620,155 34,754,288 859,011 1,844,111  (1,123,777) 58,953,788
PHEE Segment result after finance
(BHREKER) costs 2,130,989 1,166,533 5,682 (35,738) 11,719 3279185
EiEBENa R Share of results of associates
EES and joint ventures 188 104,974 (3,982) — — 101,180
FABEZFRA Unallocated income, net - - - 12,371 - 12,371
BRBLATER (B8) Profit (Loss) before taxation 2,131,177 1,271,507 1,700 (23,367) 1,719 3392736
#A Taxation (640,633)  (427,135) (4,006) (65,594) —  (1,137,368)
KEEZGRF(BB)  Profit (Loss) for the year 1,490,544 844,372 (2,306) (88,961) 11,719 2,255,368
B Assets
PEHEE Segment assets 19,867,771 28,311,010 886,653 8267381  (4,653444) 52,679,371
e NAER Interest in associates — 119,320 1,248 — — 120,568
AENEIER Interest in joint ventures 188 613,027 47,476 — — 660,691
RAREE Unallocated assets 638,526
BEE Total assets 54,099,156
=1 Liabilities
AEHaE Segment liabilties 8,637,330 15,878,922 357836 11,896,646  (5066,348) 31,703,886
RAREE Unallocated liabilities 101,226
Bk Total liabilities 31,805,112
Hirgs Other information
FEREH Depreciation and amortisation 733276 2,720,806 47517 123,777 — 3625376
EXREY Capital expenditures 334,073 627,59 7,310 364,881 - 1,333,860
WA Interest income 217,465 92,990 2,439 25,889 (67,997) 270,786
BT Interest expenses 21,020 236,369 25 265,451 (67,997) 454,868
nE - BRERRE Impairment loss of property,
REEE plant and equipment 69,518 154,503 — — — 224,021
HEMBARFIE  Netgain on disposal of subsidiaries - 43725 — — — 43725
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2018 2017
AR¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FBHA Interest income 348,388 270,786
2018 2017
i3 AR¥FT ARBFIT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
WA(Z ) Income (Expenses):
& R mn 2 W as Gain on sales of scrapped materials 154,535 145,319
HEAHEEMEE Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
2 W financial assets — 21,080
WARBEYIEKEEZ  Change in fair value of financial
EEJ’EEE% BEEZ assets at FVPL, net
NAEREFHE (49,675) —
Txéf MEMEAQAEZES Change in fair value of investment
properties 15 13,000 46,223
BAREEYEREEZ  Change in fair value of financial
FREemats liabilities at FVPL, net
f&f@@n@b@%ﬁ 33 40,115 126,349
WAREBEYIEKEEEZ  Dividend income from financial
FRESMEEL assets at FVPL
BRI A 6,500 —
HEMBA R 2 F R Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries 43 387,844 43,725
BT B Government grants 166,140 89,241
BTt E—REE QA Gain on re-measurement of an
RYEB A E 2 W associate to fair value at
acquisition date — 7,381
HEYE - WERHREN  Loss on disposal of property,
B ALEEZEE  plant and equipment and
prepaid lease payments (86,607) (15,337)
fE 4B F 5 Exchange loss, net (46,922) (6,619)
Hith Others 219,044 262,364
803,974 719,726
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R (GEA) THIEB R -

This is stated after charging (crediting):

2018 2017
AR¥FT ARMEFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B%E A Finance costs
A5 FRBRHIERE ZRTT Interest on bank and other borrowings

REME 2 B wholly repayable within five years 392,570 421,627
AR5 FUAERBER L Interest on bank and other borrowings

BITEMERZFESE  wholly repayable over five years 33,049 37,750

425,619 459,377
B BB ERLFIA Less: Borrowing costs capitalised into
M - WS KRB property, plant and equipment
INEFIHE R xR at weighted average
53.89% capitalisation rate of 3.89%
(2017: 3.45%) (2017:3.45%) (3,937) (4,509)
421,682 454,868
2018 2017
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Hitig g Other items
BIA(BIEEEMS) ©  Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration):
e K Salaries and wages 6,026,909 6,136,410
NHEREERMD I Equity-settled share-based payment
Z IR expenses 32,799 44,234

RIRBRA Pension costs:

REHERETE Defined contribution plans 686,986 611,476
ATEFETE Defined benefit plans 10,352 11,715
ZERAE - Auditor’s remuneration:

EZER Audit fee 9,297 9,962
BEEFERA Cost of inventories* 41,958,429 41,615,827
e Depreciation 3,210,324 3,513,679
+ b FE A (B 2 B Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 103,693 106,618
ERE ERH Amortisation of intangible assets

(EBERD#EAA) (included in distribution costs) 9,490 5,079
ME - HERREZ Impairment loss of property, plant and

REEE(BEREM equipment (included in other operating

KEBRAN) expenses) 625,846 224,021
BEYEERORK Minimum lease payments in respect of

HERK operating lease charges for premises 432,140 412,579
i’ EEFEKXF BEFAREE # Cost of inventories includes RMB4,617,243,000 (2017:

4,617,243,0007C(2017 © A & #
4,832,550,0007T) 8 8 T K7 - #7
B LA EES B REEY
BB A B BII A1 5 B R FE
LA TE B HIAEBE A o

RMB4,832,550,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation,
amortisation of prepaid lease payments and operating lease charges
of premises, which amount is also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above.
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The aggregate amounts of emoluments received or receivable by
the Company’s directors and chief executive officer are as follows:

2018
ek
HitB & AR 2
ik Salaries A ZHAE
Directors’ and other Discretionary  Share-based &t
fees emoluments bonuses payments Total

ABBFT ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETZR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000

HITEE Executive directors;
BN Wei Ing-Chou 1,327 9,932 4,808 304 16,371
HELE—RD Junichiro Ida 531 212 = — 743
S0 Teruo Nagano 332 106 = = 438
BEA Wei Hong-Ming 332 1,919 475 949 3,675
RRER Koji Shinohara 332 212 = — 544
WEZE Lin Chin-Tang 332 212 = = 544
BUHHITEE - Independent non-executive
directors:
a8 Hsu Shin-Chun 332 106 = = 438
ZRIE Lee Tiong-Hock 332 80 = = 412
REE Hiromu Fukada 332 106 = = 438
T AE%E - Chief executive officer:
ZERE James Chun-Hsien Wei — 11,254 4,521 4,944 20,719
4,182 24,139 9,804 6,197 44,322

ZREM LA R2019F1 A1 BHE =
KRBITEEE -

MN2019F1 818 5 B M & 4 B
T RB BREBLEEZTAK
EEEF o

BEREEN2019FE1A 1A ES
TERABNITES °

Mr. Wei Ing-Chou resigned as an executive director of the
Company on 1 January 2019.

Mr. Wei Ing-Chou resigned and Mr. Wei Hong-Ming was
appointed as the chairman of the Group on 1 January 2019.

Mr. Wei Hong-Chen was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 1 January 2019.
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HTEE - Executive directors:
M Wei Ing-Chou
HHEE—E Junichiro Ida
REE Wu Chung-Yi
REELE Teruo Nagano
BEE Wei Hong-Ming
WRER Koji Shinohara
WEE Lin Chin-Tang

BUHHTEE - Independent non-executive

directors:
RIEH Hsu Shin-Chun
R Lee Tiong-Hock
i Hiromu Fukada

TR Chief executive officer:
ERE James Chun-Hsien Wei

MR2018F K 20179412 A31 B IEF
EtEESERSURSHFALTHES
B o

AEBERERDFEENSUREH
AEMAREEMAMEREES
MAREBEN EMERBESFTRK
ERALEHERE -

192 EMEZRRERAS
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2017
Fek
HtbBi & MRk % i
EEHS Salaries Te4T Z A
Directors' and other  Discretionary ~ Share-based At
fees  emoluments bonuses payments Total

AREFL  ARBTT ARETT ARETT AREFIL
RMB0OO  RMB'000  RMB000  RMBOOO  RMB000

1,366 7,045 1,550 - 9,961
539 216 - - 755
197 27 — — 224
337 108 - - 445
337 1,584 144 - 2,005
337 216 — — 553
140 162 - - 302
337 108 - - 445
337 81 — — 418
337 108 - - 445

- 13,227 1,457 9,951 24,635

4,264 22,882 3,151 9,951 40,248

No directors and five highest paid individuals have waived
emoluments in respect of the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2017.

No emoluments have been paid by the Group to the directors
and five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.



AEEBESEaRFALTBRREINE
F2017F 1y EF)RITH B
H-EMesBEaEN X R3IfLA
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e kEbBe
VAR £ 32 54 2 3008
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The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include one director (2077: one director) and
the chief executive officer whose emoluments are reflected in
the analysis presented above and three individuals (2077: three).

Details of the emoluments of the remaining three individuals

(2017: three) are as follows:

Salaries and other emoluments
Share-based payments

TE4T Discretionary bonuses

T362(20179F - 3 )&xm# AL

2B AERINT

B <48 5l

ANR#6,773,601 TZ AR
7,196,950 7t.(8,000,001 B TE
8,500,000 7T)
AR#7,196,951 TZE AR
7,620,3007t(8,500,001 B TE
9,000,000 7T)

AR 8,467,001 TZE AR
8,890,350 7L(10,000,001 7T
% 10,500,000 7T)

AR# 11,853,801 TE AR
12,277,150 7t(14,000,001 87T
% 14,500,000 7T)

AR 12,277,151 TEAREE
12,700,500 70(14,500,001 /87T
% 15,000,000 7T)

individuals as follows:

Emoluments band

RMB6,773,601 to RMB7,196,950

(HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000)

RMB7,196,951 to RMB7,620,300

(HK$8,500,001 to HK$9,000,000)

RMBS8,467,001 to RMB8,890,350

(HK$10,000,001 to HK$10,500,000)

RMB11,853,801 to RMB12,277,150
(HK$14,000,001 to HK$14,500,000)

RMB12,277,151 to RMB12,700,500
(HK$14,500,001 to HK$15,000,000)

2018 2017
AREFT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
12,856 16,497
7,766 9,190
7,625 1,970
28,247 27,657

The emoluments were paid to the three (2077: three) highest paid

Number of individuals

2018 2017
— 1

1 1

1 R

1 R

— 1

3 3
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2018 2017
AR¥FT ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REEBIE— Current tax — PRC Enterprise income tax
PECEMER
REZE Current year 1,196,356 961,470
LARTF R Z 5T 6 Over provision in prior year (74) (4,179)
1,196,282 957,291
ERERLIE (M £ 36) Deferred taxation (Note 36)
EERERE 2 Origination and reversal of temporary
TR ERFE differences, net (92,656) 49,243
BRAEERPEZ Effect of withholding tax on the net
Bt & A R AT 55 AL R R distributable earnings of the Group's
HER TRIRE PRC subsidiaries 146,939 130,834
54,283 180,077
REETIABER Total tax charge for the year 1,250,565 1,137,368

MEeERBSY M ARARAERZ
YA BAE IR IR -

RRAEEZRRIREE2018F &
2017 F WA B\ AT fa] B 78 715 B FE &R
BMAHE BtER2BEAFNSHE
REE -

hEKREZHEBARAENRED
EMEMAETEME RB25% (2017
F:25%)  RIBMEE - BHEEE
BB R BB S B HOCERIR
N e 78 30 K B B B RE B A B R
FERER (B BL[2011]585%) -
iz B A B K Bee 78 3P #b [ ([ 78 26 4
EDMBERSEEEENIFRE
¥ HEBEEXEFERALED
HEBIWART0% A ER - FE20114F
E2020FFE - WIL15% EET
EHWEEMRET Al X&E
RS E 2 B AR RER15%
(2017%F  15%) »

BREEERERLR

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP

The Cayman Islands levies no tax on the income of the Company and
the Group.

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided as the Group’s entities
had no assessable profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax for the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

The statutory PRC Enterprise income tax for the PRC subsidiaries is 25%
(2017: 25%). According to the Tax Relief Notice (Cai Shui [2011] no.
58) on the Grand Development of Western Region jointly issued by the
Ministry of Finance, the State Administration of Taxation and China
Customs, foreign investment enterprises located in the western region
of the PRC (the “Western Region”) with over 70% of principal revenue
generated from the encouraged business activities are entitled to a
preferential income tax rate of 15% for 10 years from 1 January 2011
to 31 December 2020. Accordingly, certain subsidiaries located in the
Western Region are entitled to an income tax rate of 15% (2077: 15%).
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NE [ 2 B B AT m F B AN [ AR I8 The Group's profit before taxation is reconciled to the tax expense
HERNT - for the year as follows:
BlEB X 2 BIR Reconciliation of tax expense
2018 2017
AR®TFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R B4 A Profit before taxation 3,979,334 3,392,736
RHBUEERE 25% 2 Income tax at statutory tax rate of 25%

TIE(20174F - 25%) in the PRC (2017: 25%) 994,834 848,184
JEREEE AL ARIELE  Share of results of associates and joint ventures (17,895) (25,295)
EE Non-deductible expenses 245,861 185,940
R R BA Tax exempt revenue (43,458) (57,609)
RIERHIBR B Unrecognised tax losses 115,220 173,651
RERGRER Unrecognised temporary differences 8,936 5,055
R IBEW AR IIERE  Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (154,642) (58,591)
MAEEPPEZM B AR Effect of withholding tax on the distributable

Al B A 2 TR profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries

(K15t 36) (note 36) 146,939 130,834
EEREREEY Effect of withholding tax on capital gain arising

TEIRIGERIIE from re-organisation of group structure — 28,000
R Eb @ ) Effect of tax relief on PRC subsidiaries in

M B AR 2 FEAUR % Western Region (19,542) (30,542)
VAR B 25T BB Over provision in prior years (74) (4,179)
Hith Others (25,614) (58,080)
NEFERIA Tax expense for the year 1,250,565 1,137,368
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ARARBRERRAFEREZR
g8

RERGRER KBRS
FREER3.20E
(2017 : ZREER
2.492(l)

EERABEIR RIS
TR E B 3.20 EAL
(2017 « #)

M2019F3 825 M & =& -
EERARREIREERE
B3 20 MU R R BT
LA 3203l - sk ENR
BEMEBHANFERRRE
BERB - ¥R BB ZE2019
FIR2ANBIEFENRKER
oo WEFERRIRE RAKHRK
BREGMBRARP TR A
FERAR S ©

RAF R ERIREFBR
—HMREETARAKRRZIE

SRR

RAFARLE RREBR
AIFERBREA
TR E @A 2.49 L
(2017 4F : R EER
1.58 %)
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(a)

(2017: nil) per ordinary share

Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable to

Final dividend proposed after the end of
the reporting period of US3.20 cents
(2017: US2.49 cents) per ordinary share

Special dividend proposed after the end of
the reporting period of US3.20 cents

the year:
2018 2017
AR FTT ABRETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
1,231,661 909,539
1,231,660 —
2,463,321 909,539

At meeting held on 25 March 2019, the directors
recommended the payment of a special dividend and a final
dividend of US3.20 cents and US3.20 cents per ordinary
share respectively. The proposed special dividend and
final dividend will be accounted for as an appropriation
of reserves in the year ending 31 December 2019 if it is
approved at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
The proposed special dividend and final dividend have not
been recognised as dividend payables in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable
to the previous financial year, approved and paid during the

Final dividend in respect of the previous
financial year, approved and paid
during the year, of US2.49 cents
(2017: US1.58 cents) per ordinary share

year:
2018 2017
AR FTT AR
RMB’000 RMB'000
909,539 580,849
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T AEEREREF &GRS E S The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is as
Mzzt8 - follows:
(@) BREA&EF (a) Basic earnings per share
2018 2017
AR#FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RNAFIRREANFENS Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
AN (ARETFT) (RMB’000) 2,463,321 1,819,077
EETE R Ik Weighted average number of
R E (TR ordinary shares ('000) 5,617,202 5,605,427
FRREARFEF (ARE D) Basic earnings per share (RMB cents) 43.85 32.45
(b) BREHEF (b) Diluted earnings per share
2018 2017
AR¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

RATEFNEMEREF  Profit attributable to ordinary equity

(AR%FT) shareholders (RMB’000) 2,463,321 1,819,077
BB T Weighted average number of ordinary
(#58)(TH) shares (diluted) ('000)
SETEBR Weighted average number of ordinary
AN 15 2 shares 5,617,202 5,605,427
RNATIERERTE 22 Effect of the Company's share option
scheme 10,129 5,337

BRTESR#E#EEF 2  Weighted average number of ordinary

TR N T 8 shares for the purpose of calculating
diluted earnings per share 5,627,331 5,610,764
GREEZEM(ARES)  Diluted earnings per share (RMB cents) 43.77 32.42
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REBZREEFRHERER
EBWEREHSULAENL
LR EHM A PR SN
BI7TIE = P #% 1678 5% & 1686
5% o

N EEAEMFERE

HEREMEFBENAAER
R AEBERBRIEREE
BERMGEMETHE  BHE
BHBYEXEERMNMEER
BYEE BYBENMGHER
M ERLGARE - &E
AR B AOERFH - IMEE
hoEBEYEMARIELEML
MG HEE2ERELEM
ZER MR ENR R BUD R
MEMEBBERFEMS - &
RAIRMERNELL ERTIESE
EEMZILEAN AU EE
EREakaER  BEREM
1B BT P A BL AR FE M) X B A Y
FERZFHBREM - £fbE
MEXFEER  MENRS
EEEREREBAAR -

AEBZREEFEHENRR
BEAEIBEEQAABENS
3R RAFEARNREIEHR
BEERMISHRAGI3EL -

BREEERERLR

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP

(a)

2018 2017
AR¥FT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

& At fair value
) At beginning of the year 1,106,000 1,060,000
Disposal — (223)
Epd-£3 Change in fair value 13,000 46,223
At the end of the reporting period 1,119,000 1,106,000

The Group’s investment properties, which consist of
commercial properties and car parks together with their
respective prepaid lease payments, are situated in No. 1678
and No. 1686 Wuzhong Road, Minhang District, Shanghai,
the PRC.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

In estimating the fair values of investment properties, it is
the Group's policy to engage an independent professional
qualified valuer to perform the valuation. The management
works closely with the independent professional qualified
valuer to establish the appropriate valuation technique
and inputs to the model. The valuations have been arrived
at using income capitalisation approach. In the valuation,
the market rentals of all lettable units of the commercial
properties are assessed by reference to the rentals achieved
in the lettable units as well as other lettings of similar
properties in the neighbourhood. The capitalisation rate
adopted is made by reference to the yield rates observed by
the valuer for similar properties in the locality and adjusted
based on the valuer’'s knowledge of the factors specific to
the respective properties. In estimating the fair value of the
properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their
current use.

The fair value measurements for the Group's investment
properties are categorised into Level 3 in the fair value
hierarchy based on the inputs to valuation techniques used.
There was no transfer into or out of Level 3 during the year.
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N EEEMFGRIZE)

FRAREUERFHWEBEZ A
BEREBAEEMT

2018

BREMEME
Investment
properties

ERYEM
EES
Commercial
properties and
car parks

RERLHREIEGA
Valuation techniques
and key input(s)

W &A%
Income capitalisation
approach

IBHA
The key inputs are:
GRS EIE R

Reversion yield

(b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

(Continued)

The following table gives information on significant

unobservable inputs to the valuation of investment

properties:

2018

BEATABASHNE@A
Significant unobservable
input(s)

ZRIESUABR L BRYE
LEESHRAMNGENEEES
Mm% He s XFER500% %
4.50% °

Reversion yield, taking into account
the capitalisation of the rental
derived from the existing tenancies
with due allowance for reversionary
rental potential of the commercial
properties and car parks of 5.00%
and 4.50% respectively.

AABRG @ AR
AREENBEE
Relationship of
unobservable inputs to
fair value

PrANERENE®REER
R goREMEHMED
AYEEFEBTE Rz
TRAA o

An increase in the reversion
yield used would result in

a decrease in the fair value

of the investment properties,
and vice versa.
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(b) AARBEFFEMHEREGE)

REMREHE EEROREEAA

Investment Valuation techniques
properties and key input(s)
EA=EE

Daily market rent

BREEERERLR
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

(b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

(Continued)

ERFABRAGHNEA
Significant unobservable
input(s)

BAYX

ZREIRME  mERERYERY
ERFZRMERNEE  whmk
FH - §HMSASF] ARAEA
HEFEY I AEARE663TE
AR®11.067T °

Commercial properties

Daily market rents, taking into
account the time, location, and
individual factors such as frontage
and

size, between the comparable and
the

properties, ranging from RMB6.63 to
RMB11.06 per square meter per day
on lettable area basis.

FEg

ZRIEME B RERYEEY
EARgHEMENEE - wAmK
PR GEEEMNEATSEES
AIRAR¥24.827T

Car parks

Daily market rents, taking into
account of the time, location, and
individual factors, such as frontage
and size, between the comparable
and the properties of RMB24.82 per
unit for car park spaces.

AABAS LR AR
DABENBE
Relationship of
unobservable inputs to
fair value

FrANEEmEEEER L
ogcREURHEND
TEE#ERLA RZK

An increase in the daily market
rent used would result in an
increase in the fair value of the
investment properties, and vice
versa.
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N EEEMFGRIZE)

FRAREUERFHWEBEZ A
BEREBAEEMT

2017
REMELE RERLHREEGA
Investment Valuation techniques
properties and key input(s)
BRAMENEES KRRENX
Commercial Income capitalisation
properties and approach
car parks

IEBA:

The key inputs are:

RHRAERE

Reversion yield

M5 AH

Monthly market rent

(b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

(Continued)

The following table gives information on significant

unobservable inputs to the valuation of investment

properties:

2017

BERTABASGH NG A
Significant unobservable
input(s)

ZRIMERAER  NERBESH
ERAAEMEERSOR Hela®
TE/5.25% [4.5% ¢

Reversion yield, taking into account
the capitalisation of the rental
derived from the existing tenancies
with due allowance for reversionary
rental potential of the properties

and car parks of 5.25% and 4.5%
respectively.

BAYE

ZRINE SERERNERNELRY
ZENENRZ  pARRFPE  §AM
HReRRTHBAETETAREA
RE198TEARK 2827 ¢
Commercial properties

Monthly market rents, taking into
account the time, location, and
individual factors such as frontage
and size, between the comparable
and the properties, ranging from
RMB198 to RMB282 per square
meter per month on lettable

area basis.

AABRE @ AR
AREENBEE
Relationship of
unobservable inputs to
fair value

MANERENEREER LA
eoRENEHENDTEENE
BT R2TA -

An increase in the reversion
yield used would result in

a decrease in the fair value

of the investment properties,
and vice versa.

FRMNEATSESERL &
SREUERENLDTERNER
EA RZRR

An increase in the monthly
market rent used would
result in an increase in the
fair value of the investment
properties, and vice versa.
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(b) RAAEEFEMTHREE) (b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes
(Continued)
AABAS LR AR
DREENRE
REMEWE HERGREEHA ERATABASHOEA Relationship of
Investment Valuation techniques Significant unobservable unobservable inputs to
properties and key input(s) input(s) fair value
FE5
ZRIKHE tHREBRNEFENER S
ZENENRR  mAmRFPE  BRARF
BuMBATERETAARE T2
Car parks
Monthly market rents, taking into
account of the time, location, and
individual factors, such as frontage and
size, between the comparable and the
properties of RMB722 per unit for car
park spaces.
EEE
BERRE  Electrical
KAERLH Machinery ~ appliances ~ HERE  HRIR
Freehold BF and and Miscellaneous Construction it
fand Building  equipment  equipment  equipment  in progress Total

ABETE ABETT  AREFT  ARETT ARETT  AREFL  ARETZ
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
(H#a) (Hh)
(Note a) (Note b)

FEENR-8Z Reconciliation of carrying amount -
2175128318 year ended 31 December 2017

LFE
REA At beginning of year 112,239 8,787,266 20,518,087 92,000 1,130,741 1916451 32,556,784
AE Additions - 65,179 179,053 9,650 317,735 425,731 997,348
RE-WE-Z Additions - acquisition of  subsidiary

HEAF - 4,887 24,033 788 35,251 - 102,959
RESEWHE) Impairment loss (Vote ¢/ - - (40 - - — Q)
B EER Transfer upon completion — 272,707 351,122 3833 4552 (673,189) -
e Disposals - (22,788) (66,633) (2,462) (78,953) - (170,836)
HE-HEMBRE  Disposals - disposal of subsidiaries — (489,693  (1,003483) (1,683) (85,259) (66,402 (1,736,520)
ik Depreciation —  [(518548)  (2.236,427) (31439 (727.265) —  (3513679)
EREE Exchange differences 1,748 1,039 (26) (17) - - 2744
REER At end of the reporting period 113,987 8,138,049 17,451,705 70,670 637,776 1602592 28,014,779

202 ESEERERAS
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KAERLH
Freehold
fand
AREFT
RMB 000
(Hita)
(Note a)
Reconciliation of carrying amount -
year ended 31 December 2018
At beginning of year 113,987
Additions -
Impairment loss (Aote ¢) -
Transfer upon completion -
Disposals —
Disposals - disposal of subsidiaries
(Note 43) =
Depreciation —
Exchange differences 2,29
At end of the reporting period 116,283
At 1 January 2018
Cost 113,987
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses —
Net carrying amount 113,987
At 31 December 2018
Cost 116,283
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses -
Net carrying amount 116,283

B¥
Building
AREFR
RMB000
(fiih)
(Note b)

8,138,049
94,817

337,489
(1,049)

(240,681)

(496,954)
1,206

18328171

12,317,109

(4,179,060)

8,138,049

12,202,567

(4,369,690)

1832817

e

BERZE  CElectrical
Machinery ~ appliances ~ HERE  HRIR
and and Miscellaneous Construction
equipment  equipment  equipment i progress
ABRTL  ARETL  AREFT  ARRTZ
RIMB000 RMB 000 RMB000 RIMB000
17,451,705 70,670 637,776 1,602,592
206,534 12,554 342,040 708,141
(625,846) - - -
1,009,709 641 285382 (1,633,221)
(37,369) (1,914) (87,320) -
(208,106) (2,990) (12,330) (26,849)
(2,377,091) (26,293 (309,986) -
36 5 - -
15,419,572 52,673 855,562 650,663
34,347,511 298737 5199758 1,602,592
(16,895,866)  (228,067)  (4,561,982) -
17,451,705 70,670 637,776 1,602,592
33,922,215 266,691 5,070,447 650,663
(18,502,703)  (214,018)  (4,214,885) -
15,419,572 52,673 855,562 650,663

At
Total

AREFT

RMB 000

28,014,719
1,364,086
(625,846)

(127,652)
(490,956)
(3.210,324)
3,543

24,927,630

53,879,754

(25,864,975)

28,014,719

52,228,926

(27,301,29)

24,921,630
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() EHRRAUNEBLASN KA ZEE
bz

b)) REER AEEETHRENEE
BEREFANTIERBEERTZ
T AR E M AR ESE - REFE
# %8 A A R 50,064,000 75(2017
F: ARK51,379000T) - EH
RAE AEBEEEBURERE
LI EEY) o

(© FR- AEEAFEMARKHES
EHFMEEE(LTE - AEES
BREENEZBRbD B EREE
MBERGEERA - Bt - AR
REFHEE BB AR - EECE
HEBRIE  FEERKERED
B & 78 A A R 625,846,000 7T
(2017 F : A K #224,021,0007T )
ERERE « NREEATE NG EH
PG RRE MEEESE
BTYUERE - S LR ENEE
HEtRT -

d) FR- AFEEEBENIDSEMAE
SELSMNDHEERERES
= AR KA E RO
RABRRERE - BEEBETT T RIE
BE BrSERSELBEMNNA
WEl & RE AR FERBEEAKE
MAFINR SR SIETRN - BIFE
AEENE  BEBSELBMH
AT B < FE i AR B A S R AE
BREEE At EBERT  #
E2018F 12 A31HILFE - 8E
B B R SR AERE ©

TH AR B R R BEEAME
HAE T H KR o ZXARIRHEE R
By NEE B2 A N EHH
&% A AR #87,290,0007T(2017
F AR 104,748,0007T ) E 5t A
TE S FRI8 B E A FEYURIE o

BREEERERLR
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

Notes:

(@  Theland represents the freehold land located outside Hong Kong.

(b) At the end of the reporting period, the building ownership
certificates of the Group's certain premises with aggregate net
carrying amount of RMB50,064,000 (2077: RMB51,379,000) have
not been obtained due to application for the changes of granted
land use purpose is still in process. In the opinion of directors, the
Group validly occupies and uses these buildings.

(0) During the year, the Group implemented a new rationalisation plan
for both the instant noodle and beverage segments under which
the Group had devoted more efforts on promoting asset-light
through the optimisation of capacity allocation so as to improve
operational efficiency and reduce operational costs. Accordingly,
certain individual machinery and equipment with carrying amount
of RMB625,846,000 (2017: RMB224,021,000) were fully impaired
due to prolonged period of being idle and technical obsolescence
with comparably low production efficiency. The Group decided not
to re-use these machinery and equipment and all those assets are
prepared to be disposed of. The residue values of these machinery
and equipment were estimated to be nil.

(d)  During the year, the economic performances of certain products
(the "CGUs") in Instant Noodles segment were worse than
expected and therefore there was an indication that the machinery
and equipment of the related products might be impaired. The
management has performed impairment review and the recoverable
amount for each of the CGUs has been determined based on value
in use model by using discounted cash flow projection. According
to the value in use calculation, the recoverable amount for each of
the CGUs is higher than the carrying amount of related machinery
and equipment. Therefore, the management determined that there
was no impairment of the CGUs containing the machinery and
equipment for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Prepaid lease payments represent cost paid for leasehold land
in the PRC. The cost is amortised over the leasehold period. The
amount to be amortised within twelve months after the end
of the reporting period amounted to RMB87,290,000 (2077:
RMB104,748,000) and is included in prepayments and other
receivables.
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KE R A #
R EE Water
Concession resource Mt
right license Total
AREFT AREFT ARE TR
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
IREEE Reconciliation of carrying amount
-EZ2017%12831A - Year ended 31 December 2017
LFE
REY] At beginning of the year 179,179 — 179,179
s Amortisation (5,079) — (5,079)
fE 5 Exchange realignment (11,164) — (11,164)
REEER At end of the reporting period 162,936 — 162,936
REEYHE Reconciliation of carrying amount
-8HZ2018%F12H31H - Year ended 31 December 2018
LFE
REA At beginning of the year 162,936 — 162,936
NE Addition — 23,867 23,867
B Amortisation (4,999) (4,491) (9,490)
fE A Exchange realignment 9,145 — 9,145
R&EEHE At end of the reporting period 167,082 19,376 186,458
R2018F1H18 At 1 January 2018
DEN Cost 191,122 — 191,122
REHEEE Accumulated amortisation (28,186) — (28,186)
162,936 — 162,936
MA2018%12831H At 31 December 2018
BXA Cost 202,062 23,867 225,929
ZaHE Accumulated amortisation (34,980) (4,491) (39,471)
167,082 19,376 186,458
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SRR A RN 201263 AXK
BHEMES ZHHEERE - et
REERTAEENRE K-
B DHMHER FWMEKMK
ERERBER  URERPEX
PE B0 45 E B AR 1 YR AR AR - L P AR
REEHMIRZH9FH BER
VAT IR

KERAAIEZEETEERAR
EESRMEmOBERKOERN - %
BENE 20 FAA B BROEHEH

BREERBRAEAGTEL ER
BIRRHRFETRENHR -

BRARREE
MN2017F12A318 K
201812 A31H

BEEANRERE  REBHHH
REERLBRATHREAEER K
i RMEEBEEOER S
BB - ELNETEE
B2oRER RAEMTTEAHE
AEFEENERZE - Bt FrA
EBEA A EMAER -

BERAERBEXGHEENEKENR
SERTELEM(REELE
2 DETRER

R n Beverages
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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP

Concession right represents the concession right acquired as a
result of a business combination taken place in March 2012.
The concession right granted to the Group for manufacturing,
bottling, packaging, distributing and selling PepsiCo’s carbonated
soft drink and Gatorade branded products on a royalty free basis
under a specific trademark in the Mainland China is amortised on
the straight-line basis over the contract period of approximately
39 years.

Water resource license represents a right to extract mineral water
for the production of beverage products in the PRC, which is
amortised on a straight-line basis over 20 years.

Intangible assets are measured using cost model and are tested
for impairment where an indicator of impairment appears.

AR¥FT
RMB’000
Cost and carrying amount
At 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018
97,910

Goodwill arose because the consideration paid for the acquisition
effectively included amount in relation to the benefits originated
from revenue growth, future market development and the
assembled workforce of the acquired business. These benefits
are not recognised separately from goodwill because they do not
meet the recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets.
None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for
income tax purposes.

The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to the Group's
CGU identified according to the nature of business as follows for
impairment test:

2018 2017
AREFT ARBTFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
97,910 97,910
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Goodwill arising from the beverages business (the “Beverages
CGU") represented the acquisition of 25% equity interests in
Hangzhou Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Limited (“HZPS") in 2017. At
31 December 2018, the Group assessed the recoverable amount
of the Beverages CGU with reference to the cash flow projection
of HZPS. The calculation uses cash flow projection based on
financial budgets approved by the board of directors covering a
5-year period. Cash flows beyond the 5-year period have been
extrapolated using a 2% (2077: 2%) long-term growth rate. This
growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts
and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the
relevant industry.

The recoverable amount of the Beverages CGU based on the
value-in-use calculation exceeded its carrying amount. Accordingly,
goodwill was not impaired.

Key assumptions and inputs used for the value-in-use calculation
are as follows:

2018 2017
ETES Gross profit margin 38% 38%
I RER Average growth rate 5% 5%
KA R & Long-term growth rate 2% 2%
PR = Discount rate 9% 9%

%i@@%ﬁLE%ﬁ&E%ﬁﬁ%%
EONEHECEEEMNE  FER
RPTIRE AR - W R EK MR
TEABUABNETERR

BraEEsRHReEEEULAT K
EEB2BERIN RABEEEL
TREBEMEMAETET LT
ERRZEH -

Management determined the budgeted gross profit margin based
on past performance and its expectation of market development.
The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating
to the Beverages CGU.

Apart from the considerations described above in determining
the recoverable amount of the Beverages CGU, the Company's
management is not aware of any other probable changes that
would necessitate changes in the key assumptions.
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MR2018FE 12 A3MBEZEHE A T
2B A SRR M 49 o

BEEAMBRRRAFERALE
BRFKAEES -

EANABNBRR

R2017F  KRGIEZEWNBE R
AESE(FRE)EBREERAR(ES
BEDEEP—FMMNEETLEN
BRR(EHF DI CEEHA(ESR
WeEl)  MEBEHRBNMNE B4
25%FRME - Lo BEFINMBEFER
ERPRES(RES])  BiEZ
BHEEZ DEREBREZRES
E(( SR DELTKBAHN
HE AT Bt ZEAE A BAE
B L 25% MM E B A] 24 0% 1 59
—IREF EFE  RBEHAR B
B2 b aT B2 AE B BT S0 P IR A0 AR
EEEEDBRTIER 2021 KA
TR °

BBRITEESHEMEES A%
BEAESOR MM EETZERE - A
AEEBANMEFALNZ K
- AREMMNBEEAILERE
ERFENHEISEMMNBEER
REFSUBEZHIRT - At
BEERSAEEEMMEFAL
BAEEGIE At MIMNBEEATE
ERRAARENNE AR -
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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

Details of principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2018 are shown in
note 49 to the consolidated financial statements.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding
during the year or at the end of the reporting period.

Significant judgements and assumptions

In 2017, PepsiCo Investment (China) Ltd. (“PICL"), a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the sale and
purchase agreement (the “SPA”) with one of the shareholders (the
“Vendor") of HZPS to acquire 25% equity interest in HZPS from
the Vendor. In addition, the Vendor also issued an authorisation
letter (the “Authorisation Letter”) to PICL under which PICL shall
be entitled irrevocably all the rights and benefits of the aforesaid
25% equity interest in HZPS currently held by the Vendor for a
period up to the completion date of the registration of the equity
transfer (the “Equity Transfer”). At the end of the reporting
period, the management estimated that the registration of the
Equity Transfer with the relevant government authority will be
completed not later than the end of 2021.

Through the execution of the SPA and Authorisation Letter, the
Group holds 50% equity interest in HZPS and has more than a
majority of the voting rights of HZPS. Since the relevant activities
which significantly affect HZPS's return are determined by the
board of directors of HZPS based on a simple majority vote, the
management concluded that the Group has control over HZPS
and HZPS is treated as a subsidiary of the Group.
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EENEXDHRFREZ 2HBELTN Financial information of subsidiaries with individually
i S=g material non-controlling interest (“"NCI")
TRINTAEEE —HEFERLE The following table shows the information relating to KSF
BRERZOHNEB AR BREERR Beverage Holding Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Tingyi-Asahi
AR AR E R o B E R Beverages Holding Co., Ltd.) ("KSF"), the only subsidiary of
MERRALSAAIHEKER 22 the Group which has material NCI. The summarised financial
¥ o information represents amounts before inter-company
eliminations.
R12A31H

At 31 December

2018 2017
DYREERER Z A EL B Proportion of NCI's ownership interests 27.09% 27.09%
VBTSRRI ZERELL ] Proportion of NCI's voting rights 33% 33%

ARE T AR FT

RMB’000 RMB’000
REEE Current assets 9,895,072 8,515,988
ERBEE Non-current assets 18,243,241 20,527,369
mEAE Current liabilities (13,193,273) (13,034,715)
EREEE Non-current liabilities (1,511,249) (2,844,208)
HEE Net assets 13,433,791 13,164,434
DERE IR AR E Carrying amount of NC| 3,840,592 3,750,926
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BEANEADHBERER ZHBE QAN
MBER (&)

Financial information of subsidiaries with individually
material NCl (Continued)

HZE12831H
At 31 December
2018 2017
ARETFTT ARBTF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
Ug %5 Revenue 35,312,931 34,754,288
ARFEE g A Profit for the year 797,875 844,372
HEi2m(5E) ke Other comprehensive (loss) income (119,422) 96,114
FHEW =BT Total comprehensive income 678,453 940,486
D ER R AE S R i A Profit attributable to NCI 249,160 418,376
DHR RS EE 2@ Total comprehensive income attributable to
NCI 216,805 464,021
BT D ERERE IR Dividends paid to NCI (127,518) (103,875)
e (A)ReREFH Net cash flows from (used in):
KRR Operating activities 4,060,590 3,525,921
"EEY Investing activities 576,121 302,813
BEEE Financing activities (2,522,008) (3,530,255)

AEERMBARNAAEESRE

FRN - AEBLEETILERMZR
mABMRAFT(DTIEERZ 1)25%
BKETFTE=T7 BERERARYE
30,000,000 © & B A& & E R A
EBERZHEBREEZRBH100% 7 >
£75%° KNI E B - 25% Kk # &
WEEME A/ AR ®12,664,000 ¢
Bt PHERREREMARE
12,664,000 + > 2 A% R 4 &= 18 40
PHERINAREZHNARE
17,336,000 % BB id 8k N 4R & W1 7%
MR PR EDERE =
REFBEIN - FA - WA AR
15,000,000 TR &R E - EfRA
K #15,000,0007T 72018 12 A
31 B ER &R AE TA A U M E At FB IR
HA - ZEBEER20194 1 AEE -

EMEZERAERAT
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP

Change in the Group’s ownership interest in subsidiaries

During the year, the Group disposed of 25% equity interest
in Hebei Fumanduo Food Co., Ltd. ("HBFM") at an aggregate
consideration of RMB30,000,000 to a third party, resulting in an
decrease in the Group's effective equity interests in HBFM from
100% to 75%. On the disposal date, total carrying amount of the
25% equity interest in HBFM was amounted to RMB12,664,000.
As a result, the NCI was increased by RMB12,664,000, and the
difference of RMB17,336,000 between the amount by which
the carrying amount of NCI have increased and the aggregate
consideration received and receivable were recorded in
“Transactions with non-controlling interests reserve” within equity
in the consolidated statement of financial position. During the
year, cash consideration of RMB15,000,000 was received and the
remaining of RMB15,000,000 was recorded in prepayment and
other receivables at 31 December 2018. The amount has been
subsequently settled in January 2019.
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2018 2017
ARETFT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
JE LT, AR E Unlisted shares, at cost 70,678 96,696
JEMEW B RSE Share of post-acquisition results 61,216 28,041
B U BB & B B AR A Dividend received since acquisition (4,169) (4,169)
127,725 120,568
REEE RIS R E) 2 RS Details of the associates at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:
TEEE/
RauuE
Principal FEERFEZ
place of ERGEEESLA
business HMBKRA  Proportion of effective
BeArRaR and place of Registered ownership interest heldby FE£%
Name of associates incorporation capital the Group Principal activities
2018 2017
HRAENESHBR LR hE US$16,000,000  36.46% 36.46%  BERBEEHE
Nanjing Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of
beverages
F2 (M) ReRARAHE e US$8,850,000 — 49% 1201855 A
Kongguan (Hangzhou) Food Co., Ltd. PRC Deregistered in May 2018
LA EFBEREE Rl g fEm A iR All of the above associates are accounted for using the equity
TR e imEs o method in the consolidated financial statements.
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ERIFERBENR 2 HBER Financial information of individually immaterial associates
TRITAEBIZEZRERY] 2@ The table below shows, in aggregate, the carrying amount and
RISEE REE QRN A FTEREE R the Group's share of results of associates that are not individually
NEBBIEES - material and accounted for using the equity method.

M12HA31H8 ®12H831H

At At

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

ARETFT ABREFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

EEEEE Carrying amount of interests 127,725 120,568

BZ12A31H #ZE12A31H
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December

2018 2017
AR%FT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
B E Group's share of:
NE R A Profit for the year 8,392 23,896
Hip 2 s Other comprehensive income — —
FHEWNEBETE Total comprehensive income 8,392 23,896
EEFRR AEBEREENERD In the opinion of the directors, no associates are individually
B R A] o material to the Group.
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2018 2017
AREFTT ABRBTFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
FEEmRL - BARAE Unlisted shares, at cost 452,832 472,812
JEMEW B REE Share of post-acquisition results 483,787 408,523
B U BB & B B AR A Dividend received since acquisition (237.876) (220,644)
698,743 660,691
REEERL AR ZAMFIIMT - Details of the joint ventures at the end of the reporting period are
as follows:
TEEE/
Tt S
Principal AEERELZ
place of ERBRRERLA
operation/ FMBA  Proportion of effective
RENFEE Place of Registered  ownership interestheld FE¥%
Name of joint ventures incorporation capital by the Group Principal activities
2018 2017
RERYRBERLTA PE US$11,000000  31.82%  31.82% MIRFER¥E®D
Fujian Weizhen Foods Co., Ltd. PRC Process and sale of
agricultural products
FE (BN RRERAT i US$24,000,000 60% 60% MIRHEREER
Kangpu (Suzhou) Food Co., Ltd. PRC Process and sale of meat
products
HERSARKRERAR G US$28,120,000  36.46%  36.46% HERHERM
Shanghai Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of
beverages
BEEAEILRHERAR(EEAE)) i RMB150,000000  58.33%  5833% HERHEHRR
Jinan Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of
("INPS") beverages
ARE(LE)RHBRAR G US$7,000,000 —  281% M2018F7AiEH
Kagome (Shanghai) Beverages Co., Ltd. PRC Deregistered in July
2018
I REARERRAF G RMBA400,000 25% 5% WG RERREES
Beijing Zhengben Advertising Ltd. PRC Design, production and
agency of advertising
A LA GERATIRERETRR Al of the above joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
TR e gmET o method in the consolidated financial statements.
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EANHABRRBR

AEEEB-—H2ENBRARRHAE
FEEMRMABERAR60%HK
R RN REZZEHELQA
HE-—REEZENGaRBE 8
WEELRAEERTENHEBES
BRFBREE —HBURE - At
AEERSEZERTHAR®
1B A FL RS -

rEEEBE—HMEEREEEHES
80% A= 2 EHEMB LR
B EERE G $58.33% 2 BB
B AT BIEZIEZEE
BB ARBEEMEEE ZENE
R HREABNBREEATED
HEAEEEERSER A S0 LR
ERAFEZEZTEHEAS0% HIRERE
AR BESLOEN  KN&EE
EEMAEENSRESTANHEN TG4
ZEF BASREEEAEEIL
EEISABAO M SRS ERE
RABZZIIEZEMBHEB AR
HMREERB —SURE Bt A
EERAENEEHEFLERGE
HIRE R R -

BREEERERLR

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

Significant judgements and assumptions

The Group has 60% voting rights in Kangpu (Suzhou) Food Co.,
Ltd. through a wholly owned subsidiary. However, based on a
contractual agreement between the wholly owned subsidiary
and another investor, the relevant activities which significantly
affect the investee's return require the unanimous consent of all
investors. Therefore, the Group determined that it has no control
but joint control over this entity.

The Group has 58.33% effective ownership interest in JNPS
through a non-wholly owned subsidiary, which holds 80% direct
equity interests in JNPS. However, based on the contractual
agreement between the non-wholly owned subsidiary and other
investor of JNPS, the relevant activities which significantly affect
the JNPS's return require over 80% votes of the board of directors
of JNPS. By virtue of the Group's contractual right to appoint 4
out of 5 directors to the board of directors of JNPS, the Group
has determined that it has no control but joint control over JNPS
as the strategic financial and operating decisions relating to the
economic activities of JNPS require the unanimous consent of the
non-wholly owned subsidiary and the other investor.
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ERFERSE DR ZHBER Financial information of individually immaterial joint
ventures

TRINTAE B REREZ @RI The table below shows, in aggregate, the carrying amount and the

ERGEATMATEEERES Group's share of results of joint ventures that are not individually

El material and accounted for using the equity method.

M12H31H ®W12A31H

At At

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

AR¥TFT AREFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

R IREE Carrying amount of interests 698,743 660,691

HZ12H318 #H=12A31H8
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December

2018 2017
AR¥FT ABR®FT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REE LS Group's share of:
REFWZ Profit for the year 63,188 77,284
Hh 2w Other comprehensive income — —
ZHENRETE Total comprehensive income 63,188 77,284
BEERB AEEREEMNERD In the opinion of the directors, no joint ventures are individually
ER-WNCII material to the Group.
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2018 2017
k3 AR¥TFT ARETFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BFVPLEEWEBMEE Financial assets at FVPL
EES Investment funds (@) 447,496 —
ETRAFE S Equity securities, listed b) 625 —
448,121 —
EEFvod Designated FVOCI
JE AR E S Equity securities, unlisted (c) 114,018 —
562,139 —
AHEESHERE Available-for-sale financial assets
NRE At fair value
—REES — Investment funds (a) — 504,359
—EETIRAES — Equity securities, unlisted (d) — 110,722
— 615,081
BRAEE - At cost, net of impairment losses
HBRREEE
—FELTRAEES — Equity securities, unlisted (d) — 23,445
— 638,526
562,139 638,526
et - Note:
@) ®BEESANIACR0I7E 1T (@  The investment funds represent investments in four (2077: four)

1) EEZHE  DRIBRRRA
EEMBREMABLE IR
BENERETAEBLERKIN
EBEREAHS((RBEXHES DN
R BREMLAR  UNAEEAAR
SERELSTRABERMNERA
B o AR ¥ 48,735,0007T(2017
F: AK#169830005T) B F
RHERBIREES -
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funds which were set up as limited partnerships in the Cayman
Islands, limited partnership in Jersey and a company with liability
limited by shares incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the
“BVI"), aiming at allocating idle funds reasonably and increasing
return on asset. During the year, RMB48,735,000 (2017
RMB16,983,000) was paid to acquire the investment funds.
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(&)

REER REAESHWAAER
HAERESEENELIEEAR
f&-FR2018F1A1H BEES
5 ¥8 BFVPL: R2018%F1H1H
ZHREHNZRAANERFZARE
148,150,000 Tt 1% & S (H E Z
(ATEEE)E ARBEH - HE2018
FNRANALEFE 2AEEH
AR 48,772,000 TTET A2 ©

EHRAFSFH DA EREEEE
FRBFINTISIMERTE

M2018F1A1H « ZEBETAH
UG E TIE EMRAFESF IR E 5
EATEFVOCH FAAZERAFE
FRAEEBRRAFHEABEKED
WiIRE - AEERBLDESES
EHRBRHEZHABES - #HE
2018 1 A1 HMVMEBE R A A
Uk AR 10,458,000 TE #HIEE
ERERB(TEE)EARESH
(T A EEE) o

FLETRARENARNEEEHG
BRRECEEREHRGE 2
SEEEH AR 16,265,000 L 5
ARBEFHERBECTAIER) - 4
SIREESAARENHESERE
R ABIR AR A B B KR M =
46 o

REE2018F12A31B It F &
A - $& EFVOCIA R #8,521,000
TTREIEERB I AREARE
8,521,000 L HE - AETHE&
AEBMMIRERE  NRIEERA
B kRt AR B EGHEREBCTH
6 M AR 2,397,000 TREE
2018F 12 A3 HILFEHEE#E

EREEN

Note: (Continued)

The fair values of the investment funds were valued by the
respective investment managers or trust administrator at the end
of the reporting period. At 1 January 2018, the investment funds
are classified to FVPL and the related accumulated fair value gains
of RMB148,150,000 as at 1 January 2018 were transferred from
investment revaluation reserve (recycling) to retained profits. The
change in fair value of RMB48,772,000 are debited to profit or loss
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The fair value of the listed equity securities is determined based on
a quoted market bid price in a relevant stock exchange.

At 1 January 2018, the Group irrevocably designated certain
investments in unlisted equity securities as Designated FVOCI
because these equity securities represent investments that the
Group intends to hold for long term for strategic purposes. The
Group considers under this classification provide more relevant
information for those investments. The related accumulated
fair value gains of RMB10,458,000 as at 1 January 2018 were
transferred from investment revaluation reserve (recycling) to
investment revaluation reserve (non-recycling).

The fair values of the unlisted equity investments were mainly valued
by the respective investment managers at the end of the reporting
period. Changes in fair value of RMB16,265,000 were debited
to investment revaluation reserve (non-recycling). The valuation
techniques and significant inputs used in the measurement of the
fair values of the investment funds are set out in note 46 to the
consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, Designated FVOCI of
RMB8,521,000 were disposed of at their fair value on the date of
derecognition for RMB8,521,000 because they no longer matched
with the Group's investment strategy. At the date of derecognition,
RMB2,397,000 that was previously included in the investment
revaluation reserve (non-recycling) was transferred directly to
retained profits during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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(d)  M2017F128318 ELMEKE
RILNBBEITNIFLTESNE
R E - AT LTRATLHER
AEFE AAEZHERARKE
EHEFEB(AERD) - 2 NIELT
ARANTE 55 Ty A & 3 25 HA AR AR PR 2Rk
WEE  WIHRESRA &
REBREFSHERLEATG &
AABEEERSERE - 5122018
F1ATR FTBEGLIELTRE
B EH DI AFVPLEIEEFVOC! »
ERARENEERREEE SR
BEBBRBENENENGEVH
Rz 4

TREEDATINEEINE

(d) At 31 December 2017, the unlisted investments represented long-
term investments in unlisted securities issued by private entities.
Certain unlisted equity securities are were measured at fair value
with change in fair value recognised as investment revaluation
reserve(recycling). The remaining unlisted equity securities were
measured at cost less impairment at the end of each reporting
period because the directors were of the opinion that their fair
values could not be measured reliably given that the range of
reasonable estimates is significant assessed. All those unlisted
investments were reclassified to FVPL or Designated FVOCI as at
1 January 2018 as further detailed in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The financial assets are denominated in the following currencies:

2018 2017
ARETFT ARETFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

ETT Us$ 561,514 621,690
AR RMB — 5,000
e New Taiwan dollar (“NTD") — 10,362
il Others 625 1,474
562,139 638,526

R2017F2A AEBEE=7F
FEIMH# - Bl AEER B
A R #635,929,000 T IR & K B
BEMRKEN—EME  REE
B AR#375,964,0007T(2017 -
AF#317,964,0007T)F & 2%t
FTER HBAREBSREFBEYE
WEEXRBERTASERIN -
EHFEBREFEEEDE  BHIR
R TERR 2019 F F R/ - W
METEEREEBREAEMR -

MR2018F12A31H  EXHFE
FHE® B ARME375,964,000 T
(2017 : A R #317,964,0007T ) E
e REMIERBEE

BREEERERLR
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In February 2017, the Group entered into an agreement with
a third party vendor pursuant to which the Group agreed to
purchase a property located in Tianjin for a cash consideration of
RMB635,929,000. Up to the end of the reporting period, deposits
of RMB375,964,000 (2017: RMB317,964,000) were made to the
vendor and the remaining consideration will be paid when the
vendor transfers the legal title of the property to the Group. The
property is currently under construction by the vendor and it is
expected that the construction works will be completed and the
legal title of the property will be transferred to the Group not later
than the end of 2019.

At 31 December 2018, the deposits of RMB375,964,000 (2017:
RMB317,946,000) paid to the vendor were recorded as other
non-current assets.
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2018 2017
ARET T AR T
RMB’000 RMB’000
R Raw materials 1,018,807 1,027,595
ERMH Work in progress 75,762 70,167
2K Finished goods 1,557,171 1,299,179
2,651,740 2,396,941
2018 2017
ARETT AREFr
RMB’000 RMB’000
JE LT BR 53R Trade receivables
—$=% — From third parties 1,637,095 1,591,378
—ARRAAE)ZEBRE R H — From companies controlled by
2L VNG a substantial shareholder of
the Company 12,302 12,673
. EWNE] — From associates 3,179 2,107
= WNET — From joint ventures 62,895 30,227
1,715,471 1,636,385

REBZHERNT D R/ER YR -
HRTHHEEZEERNETEZR30E90
X o

EHREVRERINGREEREGE) NS
EHREZAHEEZERD T
RO

0-90XK 0 - 90 days
90 KM E Over 90 days

FRASERUEEREERRNE
RN AR B I RAR I RE 45 -

R PR A EEZAARKIIE -

The majority of the Group's sales are cash-on-delivery. The
remaining balances of sales are mainly at credit term ranging from
30 to 90 days.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of loss allowance),
based on invoice date, at the end of the reporting period is as

follows:
2018 2017
AR¥F AEHTFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
1,584,771 1,517,678
130,700 118,707
1,715,471 1,636,385

Information about the Group's exposure to credit risks of trade
receivables is included in note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The trade receivables are mainly denominated in RMB.
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TR

BB ER

BN EERX

T AR ERE D

FEWE R

BEBRE

& S 7 PR B8 1 B 3R IR
Hity

Prepayments to suppliers for
purchase of goods

Prepayments for purchase of equipment

Prepaid value-added taxes

Prepaid operating expenses

Current portion of prepaid lease
payments

Loan receivables

Debt investment

Amounts due from former subsidiaries

Others

27(a) B ER

EWERTEAREEZHMER
AERTEATEMEEER
REAFHEIELEERR 2K
15 WERWERAERT
AR —FRNEERNFEAR
5.01% £6.15% (2017 % :
392%%E6.15% ) )MEK -

ARAREFEHHFIETHR
HERRT _EAREZHEEK
B W FEEREEEBZRRN
EREBREREERRS -

BRERE

M2017F12 A3V BEKIEE
EEXNSBEAEARE
900,000,000 T B E = F
JEWFRTE - AERRREEF
F & k566 % FEERK2017
F12A3MBZRAKR+ =@
ARER - EFERECDAEFA

PR
TD_:E%III/ﬁ ©

EMEZERAERAT
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2018 2017

it AR¥F ANRETF T
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
115,440 170,648

8,418 9,929

799,895 632,636

1,059,726 923,200

17 87,290 104,748
27(a) 213,000 60,000
27(b) = 900,000
27(c) — 1,347,253
385,920 450,983

2,669,689 4,599,397

27(a) Loan receivables

Loan receivables represent the advances made by wholly
owned subsidiaries of the Company to certain raw materials
suppliers and subcontractors of the Group for their
operating use. The loan receivables are unsecured, repayable
within 12 months from the end of the reporting period and
bear interest ranging from 5.01% to 6.15% (2017: from
3.92% to 6.15%) per annum.

The directors expected the amounts will be realised in the
next twelve months after the end of the reporting period.
The fair value of the amounts as at the end of the reporting
period approximates their corresponding carrying amount.

27(b) Debt investment

Debt investment as at 31 December 2017 represented
receivable from an independent third party company with an
aggregate principal amount of RMB900,000,000, which was
unsecured, carries a fixed interest rate of 5.66% per annum
and was expected to be realised in the next twelve months
from 31 December 2017. The amount has been fully settled
during the year.
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27(c) FEWATH B2 BRIE

MR2017F 12 A3 BREER
VY SR BB /B R A A9 R U FRIE o
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27(c) Amounts due from former subsidiaries

The balance as at 31 December 2017 represented the
advances made to four former subsidiaries. The amounts
were unsecured, bearing interest ranging from 3.91% to

391%ZE470% @ WERKR—F 4.70% per annum and repayable within one year. The

NER - EEFELEFAD amount were fully repaid during the year.
EEE o
2018 2017
ARETT AEEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
WITHBR LIRS Bank balances and cash 13,807,963 10,226,577
HEIRRITIF R Pledged bank deposits 32,458 58,312
RiFEREMERIIT As stated in the consolidated statement of
cash flows 13,840,421 10,284,889

RITERE TER EREMHAE
B—-RIRTLRESIRE (BERTA
HRER)MRTREZERM® -

The pledged bank deposits are secured for general banking and
trade finance facilities, including the issuance of bank acceptance
bills, granted to the Group by banks.

RehERBREBEEUATIERT

The cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following

& : currencies:
2018 2017
AR¥FoT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR RMB 13,438,077 9,578,395
ETT Us$ 367,457 590,781
BT EUR 2,108 4,264
et NTD 23,562 41,097
HAith Others 9,217 70,352
13,840,421 10,284,889

ERAREZNERRREEAR
B R A BT RRN 45 L -

E/Q\ aNy=

Details of the Group’s foreign currency risk and credit risk
discussion are set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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2018
RER
Equivalent to

vt € FEn  AREFx Rir%A

2017
BER
Equivalent to

TET  NEETT

No. of shares Uss 000 RMB000  No. of shares Uss 00 RIMB000
R Authorised:
50005 Tz EEE  Ordinary shares of US$0.005 each 7,000,000,000 35,000 7,000,000,000 35,000
BETRAR Issued and fully paid:
REY At the beginning of the year 5,613,229,360 28,067 235,053 5,604,501,360 28,023 234,767
REERETE Shares issued under share option scheme
Epdivl 4,739,000 I 151 8,728,000 4 286
REER At the end of the reporting period 5,617,968,360 28,091 235204 5,613,229,360 28,067 235,053

R R - 4,739,000 8 IR A & 1T
& LA 3R B8 7K A | 4,739,000 T i A%
B - BRER AR 39,790,000
JC c Heh ARM 151,000 TEF AB 2
FTRR A - 45 8k A R %6 39,639,000
T ABRMDGEER - 340 AR
13,025,000 THER EFEERE
BRDBEER ZERERSHTEE
RERMNZEBRSEZ -

During the year, 4,739,000 options were exercised to subscribe
for 4,739,000 ordinary shares of the Company at a consideration
of RMB39,790,000, of which RMB151,000 was credited to issued
capital and the balance of RMB39,639,000 was credited to the
share premium account. In addition, RMB13,025,000 has been
transferred from the share-based payment reserve to the share
premium account. These shares rank pari passu with all existing
shares in all respects.

2018 2017

AR¥FTT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

NG At the beginning of the year 611,736 523,278
RIFEAAERTBIZE1T 2 B% D Shares issued under share option scheme 52,664 88,458
REER At the end of the reporting period 664,400 611,736

BERESESRAEN - ERFNE
F%ﬁhﬁ%’T%EMﬁéjE
BT EEITROEMEN
EitaE ﬂL%iHXTB/ﬁnFEE

BhaBERZERERERNSHS
NENRZITE e

Eﬁé’&?ﬁﬁ%ﬁiZ’%iﬂT QN

TZH&T%?EFT%&”?JE%H&%*
HEARR DIKRRAINBENEE
R %%WEP BB 2 (BT o
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Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, where a
company issues shares at a premium, whether for cash or
otherwise, a sum equal to the aggregate amount of the value
of the premiums on their shares shall be transferred to share
premium account.

The application of the share premium account is governed by the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

Share premium of the Company is distributable to shareholders
subject to the provisions of the Company’s Memorandum and
Articles of Association and provided that immediately following
the distribution the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.
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hxiEa RAER  RAER
LA (ERéR ks
B2 Transactions e (FEE)  (TWER)  0EER
EORE  EMERE  withnon-  BEEE  hwestment  Investment ] BiREER
Captal ~ Remeasu-  controling  Exchange  revaluation revaluation Poperty  —HERE  Shaebased  REEF
redemption ement interests ~~ translation reserve reserve  revaluation General payment Retained 28
reserve reserve reserve reserve (recycling) * (non-recycling) reserve reserve reserve profts Total

NGETRL  AFETR  NEETT  ARETT  ARKTT  ARETL  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETT  ARKTT
AMBOOO  AMBUOO  AMBUOO  AMBU0O  AMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  AMBUOD  AMBUOD

R2017F1 818 At 1 January 2017 400 (M575) 473857 (455,679) 84,29 - 9869 3571268 430092 13292971 17365495
TEERA Profit for the year - - - - - - - - — 181907 1819077

£th2ENE(FR) Other comprehensive income (loss)
RERHBELZERE  Remeasurement of defined benefits

obligations - 41,664 - - - - - - - - 41,664

EREE Exchange difference on consolidation - - - 283,800 - - - - - - 283,800
AEsREE Fair value changes i available-for-

MEZEY sale financial assets - — — — 95,39 — — - - — 95,39

AERHETHNE Reclassfication adjustment relating
SHEEZENETE 1o avalablefor-sale finandial assets

disposed of during the year - - - - (21,080) - - - - - (21,080)
A2 EkEEE Total other comprehensive income - 41,664 - 283,800 74,316 - - - - - 399,780
FEEREREAE Total comprehensive income for
the year - 41,664 - 283,800 74316 - - - - 1,819,077 2218857
RENARRZRS Transactions with owners of
the Company:
REEIT Contributions and distribution
EREERNZAZIE  Equity settled share-based
transactions - — — — — — — — 44,234 — 44,234
it & DU HE S Shares issued under share option
b0 scheme - - - - - - - - (21357) - (21.357)
BREAN Shares option [apsed - - - - - - - - (24852 2485 -
HOERRELTESE  Put options written toa
non-controlling shareholder - — (4135120 - - - - - - —  (4135120)
BOBRRAER Written back of financial iabltes
AR upon cancellation of put options
hEEBNEEEE  wittento anon-controling
shareholder - = 4135120 - - - - - - = 4135120
BRERREE016F 2016 final dividend approved and
ks pald - - - - - - - - — R (58089)
ERERBER Transfer from retained profits - - - - - - - 588,259 - (5882%9) -
- - - - - - - 588,259 (1.975) (1,144,256 (557,972)
BEEIRY Changes in ownershp iterests
BEYHSEHIEONE  Changes in ownership interests in
nEERES subsidiaies without change in
control - = (1461,090) - - - - - - = (1461,09)
SAMARRRAHEE  Total transactions with owners of
the Company - = (1461,09) - - - - 588,259 (1975 (1,144,25%)  (2,019,062)
R20175125318 At 31 December 2017 400 89 (987,233) (171,879 158,608 - 9,869 4,159,521 2817 13967,792 17,565,290
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=% 4 REER
hRER REEf B
XRE ERE (FIEm)
3] Transactions S (T8E) Investment  MEEf
BORE EfERE withnon-  BEEHE Investment revaluation B BRERE
Capital Remeasur- controlling ~ Exchange revaluation  reserve  Property  —REfE Share-based RZEF
redemption ement interests translation reserve (non- revaluation  General  payment  Retained e
reserve reserve reserve reserve  (recycling)  recycling)  reserve reserve reserve profits Total

ARRTE  ARBTT ARBTZ ARRTE ABRTT ARETZ ARRTE  ARRTT ARETR ARETE  ARRTR
RVBO00  RMBYU0O  RMBUI0  RMBU0)  RMBUO  RMBUO)  RMBU0O  RMBUGO  RMBYU0O  RMBURO  RMBYOD

R2BE1A18 At1 January 2018
JUlTE As previously reported 400 89 (987233)  (171.819) 158,608 - 9869 4,159,527 428117 13967792 17,565,290
RVEEHBREERIZ9% Changes in accounting policies on
EHFENEEWE4)  adopting HKFRS 9 (Mote 4) = = = = (158,608) 10,458 = = = 148,150 =
e As restated 400 89 (987,233) (171,879) - 10,458 9,869 4,159,527 28117 14115942 17,565,290
TERRA Profit for the year = = = = = = = = — 248331 246331
Hfb2ANE(FR)ME  Other comprehensive
(loss) income
AEBHMEMZERE  Remeasurement of defined
benefits obligations = (37,562) = = = = = = = - (37,562)
ERZE Exchange difference on
consolidation = = = (348,483) = = = = = = (348,483)
EENOCALE Fair value changes in Designated
b | Fvocl - - - - - (16,265) - - - - (16,265)
ERHEETAVOCE  Redassification adjustment
ENRRE relating to Designated FVOCI
disposed of during the year - - - - = (2397) = = - 2397 -
H2AFELE Total other comprehensive loss = (37,562) = (348,483) = (18,662) - - - 2397 (402,310)
FEERE(ER) Total comprehensive (loss)
s income for the year = (37,562) = (38483) = (18,662) = = — 2465718 2,061,011
HENARRZRS Transactions with owners of
the Company:
REEAT Contributions and distribution
EREBRNZTZIE  Equity settled share-based
transactions - - - - - - - - 32,799 - 32,799
REBRETELTZRG  Shares issued under share option
scheme = = = = = = = = (13,025) = (13,025)
EIRERN Shares option lapsed = = = = = = = = (25,49) 25,49 =
BHERIEE2017F 2017 final dividend
~EkS approved and paid = = = = = = = = = (909,539 (909,539)
ERARKET Transfer from retained profits = = = = = = - 142,836 - (142,836) -
- - - - - - - 142,836 (5722) (1,026,879 (889,765)
BEEZZY Changes in ownershyp interests
BEUNEEHIED Changes in ownership interests in
HEATEEERY asubsilary without change in
control - - 17,336 - - - - - - - 17,336
AADNARFERAEE  Total transactions with owners of
the Company - - 17,336 - - - — 142,836 (5722)  (1,026,879) (872,429)
R01BERANA At 31 December 2018 400 (37.473) (969,897) (520,362) - (8,204) 9,869 4,302,363 422395 15554781 18753812
HE2mE(BHE) WasEXIEET® No income tax effect arose from each component of other
2017 R 2018F ¥ 2 BB comprehensive (loss) income in 2017 and 2018.

2 o
=
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Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve has been set up in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on
repurchases and cancellations of the Company’s own shares.

Remeasurement reserve

Remeasurement reserve has been set up and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for the
remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability as set out in
note 3(t) to the consolidated financial statements.

Transactions with non-controlling interests reserve

Transactions with non-controlling interests reserve has been set
up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for the changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary which do not result in a loss of control as set out in
note 3(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

Exchange translation reserve

Exchange translation reserve has been set up and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for foreign
currency translation as set out in note 3(n) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Investment revaluation reserves

The investment revaluation reserve (non-recycling) has been set
up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for the cumulative net changes of the fair value of
Designated FVOCI since the date of initial application of HKFRS 9
as set out in note 3(k) to the consolidated financial statements.
The investment revaluation reserve (recycling) as at 31 December
2017 represented the cumulative net change of the fair value of
available-for-sale financial assets in accordance with HKAS 39.

Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve was set up to deal with the
surplus or deficit arising from the revaluation of properties and
prepaid lease payment in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for property, plant and equipment as set out in note 3(d)
to the consolidated financial statements.
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— Rk

RIEFEEEAD - HEKERQR
AR —FETNDREBRBRE DM (RR
TEERMRRAEMTENES
AIZEERBAZS)10% 2 HIE
BREE-RER- W REE A
HMEARTEMNBAREMERAZ

50% B » %2~ a8 A] HZE B e
%o
BRERE

BERERBEERTASEERRE
HMARITEZBRERNREARZA
REZHD  ARFESTEREREH
AR tD R ERE 2 R - #1575
TRINER B B RS RAR I RE 3(u)

32(a) 2008 F R HE=T &

B BB OfE B B BR R 5T &
([2008 F&HEl ) ZARREE
MR2008F3 A20H B B - %
20085t &Iz BEWy ek Eh 2 E
(FEAIN T ) I FE R b APY & ¥ AR
SEWELRER © 22008 51 E|
#2018 F£3 A 19 B E|H -

ESEURAEZERTUATA

THREAHE

(i) ARBHEEAANERE
TR RBES
TTBRABSERESR :

(i) ARARIEEMKER
AINEMESR(BFEEHNR
TEERBILFERTE
=) R

(i) AR HEERHE QR
EEMER - FHAE - #
JER - BE NI -

BREEERERLR
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General reserve

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations, the PRC
subsidiaries are required to appropriate to the general reserve an
amount not less than 10% of the amount of profit after taxation
(as reported in the respective statutory financial statements of the
PRC subsidiaries prepared in accordance with the PRC accounting
regulations). If the accumulated general reserve reaches 50%
of the registered capital of the respective PRC subsidiaries, the
subsidiary may not be required to make any further appropriation.

Share-based payment reserve

Share-based payment reserve comprises the fair value at the grant
date of unexercised share options granted to employees of the
Group and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments as set out in note 3(u) to the
consolidated financial statements.

32(a) 2008 Share Option Scheme

The Company’s share option scheme (the “2008 Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution
passed on 20 March 2008. The 2008 Share Option Scheme
is a share incentive scheme and is established to recognise
and acknowledge the contributions the eligible participants
(as defined below) had or may have made to the Group. The
2008 Share Option Scheme expired on 19 March 2018.

The Board of Directors may, at its discretion, grant an option
to:

(i)  any full-time or part-time employees, executives or
officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any directors (including non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors) of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries; and

(i) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and
agents of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.
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32(a) 2008 FRERERT8I(Z) 32(a) 2008 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

B 4 N A IR S B E - 522008
T8I R A AR R 2 H AR
B EIMBE T 2ERES R 2
f& 7 8 B TS BB A A R ER
#9 1tk 2008 5+ & & H(B12008
FI3IA20B) 2B BITRHOK
10% °

REER ERTHEEBRE
B LRER#E B 143,726,500
B (20174 : 143,726,500
B) - BIBA R BRI ERA AR R
T 2008 5T EIE B 2 TR
B12.57% (20174 : 2.57%) °

BR2HEEEZ 20085185 E
ERESE TAIZENRS
BTRE(BEEITERKITE
ZHEIRE)  EERTRTARKRZ
1R2EARTEBRERTHH
REEITRMO1% - 2R 1%
BRAOETAEERRREMH
A o

TEEHEETIMNERRE
miTEE A DR ) R ERE
Pt T B OB R T E Y UL T
B () EBRERT B
513 & % B R B AR F UL
mE: RO EES 2

R=EE -

BRENTESNHESESR
o MBREZTERATZR
BT & Z10F o BE KRR
THSFRATAEEET 2008
IR E R F RS LR
B -FRREERRTZE
—HEREZREERBE
e B-BRERTRBRE
FERBARE —BOE AR E
o

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders,
the maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the 2008 Share Option Scheme and
under any other share option schemes of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of
shares in issue at the time the 2008 Share Option Scheme
was adopted by the shareholders of the Company (i.e. 20
March 2008).

At the end of reporting period, the total number of shares in
respect of which options had been granted to its employees
and directors was 143,726,500 (2017: 143,726,500),
representing 2.57% (2017: 2.57%) of the shares of the
Company in issue at the time the 2008 Share Option
Scheme is adopted by the shareholders of the Company.

The total number of shares issued and may be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the 2008 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)
to an individual in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the
date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this
1% limit shall be subject to the shareholders" approval.

The exercise price is determined by the Company’s Board
of Directors, and will not be less than the higher of (i)
the closing price of the Company's shares on the date of
grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Company’s Board of Directors, save that
no option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has
been granted. The options will be vested either after five
years from the date of grant or immediate upon attainment
of the retirement age as specified in the 2008 Share Option
Scheme. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is paid by each
option holder for each lot of share option granted. Each
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share of the Company.
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32(a) 2008 F BB R HERT &I (&)

M 2008 AR ERTEIA - BT
ARRAREWNBRARZEE R
EEZBREFIBE RN 2018F
K2017F12A3MHBEERNZ

RITEPEERREL T
¥
BREEE
Number of
BTFEH share options
Grant date granted
20083 A20H 11,760,000
20 March 2008
200944 A22H 26,688,000
22 April 2009
20104 A1 H 15,044,000
1 April 2010
2011 F4H12H 17,702,000
12 April 2011
2012%F 4 A26H 9,700,000
26 April 2012
201345 A 27 H 11,492,000
27 May 2013
2014F 4 A17H 12,718,500
17 April 2014
2015% 6 A5H 17,054,000
5 June 2015
201647 A4 H 10,148,000
4 July 2016
2017F4H21H 11,420,000
21 April 2017
A 143,726,500
Total

EMEZERAERAT
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP

32(a) 2008 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Details of share options granted by the Company to
the employees and directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries pursuant to the 2008 Share Option Scheme
and the share options outstanding as at 31 December
2018 and 2017 are as follows:

RITENBRERE
Number of share THEE THES
options outstanding  Exercise price  Exercisable period
2018 2017 HK$
2,300,000 9.28 20133 H21HE

201843 A20H
21 March 2013 to
20 March 2018
5,244,000 6,961,000 938 2014F4H23H=
2019 4 A 22 H
23 April 2014 to
22 April 2019
9,328,000 10,003,000 18.57 2015F4A81HZ
20203 A31H
1 April 2015 to
31 March 2020
11,428,000 12,210,000 19.96 2016F4/3128=%
2021 F4 A 11 H
12 April 2016 to
11 April 2021
7,236,000 7,456,000 2054 2017F4H26HZE
2022 4 A25H
26 April 2017 to
25 April 2022
8,802,000 10,100,000 20.16 201845 H27H=ZE
202345 H26H
27 May 2018 to
26 May 2023
11,212,000 11,342,000 2238 201994 H17B=
2024F 4 A 16 H
17 April 2019 to
16 April 2024
14,981,000 15,820,000 16.22 2020F6 A5HZE
20256 A4H
5 June 2020 to
4 June 2025
9,023,000 9,423,000 754 2021F7RH4H=Z
20267 H3H
4 July 2021 to
3 July 2026
10,770,000 11,270,000 10.20 202294 H21B=
20274 H20H
21 April 2022 to
20 April 2027

88,024,000 96,885,000
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32(a) 2008 FEEM EFTEI(E) 32(a) 2008 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
1E 2008 5T &I M ARTTE 2 FE AR Movements in the number of options outstanding and their
EEREMEFHTERE L # weighted average exercise prices under the 2008 Share
mr Option Schemes are as follows:
2018 2017
InREFES NS
TEE TEME
Weighted Weighted
average BREZE average FEAREZE
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
HKS$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
REH] At the beginning of year 16.20 96,885 16.50 101,553
RERTITEE Exercised during the year 10.26 (4,739) 9.20 (8,728)
R AE I Forfeited during the year 19.09 (279) 17.88 (1,322)
RE A KK Lapsed during the year 17.42 (3,843) 19.67 (6,038)
RE AR Granted during the year — — 10.20 11,420
REER At the end of the reporting
period 16.45 88,024 16.20 96,885
RATER - FRITEABERESN N The weighted average share price at the date of exercise
BFEIRE R 15.9887T(2017 4F - of share options exercised during the year was HK$15.98
13.6550) - HEEHA EFE (2017: HK$13.65). The number of share options vested
57 B G 1Y B AR i AR 22 5,066,000 during the reporting period was 5,066,000 (2077
(20174F :10,111,000) ° 10,111,000).
M2018F 12 A31H W AKRITERE The options outstanding at 31 December 2018 had a
RENIMETARTEOHE471 weighted average remaining contractual life of 4.71 years
F(2017F :550F) - WEER - (2017: 5.50 years). At the end of the reporting period,
A] 17 {5 BE A% 7 A9 A% 2 50,521,000 the number of exercisable options was 50,521,000 (2077:
(20174 : 54,037,000) - 7 # & 54,037,000) with weighted average exercise price of
B ATRER B N7 HK$18.49 (2017: HK$17.66).
6 18 R 18.4978 7L(20174 - 17.66
BIT) e
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32(b) 2018 F MR AET B

RNRAIREER2018F48
26 HERITHREFRI RS LB
B AT AR REET S (12018 5T
2] FHHEMBHREE0

]

ESEEUREEERTUTA
TR

(i) ARRRIEEAHBER

CIPA=SCEN: 1 E 1=
8 THRABHSRA
8 (BREAUTES  3F
WITESE B IFNTE
g R

\

\

(i) ARERKEEFAMBEL
AIRERHEER - TP
A - IR R EERA -

B 4E N A BR L E - 322018
e RERMARE 2 KM
AR 201851 &I FTIR T 2 B R
R ZBNHEETSER
RARREA L EE B (8]
2018F 4 A26 ) 2B &7
BHI0% - RNEER BE
TEEEREENEBRER
8,104,000% « #) &A1& & R
AN AR ERIE 7 201851 21 E
A2 BETRNEN0.14% °

FE2EEEZ 2018 B
SHEMBREE TAEAR
MRS TRE(BEEITER
AT ZERE) - EEMERT
Hia 2z 12 B A ATFEBER
THHMBEDZHTRNDNI% -
ZR1% BREETEERF]
PR EYHEAE

EMEZERAERAT
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP

32(b)2018 Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the new share option scheme (the
“2018 Share Option Scheme”) at the extraordinary general
meeting held on 26 April 2018, with a term of ten years
from the date of adoption. The 2018 Share Option Scheme
is a share incentive scheme and is established to recognise
and acknowledge the contributions the eligible participants
(as defined below) had or may have made to the Group.

The Board of Directors may, at its discretion, grant an option
to:

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives
(including executive, non-executive and independent
non-executive directors) or officers of the Company
and/or any of its subsidiaries; and

(i) any suppliers, customers, consultants, agents and
advisors of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

Without prior approval from the Company's shareholders,
the maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the 2018 Share Option Scheme and
under any other share option schemes of the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares
in issue at the time the 2018 Share Option Scheme was
adopted by the shareholders of the Company (i.e. 26 April
2018). At the end of reporting period, the total number
of shares in respect of which options had been granted to
its employees and directors under the 2018 Share Option
Scheme was 8,104,000, representing 0.14% of the shares
of the Company in issue at the time the 2018 Share Option
Scheme is adopted by the shareholders of the Company.

The total number of shares issued and may be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the 2018 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)
to an individual in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the
date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this
1% limit shall be subject to the shareholders’ approval.
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32(b) 2018 FEEREFT8I(Z) 32(b) 2018 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

TEEHEFTENEFRE
miTEE KA DR () R £
P AE R T AR B P E A
B (DO EBRERT B
516 & % A R B R 1 UL
mE: Rii)kOHOEES Z

R=EE -

BERENTESHESER
E o MBREZITERIZR
BTRZ10F - BEESRE
THIFREE - HBRESE
WETF 2 HBREZRBE
BERE¥ 1T - B—BRER
THRBEREE LBARA K
EERRER] -

£20185TEIRE R TARF K
HMBRARZEEREEZE
% 7 s 15 KA 2018 4F 122017
FI1I2ANBFEERNZ RITHE

The exercise price is determined by the Company’s Board
of Directors, and will not be less than the higher of (i)
the closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
grant; (i) the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Company’s Board of Directors, save that
no option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has
been granted. The options will be vested after three years
from the date of grant. A nominal consideration of HK$1
is paid by each option holder for each lot of share option
granted. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe
for one ordinary share of the Company.

Details of share options granted by the Company to the
employees and directors of the Company and its subsidiaries
pursuant to the 2018 Share Option Scheme and the share
options outstanding as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 are

KRR REA T - as follows:
RTEREHE
Number of RITFENBRESE
®FAH share options Number of share TEE TFEH
Grant date granted options outstanding Exercise price Exercisable period
2018 2017 HK$

2018F4H27H 2,478,000 2,478,000 — 16.18 20219F4H30H=E

27 April 2018 2028%4H26H
30 April 2021 to
26 April 2028

201854 H27H 5,626,000 5,590,000 — 16.18 202144H30HZ

27 April 2018 2024F4H26H
30 April 2021 to
26 April 2024

cE 8,104,000 8,068,000 —

Total
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32(b) 2018 FEE R AERT &I (&)

1815 2018 5 BIM R 1T 2 BB
HE B DA T 4977 (1R 2 8

32(b)2018 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Movements in the number of options outstanding and their
weighted average exercise prices under the 2018 Share

s Option Scheme are as follows:
2018
IniEEY
TEE
Weighted
average BREHA
exercise Number of
price options
HKS$ ‘000
REH) At the beginning of year —
REREL Granted during the year 16.18 8,104
RE AR Forfeited during the year 16.18 (36)
REEH At the end of the reporting period 16.18 8,068

RERIR B BB 57 8 1T
f& o

M20184F 12 A31H » HARTT
FRERENINETEBT AL
HA655F - WEEEH 8B
AR 1T -

EMEZERAERAT
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP

None of the options are vested and exercised during the
year.

The options outstanding at 31 December 2018 had a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 6.55 years.
At the end of the reporting period, none of the options are
exercisable.
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32(b) 2018 FEE R #ERT &I ()

BRERTEBZANBETL
ERRZEFRMBNE - A=
BABRETEEAETE - B
SEFE R R ERRNRE M
KAGFEREAZRS - ARE
ZEATEREBEERTHETE -
HEBEREAAERERACE
BT

R¥EZ

ARE

R/ B

Fair value

at grant

BFAH date

Grant date HK$/share

20184 A27H 4.50
27 April 2018

20184 A27H 3,50
27 April 2018

TR B A < — 4 MO P
DA R B LR IE
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BB R RE B E R b
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32(b)2018 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

il =1
LG
BR/ B
Share price
at grant
date
HK$/share

15.02

15.02

The fair value of the share options granted is measured at
the date of grant, using the binomial option pricing model,
taking into account the terms and conditions of the share-
based arrangement. The fair value calculated is inherently
subjective and uncertain due to the assumptions made and
the limitations of the model used. The inputs into the model
are as follows:

TEER ERRER

Bk B il AHRER
Exercise  Risk-free ~ BHKIE FHTHEH  Expected
price interest Expected Expected dividend
HKS$/share rate volatility life yield
16.18 4.09% 34.9% 104 2.3%

10 years
16.18 4.09% 34.9% 6% 23%

6 years

The expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the Company’s share price over the
last one year of share option granted. The variables and
assumptions used in computing the fair value of the share
options are based on the directors’ best estimate.
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33(a) ENHEHKE

Financial liabilities — Contingent
consideration payable

Financial asset (liabilities) —
Derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments
Interest rate swap (“IRS")

Cross currency interest rate swaps

("ccs”)

Less: Amount classified as non-current

portion

Current portion

2018 2017

Hret AREFT ARBTT

Note RMB’000 RMB'000

33(a) (9.862) (5,258)
33(b)

— 1,545

— (38,993)

— (37,448)

(9,862) (42,706)

9,862 5,258

— (37,448)

33(a) Contingent consideration payable

234

ZE BN A B A LR
EENLBRE  FEHNEG
AU mMAMF20 BBS
BOBRBEEHRET R TR
ERFEARMN G = EmIEat
FHENE—SBOEEN - &
HEERBzZARBEAARE
9,862,000 (2017 % + A B #
52580007 )+ B i 8 A 1%
FVPLETER BB EZIER

B (2017 F - JEREE ) -

FRN - IBEREZAANEER
BB B AR 4,604,000TE
AR (2017F - Wz A K
#432,0007T) °

EMEZERAERAT
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP

The amount represents the contingent consideration
payable arose from the acquisition of HZPS as detailed in
note 20 to the consolidated financial statements, which
was determined based on a certain portion of projected net
profits of HZPS for specified period as defined in the SPA.
The fair value of the contingent consideration payable was
RMB9,862,000 (2017: RMB5,258,000), which was recorded
in the non-current portion (2017: non-current portion) of
financial liabilities at FVPL.

During the year, loss on change in fair value of the
contingent consideration of RMB4,604,000 was debited
(2017: gain of RMB432,000 was charged) to profit or loss.
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33(b) FEERHHITANITETA 33(b) Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments

CCSRIRSHAEEERZAR
%89 5l £ 160,803,0003% 7T &
80,000,000 7T ° A& BT L
Eﬁt%ﬁilﬁmam%ﬁﬁﬂm

NABEITHAREEZE(NER
AU BMERMEIMTESRE)E
ERIMNEFFEE A - |
A FTAM TR HiB
ERAREBESSHEEERTD
TR - IREREHIN - CCSAHIRS

BEEIH I A R ¥ 45 B HA 65

EEEE o

FRN - CCSRIRSZHMH R
REEBHRELERARARE
44,719,000 7T(2017 4 < 4 7>
AF#125917,0007T)E 5T A

BRI 2IRFVPLEIEMN SR A

FE’Jﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁu@“é%@/\@ﬁ
RERE BTSRRI 5 46 ©

The notional principal amount of the outstanding CCS and
IRS was US$160,803,000 and US$80,000,000 respectively.
The objective of these derivatives entered into by the Group
was to mitigate the foreign exchange and interest rate
exposure arising from the RMB Notes (as defined in note
34 to the consolidated financial statements) issued by the
Company but do not qualify for hedge accounting and their
corresponding changes in fair values had been recognised
in profit or loss. During the reporting period, the CCS and
IRS were matured and fully settled immediately upon the
maturity of the RMB Notes.

During the year, gain on change in fair value of CCS and IRS
arrangements in an aggregate amount of RMB44,719,000
(2017 gain of RMB125,917,000) was credited to profit or
loss.

The valuation techniques and significant inputs used in the
measurement of the financial liabilities at FVPL are set out in
note 46 to the consolidated financial statements.
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236 EMERRERAS

Bank loans:

Secured
Unsecured

Unsecured notes

The maturity of the interest-bearing

borrowings is as follows:

Within one year

In the second year

In the third to fifth years, inclusive

Over five years

Portion classified as current liabilities
Non-current portion

Analysis of the amount due based on
scheduled payment dates set out in
the loan agreements (ignoring the effect of
any repayment on demand clause) is as

follow:

Within one year

In the second year

In the third to fifth years, inclusive

Over five years

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP

2018
AREFT
RMB’000

650,525
10,183,983

10,834,508

10,834,508

6,461,785
2,726,578

1,250,729
395,416

10,834,508
(6,461,785)

4,372,723

6,461,785
2,726,578

1,250,729
395,416

10,834,508

2017
ARETT
RMB'000

732,679
12,457,870

13,190,549
1,193,724

14,384,273

7,775,320
3,506,766

2,635,937
466,250

14,384,273
(7,775,320)

6,608,953

6,773,720
4,508,366

2,635,937
466,250

14,384,273
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Interest-bearing borrowings of RMB1,294,898,000 (2077:
RMB4,178,790,000), with a clause in their terms that gives the
lender an overriding right to demand repayment without notice
or with notice period of less than 12 months at its sole discretion,
are classified as current liabilities even though the directors do
not expect that the lenders would exercise their rights to demand
repayment.

The weighted average effective interest rate on the interest-
bearing borrowings is 3.75% (2017: 3.71%) per annum.

Interest-bearing borrowings are carried at amortised cost.

The Group’s secured bank loans are pledged by certain
investment properties, property, plant and equipment and prepaid
lease payments with net carrying amount of approximately
RMB1,119,000,000, RMB625,770,000 and RMB1,549,398,000
(2017: RMB1,106,000,000, RMB657,003,000 and
RMB1,593,667,000 respectively) respectively. The unsecured bank
loans are not pledged and certain of the unsecured bank loans
are covered by several cross guarantee arrangements amongst the
Group's entities.

The notes with principal amount of RMB1,000,000,000 issued by
the Company on 6 August 2015 (the “RMB Notes”) were listed
on Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited. During the
reporting period, the RMB Notes were matured and fully repaid.

Some of the banking facilities are subject to the fulfillment of
covenants relating to certain of the ratios of consolidated financial
position, as are commonly found in lending arrangements with
financial institutions. If the Group were to breach the covenants,
the drawn down facilities would become repayable on demand.
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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP

At fixed rates
At floating rates

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants
and the scheduled repayments of the term loans and does
not consider it probable that the relevant banks will exercise
its discretion to demand for repayment so long as the Group
continues to meet these requirements. Further details of the
Group's financial management of liquidity risk are set out in note
45 to the consolidated financial statements. Throughout the
reporting period, none of the covenants relating to drawn down
facilities had been breached (2077: None).

An analysis of the carrying amounts of the Group’s total
borrowings by type is as follows:

2018 2017
ARETT ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
2,568,939 1,543,724
8,265,569 12,840,549
10,834,508 14,384,273

The interest-bearing borrowings are denominated in the following
currencies:

2018 2017
ARE T AR TFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
3,013,652 4,479,953
7,820,856 9,904,320
10,834,508 14,384,273

Details of the Group'’s foreign currency risk and interest rate risk
discussion are set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Defined contribution plans

The Group participates in defined contribution plans organised
by the relevant local government authorities in the PRC, Hong
Kong and Taiwan for its PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan employees
respectively, whereby the Group is required to make monthly
contributions to these plans at certain percentage of the relevant
portion of the payroll of these employees to the pension scheme
to fund the benefits. The Group has no obligation for the
payment of retirement and other post-retirement benefits for the
PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan employees other than the monthly
contributions described above.
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Defined benefit plan

The Group has a defined benefit plan for its Taiwan employees.
The Group has not maintained any plan asset and bears the full
cost of all the plan benefits. The benefits are calculated based
on the length of service and average monthly salary for the final
six months of employment. The Group's obligation in respect of
the defined benefit plan is calculated by an independent actuary,
Messrs. Willis Towers Watson, Taiwan Branch (“Willis Towers
Watson"”). The latest actuarial valuation was performed by Willis
Towers Watson as at 31 December 2018 using the projected unit
credit method.

The amounts included in the consolidated statement of financial
position arising from the obligation of the Group in respect of its

REBE#FESHOT defined benefit plan and their movements in the present value of
defined benefit obligations are as follows:
2018 2017
AR¥TFT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REFA] At beginning of year 101,226 205,573
REFE PR A AR Current service cost 6,545 6,210
R B KA Interest expense 3,807 5,505
10,352 11,715
=HE Remeasurements:
VHBRPAEEEZ Actuarial loss (gains) arising from changes in
BEEE (k) financial assumptions 3,643 (44,935)
KRB ELEZBE Actuarial loss (gains) arising from experience
E1E (W) adjustments 36,360 (7,102)
40,003 (52,037)
EENEV Benefit payment (34,660) (53,168)
PE W ZRE Exchange differences (1,485) (10,857)
(36,145) (64,025)
R&EER At end of the reporting period 115,436 101,226
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REBFEIE) Defined benefit plan (Continued)
BEEENETERRE The significant assumptions used for the actuarial valuation were:
2018 2017
% %
PrIRE Discount rate 3.10 3.85
T8 AR B A Expected rate of salary increases 3.00 3.00
REER  SEXTERERRENE The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to reasonable

EAREEHHRATR/MNE T ZHE

Prig & Discount rate
& B % B 71 8 Expected rate of salary

increases

tRBEESTERBESEBEER
é“ﬂ’]‘%%‘fﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁﬁ%' i H Al

RFEFAE - HBEERR ﬂgTab
BRI B M S - ELE
AR ER Tﬁﬁ)\wﬁiﬁrﬁuwﬁ
RAZRAREERERIETLHR
BRAABNE HIRE A B ER
B A (B ) - BB AN
EERRBLE ARG EANE RATF
HBURE DT

ATETBMEETHINEFHER 2
430 (20174 : 5.734) o

RIELFAHE aZEEAER
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possible changes for each significant actuarial assumption as at
the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2018 2017
REBANELE REBMELE
Mt VE L
Change in Change in
RRHVE L defined  fRFZME/L defined
Change in benefit Change in benefit
assumption obligation assumption obligation
+/- 0.5% -2.06%/ +/- 0.5% -2.71%/
+2.18% +2.86%
+/-0.5% +2.43%/ +/- 0.5% +3.22%/
-2.31% -3.08%

The above sensitivity analysis is prepared based on a reasonable
possible change in each actuarial assumption used, with other
assumptions held constant. Other actuarial assumptions may
also change with the above assumptions. Such change is not
accounted for in the above analyses. The projected unit credit
method is used to determine the present value of the defined
benefit obligations and the related current service cost and where
applicable the past service cost. The same method and the type
of actuarial assumptions were used in preparing the sensitivity
analysis for the current and previous year.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation
is 4.30 years (2017: 5.73 years).

Under the plan, the Taiwan employees are entitled to retirement
benefits on the attainment of a retirement age of 60.
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Defined benefit plan (Continued)

The Group has no funding arrangement and expects no
contribution to be paid in respect of the defined benefit plan as
the defined benefit plan does not maintain any plan assets. The
expected maturity analysis of the undiscounted pension benefits is

as follows:
2018 2017
AR#FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
1FRN Within 1 year 37,609 10,426
B FER2FA More than 1 year but within 2 years 6,970 5,715
FRB3FERSFR More than 2 years but within 5 years 36,017 44,133
Hid5F Over 5 years 95,593 126,326
176,189 186,600

AEBFRELEH AR EZS N

The movements for the year in the Group’s net deferred tax
liabilities are as follows:

2018 2017

ARETT AREFr

RMB’000 RMB'000

REH] At beginning of year 762,016 1,197,704
WERARFEDER Withholding tax paid on distributions of

BB earnings by subsidiaries (277,879) (625,607)

U BB /B A ) Additions — business combination — 9,842

FALGERERA Charge to consolidated income statement 54,283 180,077

REEHR At end of the reporting period 538,420 762,016

BIECEMERE  IHEEER
MRPEMIINEREDEESD
A% BB IR HR 10% MY T R 0 U 38 1R
o 2B TEN2008F 1 A1 HMEAE
o @ AR 2007F 12 A31 BB A
ZEr Ao BRI o 85 B BT e

25N 1R 2 B B B 5K o 4t I A
FERZY - TEARIERE -

AREBBEABEELE10% -  AEER
& B E AR5 2007 F 1% B
W B HRE 7] RS 2R 9% A 5 iR
FIEE Rt £ 582 50% Mt 12 A28
FEERIBAE -

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends distributed to foreign
investors by the foreign investment enterprises established in
the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings accumulated after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between the PRC and jurisdiction of the foreign investors.

For the Group's PRC subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, the
applicable rate is 10%. Deferred tax liability is provided on 50% of
aggregate amount of post-2007 net earnings of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries that are expected to be distributed in the foreseeable
future.

BRAEER
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Bt X EP BB A RN 2017 F1& The estimated withholding tax effects on the distribution of
ZETREMEeR T HFE] A the remaining aggregate amount of post-2007 net earnings of
RBREELN A AR 1,648,467,000 the Group's PRC subsidiaries (the “Remaining Net Earnings”) is
TL(2017% « AR®1,501,528,000 approximately RMB1,648,467,000 (2017: RMB1,501,528,000)
TT)  BESERSAMMNTIE - & which would become payable when they are distributed. In the
ERRBAIRIEZERTFMNEA opinion of the directors, the Remaining Net Earnings, at the
BUESHENBRARIZEEELED - present time, are required for financing the continuing operations
WA B R AED RS - F Ut I & of these entities and no distribution to foreign investors would
VEHBEINE T B - be made in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, no provisions for

additional deferred taxation have been made.

REER  CERCELERIBEE Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities at the end of the
keEwT - reporting period represent the following:
2018 2017
BE afE BE aE
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

ARBFT ARETRT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000

MERBWBITE Accelerated depreciation
allowance — (611,456) — (596,205)
IR ST E Decelerated depreciation
allowance 2,052 = 2,052 —
NAEFRE - Fair value adjustment on:
— THMEAEE — Prepaid lease payments and
M B REE property, plant and
equipment — (68,083) — (72,094)
-BYEE — Intangible asset = (42,275) — (43,525)
—RE MR E — Investment properties — (20,323) — (17,072)
MEER Impairment losses 147,594 = 81,174 —
REGERZ Uninvoiced accrual
FEiREA 176,527 = 115,257 —
HEME - HER Unrealised profit on property,
B2 ARBRAE plant and equipment 71,824 — 81,353 —
MEARZ Undistributed earnings of
AP B subsidiaries — (176,237) — (307,178)
B EE Tax losses 27,782 — 27,782 —
Hit Others 3,483 (49,308) 392 (33,952)

BEEHRBEE(BME) Deferred tax assets (liabilities) 429,262 (967,682) 308,010  (1,070,026)

242 EMERRERAS
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Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses of RMB111,128,000
(2017: RMB111,128,000) were recognised as at the end of
reporting period. The tax losses can be carried forward for five
years from the year in which the losses arose for offsetting against
future taxable income. The expiry years of tax losses with no
deferred tax assets recognised at the end of the reporting date are

MIBEE 2 BEEEIBRFHET as follows:

2018 2017
BEEEIHRN ARMFT ARETFT
Tax loss expiring in: RMB’000 RMB’000
2018 — 478,504
2019 522,641 911,136
2020 649,567 666,387
2021 573,409 589,923
2022 575,550 693,845
2023 460,878 —
2,782,045 3,340,295
2018 2017
AR¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

PE 14 BR X Trade payables
$=h To third parties 5,626,698 5,836,747

BRI AT To related parties

—AREI7EEREFE - Agroup of companies jointly controlled by
HFEES —4E 1A the Company'’s directors and their
dependents 1,092,308 1,066,154
—ARRRIZEE — Companies jointly controlled by

HEES 2 AF] the Company'’s directors 226,199 201,710
BENT] To joint ventures 8,756 14,812
6,953,961 7,119,423

ENE=F  EEBALRAKA
AlZENERAEER 2R LMW

B30E0KENH -

to 90 days.

The trade payables to third parties, related parties and joint
ventures are unsecured, interest-free and with credit period of 30

EEEER 243
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The ageing analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date at

the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2018
AREFT
RMB’000

6,075,099
878,862

6,953,961

2017
ARETT
RMB'000

6,335,339
784,084

7,119,423

The trade payables are denominated in the following currencies:

2018

AREFT

RMB’000

RMB 6,949,212

Uus$ 4,513

Others 236

6,953,961

2018

AR®FT

RMB’000

Deposits received in advance 1,751,395

Accruals for transportation, promoting and

advertising expenses 3,915,327
Accruals for administrative expenses and other

operating expenses 496,952

Salaries and welfare payables 988,455

Payables for purchase of equipment 64,553

Other tax payables 738,043

Dividend payable to non-controlling interests 25,859

Others 542,412

8,522,996

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP

2017
ARETT
RMB'000

7,119,050
254
119

7,119,423

2017
ARETT
RMB'000

2,171,708

2,615,470

440,360
972,444

42,753
671,158

503,139

7,417,032
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2018 2017
AR¥TFTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

B A5 A g A Profit before taxation 3,979,334 3,392,736
FEEA Interest expenses 421,682 454,868
FBUA Interest income (348,388) (270,786)
e Depreciation 3,210,324 3,513,679
ARNESHEEY Dividend income from available-for-sale

& FIBA financial assets — (1,103)
WFVPLETERMEREEZ  Dividend income from financial assets at FVPL

PR A M A (6,500) —
T AR A0 B 2 B8 Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 103,693 106,618
EEE BN Amortisation of intangible assets 9,490 5,079
HEWE  WENERHER  Loss on disposal of property, plant and

T AR B 2 B E equipment and prepaid lease payments 86,607 15,337
Y - IR RRAEREETE  Impairment loss on property, plant and

equipment 625,846 224,021

BAREEYENAREZE Changein fair value of financial liabilities at

RENSHBEQAMELZ  FVPL net

28)FH (40,115) (126,349)
WEMEENTEZEE Change in fair value of investment properties (13,000) (46,223)
RFVPLETEM S RUE E Change in fair value of financial assets at FVPL

NAEZEE 49,675 —
BE—FKBERATRWEE  Gain on re-measurement of an associate to

ZAR(EE fair value at acquisition date — (7,381)
HEMB AR Z WS Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (387.844) (43,725)
HEAIHEESREE Y Gain on disposal of available-for-sale

W & financial assets — (21,080)
& NAMEERE Gain on deregistration of associates and

PRI 2 W joint ventures (436) —
FEMRERE RN E) KA E AR  Share of results of associates and joint ventures

E (71,580) (101,180)
[EREH) & Effect on exchange rate changes (23,842) (150,117)
RYNAE R EE R Recognition of equity-settled share-based

X2 FIE payment 32,799 44,234
FE 2 (#m)md (Increase) Decrease in inventories (287,129) 60,037
JRE AL BR 51 2 38 i Increase in trade receivables (94,731) (329,939)
TR RIB R A EYFIE  (Decrease) Increase in prepayments and

Z OB )18 other receivables (380,308) 127,762
FET BRFR 2 38 00 Increase in trade payables 380,486 747,846
HibEMFRBEREWIFE  Increase in other payables and deposits

-t received 1,331,135 676,916
BETEMFRIE Z G N Increase in advance payments from customers 394,192 269,298
IFERETREFEMTIREZ Decrease in present value of

Do unfunded employee benefit obligations (24,307) (41,453)
KEEEFBRE Cash generated from operations 8,947,083 8,499,095
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Unsecured notes (Note 34)

Banks loans (Note 34)

Dividend payable to
non-controlling interests
(Note 38)

39(a)

R2018
1R18

At

1 January
2018
ARBFT
RMB'000

1,193,724
13,190,549

14,384,273

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of
cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

¥R2%8
Non-cash changes
i B R2018%
RER FEXH ERRA EXEE 128318
Amortised At
Financing interest Dividend Exchange 31 December
cash flows expenses declared  realignment 2018

ARBTL AREFL ARBTT AREFT  ARETZ
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HE (), (i)
Notes (i), (i)

(1,206,628) 1,756 - 11,148 -
(2,780,467) - 424,426 10,834,508

(141,619) - 167,478 - 25,859

(4,128,714) 1,756 167,478 435,574 10,860,367
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39(a) METBHELNEEHRE) 39(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities (Continued)
FROED
Non-cash changes
720175 BE B 20176
1A1H RER MBXH EREE 128318
At Amortised At
1 January Financing interest Exchange 31 December
2017 cash flows expenses  realignment 2017

ABRTT  ARKMTT  ARETT ARETT ARETFIL
RMB000 RIIB'000 RIMB 000 RMB000 RIMB'000

et ()
Note (i)
BEARER (H7#34)  Unsecured notes (Note 34) 5,669,548 (4,383,600) 9,751 (101,975) 1,193,724
SRITEF(MEF34)  Banks loans (Note 34) 10,374,388 3,270,959 — (454,798) 13,190,549
16,043,936 (1,112,641) 9,751 (556,773) 14,384,273
(i)  SBITERABRIE  RITEHE (i)  The cash flows from unsecured notes and bank loans make
fth 18 FR(E 38 A & B b 2 AR 1S up the net amount of proceeds from bank borrowings,
FEREY  BAEERRRE repayments of bank and other borrowings and net
RRTEFHRERE movement of other short-term borrowings.
(i) ERNLEBERERRENESR (i) The cash flows from dividend payable to non-controlling
EEFRANZMNDEREDHR interests represent dividends paid to non-controlling
B interests during the year.

EEEEr 247
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BRAGAKRBEEMBIENREZR
AT AREEES
HEBALTETZERARSHE @ ik
EXGINAEREZAREBDE

2 M ERERASN

of the Group's business.

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in
the consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into the
following material related party transactions in the ordinary course

17 e
2018 2017
o= AREFT ANEEFT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
(@) FBBALZXZ (@) Related party transactions
mNHAREESR Sales of goods to:
ARE 2 EERE S Companies controlled by
AL VN a substantial shareholder
of the Company (i) 146,761 146,871
N Associates 56,295 110,068
BERT Joint ventures 406,258 276,903
g G AREEER ! Purchases of goods from:
ARACEERERE A group of companies jointly
HEES 2 —BATF controlled by the Company's
directors and their dependents (i) 5,065,192 5,062,366
=V Joint ventures 65,478 89,641
BT ARRAEHEER ! Promotional expenses paid to:
ARRZEERFES 2 Companies controlled by
%E AT a substantial shareholder
of the Company (i) 50,624 30,670
BTHARRBRKER Administrative expenses paid
THER: on behalf and received from:
AERH Joint ventures 5,230 15,263
B 52 B R & Rental income from investment
FEHERNE - BBR properties and property, plant and
EEzHE equipment
ARRZEFERFIES 2 Companies controlled by
LN a substantial shareholder
of the Company 43,034 38,818
ARAICEERERE A group of companies jointly controlled
HEZEHz—EAE] by the Company's directors and
their dependents 2,891 3,263
Mizks) IRIBELTRAE14AE  ZFH Note () These related party transactions also constitute continuing

BREBMAT 2 X SIS ERE connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
X5 e Rules.

248 EMERRERLE
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(b) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors, chief
executive officer and certain of the highest paid employees
as disclosed in note 11 to the consolidated financial

BYN27IB)WNT : statements, is as follows:
2018 2017
AR¥TFTT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
EEHe Directors’ fees 4,182 4,265
FeRHEHAMIME Salaries and other emoluments 48,341 55,793
LARRAD 55 2 SR IE Share-based payments 15,284 24,444
1E4T Discretionary bonuses 22,538 6,651
90,345 91,153

ZEEER 2017 FREMIMNE EN
REFReHERNGDY  5FBEH
RERA BT R RER M 3E20 - FBEAB R
TR 2021 FERAE - Btk
7 20184F 12 A31 H K E i 3E 7% 8
afE-e

FRATEEEVEREEAF 155
MEFEHBEMTEERRFF AR
MER D EERZEE)MT

The amount represents the remaining portion of the cash
consideration in acquiring HZPS's equity interest in 2017 as
detailed in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements which
is expected to be settled not later than the end of 2021 and is
therefore recorded in other non-current liabilities at 31 December
2018.

The movements (excluding those arising from increases and
decreases both occurred within the same year) of contract
liabilities from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15 during
the year are as follows:

2018

AR¥FT

RMB’000

7R2018F 1 A1H At 1 January 2018 1,284,590
R ABA Recognised as revenue (1,284,590)
WEIR RN BB TR Receipt of advances of undelivered goods 1,678,782
REER At end of the reporting period 1,678,782

MR2018%F 12 A31H EFENMNR
HIBHR —FAERBUEA -

At 31 December 2018, the advance payments from customers are
expected to be recognised as revenue within one year.

EEEEr 249
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FR AEEEMEBILE=FHF]
UMHhEERE  LEMEEZEN
BARZEE  BNRETEHME
BRAEBRQG(RERE])  £Z
HERERMEETE: REEER
BEmBRAG([MERZE]) £ 2
HERBREREE  BREOA
AR ®462,173,0007T ° & £ 8
DRI 2018F 3 A K% 2018F 9 A 5%

During the year, the Group entered into two sales and purchase
agreements with two independent third parties for the disposal
of the entire equity interests in two wholly-owned subsidiaries
namely Tianjin Dingya Property Development Co., Ltd. (“TJDA"),
which principally engaged in leasing and property management;
and Nanning Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. (“NNTJ"), which principally
engaged in manufacture and sales of beverages, at an aggregate
consideration of approximately RMB462,173,000. The disposals
were completed in March 2018 and September 2018 respectively.

’E‘Z o
BATR Bt 78 Uk B (B e A 1 & B AP The following summarises the consideration received and the
EENBEMREE carrying amount of the assets and liabilities at the date of disposal:
REEHE [EEED= aE
TIDA NNTJ Total
ARETFT  AREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
FHENFEE(ER) Net assets (liabilities) disposed of
WmE - RN Property, plant and equipment 82,704 408,252 490,956
THHRORE Prepaid lease payments 16,735 63,836 80,571
E3 Inventories 509 31,821 32,330
FEHBR K Trade receivables 2,014 13,631 15,645
FEATFIE K E At e R IE Prepayments and other receivables 568 203,440 204,008
FITEBRAS Bank balance and cash 20,186 4,549 24,735
FERTER SR Trade payables (882) (545,066) (545,948)
HEipEMAFZIENRE WS Other payables and deposit received (205,545) (18,011) (223,556)
BIE Taxation (185) 4,227) (4,412)
(83,896) 158,225 74,329
HERBARMKE (BE) Gain (Loss) on disposal of subsidiaries 391,069 (3,225) 387,844
307,173 155,000 462,173
2R E Consideration received
RanE Cash consideration 307,173 155,000 462,173
HEMBARZEESRAEHE . Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries
ReRE Cash consideration 307,173 155,000 462,173
BHEZRERASEEY Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (20,186) (4,549) (24,735)
BERBESEYZRAFE  Netinflow of cash and cash equivalents 286,987 150,451 437,438

BREEERERLR
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The Group's objectives on managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders.

The Group monitors its capital, which comprises all equity
components, using a gearing ratio which is calculated on the basis
of net debt (interest-bearing borrowings net of cash and cash
equivalents) as a ratio of the equity attributable to owners of the
Company. The debt-to-equity ratio at the end of the reporting

T -

BEEE

B BRE MRS FEY
FCRR)ER
ZAYNCI L o

FREREARL R

REERBELEH MR

period was as follows:

Interest-bearing borrowings

Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Net (cash) debt

Total equity attributable to owners

of the Company

Gearing ratio

s
A R

2018 2017
AREFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
10,834,508 14,384,273
(13,840,421) (10,284,889)
(3,005,913) 4,099,384
19,653,476 18,412,079
-15.29% 22.26%

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital

BT R MERBERERE I
RBEERANECHBEE NG
BoABKRERE EERERE
% BITHEBARKRERN LI
MPEMLE  ZRMHEEEMNX
B RRERHMLERS -

20184 « N [E /) 5K BE 812017
FHE - BEBFEERETHE -

structure through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance and makes adjustments to capital structure according
to changes in economic conditions for achieving its objectives
through payment of dividends, retire of existing debts, issue of
new debts and sales of lands and properties not in use. Changing
of borrowing rate in the market, future capital expenditures and
investment opportunities are taken into consideration.

During 2018, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from
2017, aims at minimising the net debt approximately to nil
balance.
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The Group’s financial instruments expose it to foreign currency
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board
of Directors generally adopts conservative strategies on its risk
management and limits the Group's exposure to these risks to a
minimum. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below:

Foreign currency risk

The majority of the subsidiaries of the Group are operated in the
PRC and most of their transactions are denominated in RMB.
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through
payable on capital expenditures, purchases, bank balances,
interest-bearing borrowings, financial assets at FVPL (2077
available-for-sale financial assets), financial liabilities at FVPL and
related party balances that are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the Company or its subsidiaries.

The exchange rate of RMB against US$ is subject to the rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
PRC government. The Group did not have significant exposure
to foreign exchange risk arising from daily operating activities of
the subsidiaries because their main operations are conducted in
their functional currency. Considered the diverged trends of the
exchange rates between RMB and the US dollars and the Group
itself, the Group has adopted a financing strategy to increase the
PRC subsidiaries proportion of on shore financing and to reduce
their foreign currencies financing. Apart from the CCS and IRS
arrangements which were settled during the year, the Group has
not entered into significant hedging activities to hedge against the
exposure to foreign currency risk.

Details of the Group's financial assets at FVPL (2077 available-
for-sale financial assets), cash and cash equivalents, financial
liabilities at FVPL, interest-bearing borrowings and trade payables
denominated in currencies other than RMB as at 31 December
2018 and 2017 are set out in notes 23, 28, 33, 34 and 37 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.
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Foreign currency risk (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, if the exchange rates of RMB/
US$, RMB/NTD and RMB/EUR had strengthened/weakened by
5.5%, 3.4% and 5.3% respectively (2017: 4.1%, 3.2% and
8.8% respectively) with all other variables held constant, the
Group's profit for the year and retained profits would have been
RMB3,745,000 (2017: RMB45,287,000) higher/lower.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the
change in foreign exchange rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to Group's exposure
to currency risk for all financial instruments in existence at that
date, and that all other variables, in particular interest rates,
remain constant. The stated changes in foreign currency represent
management’s assessment of reasonably possible changes in
foreign exchange rates over the period until the next annual end
of the reporting period. The analysis was performed on the same
basis for 2017.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank balances and interest-
bearing borrowings. Bank balances and interest-bearing
borrowings with floating interest rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk. For interest-bearing borrowings, the
Group's policy is to manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed
and floating rate debts, monitor closely its interest rate exposure
and the level of fixed rate and floating rate borrowings in
consideration of economic atmosphere and the strategies of the
Group.

Apart from the CCS and IRS arrangements which were settled
during the year as detailed in note 33(b) to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group has not entered into significant
hedging activities to hedge against the exposure to cash flow and
fair value interest rate risk. At the end of the reporting period, the
Group’s borrowings at fixed rate of interest was 24% (2017: 7%
upon taken in to consideration the effects of the IRS and CCS).
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Interest rate risk (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates had been 100
(2017: 100) basis point higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s profit for the year and retained profits
would decrease/increase by RMB8,538,000 (20177: decrease/
increase by RMB64,212,000 upon taken into consideration the
effects of the IRS and CCS).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred throughout the year
and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for all
financial instruments in existence during the year. The 100 (2017:
100) basis point increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual end of the reporting period. The
analysis was performed on the same basis for 2017.

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to cash and cash
equivalent, trade and other receivables. Substantially all of the
Group's pledged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents
were deposited in the creditworthy global financial institutions
and state-controlled financial institutions in the PRC, which
management considers they are without significant credit risk.
The carrying amount of financial assets recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position, which is net of loss
allowance, represents the Group’s exposure to credit risk without
taking into account the value of any collateral held or other credit
enhancements.
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Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables

The majority of the Group’s sales are conducted on a cash
basis. The Group has implemented policies to ensure that sales
of products are made to direct retailers, who wish to trade on
credit terms, with an appropriate credit history which is subject to
periodic reviews. Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of
the industry and country in which customers operate also has an
influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent.

The Group's customer base consists of a wide range of clients
and the trade receivables are categorised by common risk
characteristics that are representative of the customers’ abilities to
pay all amounts due in accordance with the contractual terms. The
Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECL for trade
receivables and recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECL at each reporting date and has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment. The expected loss rate used in the Group’s
estimation on ECL is calculated for each category based on actual
credit loss experience over the past three years and adjusted for
current and forward-looking factors to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over which the historical
data has been collected, current conditions and the Group's
estimate on future economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables. The management considered that these factors
do not indicate any significant credit risk and additional loss
allowance for provision for trade receivables as at 1 January and
31 December 2018 to be insignificant. There was no change in
the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during
the year.
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EERK(E) Credit risk (Continued)
FEU R (2) Trade receivables (Continued)
MR2018F 12 A31H BEEERE The information about the exposure to credit risk and ECL for
mER M EBER N EERR & trade receivables based on past due status as at 31 December
ECLEYERHR AT - 2018 is summarised below.
7201812 A31H As at 31 December 2018
WEREE EEEZE
Gross carrying
amount Credit-impaired
AR¥FT
RMB’000
KREH] Not past due 1,461,566 No
SR ERERE Past due but not impaired
30 R Within 30 days 94,915 No
31-90 % 31 -90 days 107,352 No
im0k Over 90 days 51,638 No
1,715,471
M2017%12831H As at 31 December 2017
2017F 12 A31HE @ HE K% The ageing of trade receivables as at 31 December 2017 which
AR EYRER AR IO T were past due but not impaired was as follows:
2017
AREFT
RMB’000
[SEcp: Past due
PN Within 30 days 98,074
31-90 % 31 -90 days 83,822
B 90K Over 90 days 44,699
226,595
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Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The trade receivables as at 31 December 2017 that were past due
but not impaired related to a number of independent customers
that had a good track record with the Group. The Group had not
impaired these debtors as there had not been a significant change
in credit quality and the directors believed that the amounts would
be fully receivable.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

The Group does not hold any collateral over trade receivables as at
31 December 2018 (2077: Nil).

Amounts due from associates, joint venture and related
parties

The Group considers that the amounts due from associates,
joint ventures and related parties, no matter it is trade receivable
or non-trade receivable, have low credit risk based on the
counterparties’ strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term and low risk of default. Impairment
on amounts due from these parties is measured on 12-month ECL
and reflects the short maturities of the exposures. At 31 December
2018, the additional loss allowance for provision for amounts due
from these parties was insignificant.
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Credit risk (Continued)
Loan and other receivables

The Group performs impairment assessment on loan and other
receivables from various parties based on 12-month ECL. The
credit risk of the Group's loan and other receivables arises from
default of the counterparties, with maximum exposure equal to
the carrying amounts of these receivables. Individual credit limits
are set based on the assessments of the credit quality.

In estimating the ECL, the Group has taken into account
the historical actual credit loss experience and the financial
position of the counterparties, past collection history, current
creditworthiness, adjusted for forward-looking factors that are
specific to the debtors and general economic conditions of the
industry in which the counterparties operate, in estimating the
probability of default of these financial assets, as well as the
loss upon default in each case. The management of the Group
considers the ECL of these financial assets to be insignificant after
taking into account the financial position, credit quality of the
counterparties and past settlement records. There was no change
in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made
during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had a concentration
of credit risk as 85.92% of loan receivables (2077: 40.05% of the
total debt investment and amount due from former subsidiaries)
which was due from the Group's largest debtor, and 100% of
loan receivables (2077: 100% of the total debt investment and
amount due from former subsidiaries) which was due from the
Group's five largest debtors.
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FEFTER Trade payables

Hiv AR K Other payables and
ERe deposits received

BEEE Interest-bearing borrowings

HinkERHam Other non-current liabilities

ENRARE

Contingent consideration payable
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Liquidity risk

The Group’s objectives when managing liquidity risk are to
maintain sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
credit facilities. Also, the Group's policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements, in particular those
relating to capital expenditure and repayments of debts. At the
end of the reporting period, the Board of Directors expected
that the Group had no significant liquidity risk in the near future.
Details of the preparation of consolidated financial statements on
a going concern basis are set out in note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The maturity profile of the Group'’s financial liabilities at the end of
the reporting period based on contractual undiscounted payments
is summarised below:

1L 260 L

1508  ER2FR  BESFR

BEREX  Morethan  More than
Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but S5EME

1 year or within less than Over EH)
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total

ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000

6,953,961 — - - 6,953,961
6,796,498 - - - 6,796,498
6,760,386 2,881,353 1,373,027 470,088 11,484,854
- - 40,000 - 40,000
- - 9,862 — 9,862

20,510,845 2,881,353 1,422,889 470,088 25,285,175
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RBELERE)

R2017F 128310 At 31 December 2017

FEFTEER Trade payables
HinEETH R Other payables and
Bl deposits received
BREE Interest-bearing borrowings
HEthIEnBaE Other non-current liabilities
CCSRIRS 2 &HE CCS and IRS arrangements
(FEHE) (net settled)
[ERSHENRE Contingent consideration payable
s £hH

EXBEER —GETERALEE
R IER T EEFERZRKEE
HEGR - HEAGESHRRA LD #®

BERIMREFENR IR - BEE

EWTTEPEEASTEESRE
KEHEF| - ARM1,294,898,000 7T
(2017 NER #4178 790,0007T )

Liquidity risk (Continued)

180 L 250 E

1¥R8  BE25FRr  BESFR

REKRER  Morethan  More than

Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but S5EUL

1 year or within less than Over &t
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
AEEFT ANEEFT AREF7T AREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
7,119,423 — — - 7,119,423
5,748,430 — — — 5,748,430
8,064,896 3,669,015 2,819,589 565,253 15,118,753
— 40,000 — — 40,000
(5,174) — — — (5,174)
— 5,258 — — 5,258
20,927,575 3,714,273 2,819,589 565,253 28,026,690

The amounts repayable under loan agreements that include a
clause that gives the lenders the unconditional right to call the
loan at any time are classified under the “on demand” bracket.
In this regard, interest-bearing borrowings of RMB1,294,898,000
(2017: RMB4,178,790,000) as at the end of the financial period
have been so classified even though the directors do not expect
that the lenders would exercise their rights to demand repayment

REERER A EE 2% and thus these borrowings would be repaid according to the
BENKBERHZERFHERN following schedule as set out in the loan agreements:
T
2018 2017
ARMFTT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BEEEE Interest-bearing borrowings
1R Within 1 year 1,311,553 3,247,212
F2F In the second year — 1,007,808
1,311,553 4,255,020
260 EHEERERAT
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(a)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value

The following table presents the financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value or required to disclose their
fair value in these consolidated financial statements on a
recurring basis at 31 December 2018 across the three levels
of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value
Measurement, with the fair value measurement categorised
in its entirety based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to the entire measurement. The levels are defined
as follows:

- Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Group can access at the measurement date;

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly;

- Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.
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(a) UARAAEBEIRNESHMEEREE (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(&) (Continued)
2018 2017
R fin A3 At iGN gsh #iAl3 =)
Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

ABBTL ARETL ARRTE ABRTZ ARETT ARRTT ARRTT ARETT
RMBU0)  RMBUO0  RMBY00  RMBUO)  RVBUNO  AUBOD  AUBOOD  RMBUM

EE Assets

THIESREE Avaiable-forsale financial assels

-REES - Investment funds = = = = - — 504359 5043%

-BAER EET - Eouitysecurtes, unlsted - - - - - - 1w 1mm

FIALEENZEAE  Financal assels at FUPL

e - Investment funds - = M14% 84749 - - - -

-BxE%5 - tw - Equity securites, listed 625 = = 625 - - - -

FEER00 Desipnated FUOC

-REE5 kL - Equity securitie, unlited = — 1018 114018 - - - -
625 - 561,514 562,139 - - 615,081 615,081

8f Liabilities

FLREEAERERS  Financal labilties at FVPL

ERENEEE
- EREERE - Contingent consideration payable = = 9,862 9,862 - - 5,258 5,258
— HETREATAS - Derivatives not designated
fTETE a hedging instruments = = = = -8 - 348

- - 9,862 9,862 - 37443 5,258 42706

M2018F K2017FE R - 38 During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, there

BHEEERBERR2 2 E were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value

B MEEBHEBREERR measurements and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair

3R EH - value measurements.
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(@) HUAREEFIRNEREEREE
(%)

M2018FE M 2017 F N E E HA
EAREFEDEAEAIN
FAEBWNT -

RER] At beginning of the year

ROEETRESENZR Recassication upon adoption of HKFRS 9
Byt

EA Purchases
A At completion day of acquisiton
ik Disposal

T2 ERES(BE)  Total gains or (osses) recognied:

& - inprofitor loss

B2 ENE ~in other comprehensive income
EizE Eichange difference
REER At the end of the reporting period

WREEHESHEMEE  Total gain or (losses) for the year reclassified
BEEAEZBNET from other comprehensive income
(E8) on disposals

REEAREZEER Change in unrealised gain or (Josses)
BETABRNEHAEE  forthe yearincluded in profit or loss
W&E3(F8) 248 for assets and liablities held

at the end of the reporting period

(a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

The details of the movements of the recurring fair value
measurements categorised as Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017
are shown as follows:

2018 2017
EE &f gE L
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilties
BAVPLERH
SREE EEFVOCI THESREE
Designated
FVPL Fvocl Avallable-for-sale financial assets

REE: RAR%R FL7  BNIARE KRS RAEH LT ENAARE

Equity ~ Contingent Equity Contingent
Investment securities,  consideration Investment securities,  consideration
funds unlisted payable funds Unlisted payable

ABRTR  AREFT  ARRFT  ARRTT ARETT ARETL
RMB 000 RMBOOD  RMBOOD  AIBOOD AUBO0D  AUBOOD

- - (5,258) 487,054 130,757 -
504,359 132,693 - - - -
48,735 - - 16,983 - -
- - - - - (5,690)
(79.443) (8521) - (79,484) - -
(48,772) - (4,604) - - 832
- (16,265) - 107,34 (11,949) -
2,617 6,111 - (27,540) (8,086) -
447,49 114,018 (9.862) 504,359 110,722 (5,258)
- - - 21,080 - -
(50,601) - (4,604) - - 32
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(@) HUAREEIIRNEREERER
(%)
ERERMN2RAR3 2D REE
AEZAERMAERBA

() IEFVPLEE I ) % Fb B E
(2017 : AfRHE) : #E
22

HZE2018%F12A318 -
AEBFLEZRANEER
TR MEERREIEN
SREE2017 : A
E)NEERESCTERR
WoEAAREBERERD
WBI3 (20174 : P @R
F3) o

ERBI3EF—TBRER
THWAREREREE
KIENEERARKRES
MEZHREESEEF
RE(HET o BAI3E R =1E
(20174 : =) 21 &
ES 2 AnBERBEES
FIiEEMARINAREER
fhst e FREMRI3ZIRE
EYpiE EmREMIE
EHRE - EEREHA
REGBTRZ2ET ISR
B MIELTHRENLR
BEEHBEBEESEENA
BIETAXRIER R
RAVTE B (B BT VERTE
& o FHHIELEMARIBHA
AERBIE IR
RAIGERI T ETF
BT BEFEEHE
EEXH-8%E2% (2017
F-18% F29%) - Al
R ARZFEHATRES
23.2f&(20174 : 16.6
EE47.4F) ATHEERA
Al FHMEEB18
BE1.35M&(2017F :
2.1ZF10.41%) -
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(a)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation techniques and significant inputs used in Level 2
and Level 3 fair value measurement

(i)

Financial assets at FVPL (2017: Available-for-sale):
Investment funds

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s financial assets
at FVPL (2017: available-for-sale financial assets)
mainly comprise four investment funds which are
categorised as Level 3 (20177: four Level 3) of the fair
value hierarchy.

The fair value of one of the investment funds in
Level 3 is estimated based on the net asset value
of the investment fund reported to the investors
by the investment manager as at the end of the
reporting period. For the remaining three (2077:
three) investment funds in Level 3, their fair values are
estimated based on the fair values of the companies
invested by the funds. All of the investment funds in
Level 3 included both listed investments and unlisted
investments. The fair values of listed investments are
estimated with reference to quoted market price, while
the fair values of unlisted investments are estimated
by the respective investment managers using valua-
tion techniques including mainly price/earnings (P/E)
multiple model and price/sales (P/S) multiple model.
In determining the fair value of unlisted investments,
it includes assumptions that are not supported by
observable market prices or rates. The expected
annual growth rates of unquoted companies invested
by the funds ranging from -8% to 2% (2017: -18% to
29%), average price/earnings (P/E) and average price/
sales (P/S) multiples of comparable companies of the
corresponding industries of 23.2 times (2077: ranging
from 16.6 to 47.4 times) and ranging from 1.18 to
1.35 times (2017: 2.1 to 10.4 times) respectively.
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(a)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value

(Continued)

(ir)

(iir)

(iv)

Designated FVOCI (2017: Available-for-sale): Unlisted
equity securities

The fair value of the unlisted equity securities in Level
3 are mainly determined by the investment manager
using price/sales (P/S) multiple model. In determining
the fair value of the unlisted equity securities, it
includes assumptions that are not supported by
observable market prices or rates, including expected
annual growth rates of -1% (2077: 0%) and
comparable companies’ average P/S multiples of 1.18
times (2017: 1.5 times).

Financial liabilities at FVPL: Derivatives not designated
as hedging instruments

The fair values of IRS and CCS contracts at 31
December 2017, which were categorised as Level 2 of
the fair value hierarchy, was determined based on the
present value of the estimated cash flows based on
the terms and maturity of each contract, taking into
account the current interest rates, foreign exchange
spot and forward rates and interest rate curves.

Financial liabilities at FVPL: Contingent consideration
payable

The fair value of contingent consideration payable in
Level 3 is determined by using the income approach
based on the expected payment amounts and their
associated probabilities. When appropriate, it is
discounted to present value. In the opinion of the
directors, changing one or more of the inputs to
reasonably possible alternative assumptions would not
change the fair value significantly.

BRAEER
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(a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable
inputs

The sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable inputs

(a) UAAEEIIENEBMEERAE
(&)
TEFTEHERABBEZEE
BR3AREFAEZEFERT
B ABREZEZHNT :
018 &
1283182
MfE
Fair value at

31 December 2018 f5EH#

i AREFT  Valuation

Description RIB000 techniques

BOAEESIRREA

BRERENCHEE

Financial assets at FVPL

REES W14%  TREER

Investment funds PIE multiple

mHEER
PIS multiple
RAES kL 14018 THEEER
Equity securities, unlisted PIS multiple

266 EMEZRRERAS

for Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows:

MEERERE
AEEEMAE
hange
Impact on fair
value and the
Group's other
TIEREANESH LA BENGEE comprehensive
(RREARZRETE) income for
Sensitivity of fair value to changes in RENTREE the year
TABRAA unobservable inputs (assuming other factors Reasonably NEETT
Unobservable input remain unchanged) possible range RUB 000
FRRBERE FRRBARENS +10% #1259
MBS R
Expected annual growth rates  The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
the fair value and vice verss;
BRI TMEE  AHBAE TETRRER AAAEEER R H4% 512
2T
Average PIE ratio of The higher average P/E ratio of comparable companies,
comparable companies the higher the fair value and vice verss;
EHES e EMBERE RAA: 5% #1676
Expected annual growth rates  The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
the fair value and vice versa;
TEERAT TmEE  AHBATZ TEREE  EROAAEE R +#31% 411,004
e
Average PIS ratio of The higher average P/S ratio of comparable companies,
comparable companies the higher the fair value and vice verss;
EREHERE EEEENERRBERTMS +5% 44,865
ERABEER RN
Expected annual growth rates  The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
the fair value and vice versa;
BRI FAm A% 2% +36,678

Average PIS ratio of
comparable companies

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

IHRAR HITHE - ERNAAEE R
The higher average P/S ratio of comparable companies,
the higher the fair value and vice versg;
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(@) U2ABEEFIENERMEERAE (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(%) (Continued)
TEFTBEERAHREZEH Sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable
(%) inputs (Continued)
MEBERAEE
KEEEMZE
bEhgE
Impact on fair
Ra017 value and the
1283182 Group's other
ME TUBREANESEL A EENSRE comprehensive
Fair value at (BREMRZRETE) income for
31 December 2017 &5 Sensitivity of fair value to changes in ABNTHER the year
it AFEFT Valuaion  FAEZEA unobservable inputs (assuming other factors Reasonably NERTT
Description RIB00 techniques  Unobservable input remain unchanged) possible range RUB 000
TlLENEHEE
Available-for-sale financial assets
hERE 0439 MEREY  FEEHARX ERREREES +-10% #5513
EMEER R
Investment funds PIE multiple  Expected annual growth rates  The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
the fair value and vice versa;
AT TIMEE  AHBAR THTREEE  AAAEEER R #1% 4780
2Tk
Average PIE ratio of The higher average P/E ratio of comparable companies,
comparable companies the higher the fair value and vice verss;
TEEEY  RAFERE EMEEER R +5% 44612
PIS multiple ~ Expected annual growth rates  The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
the fair value and vice versa;
TERATLTImEE  AHBATZTETEE  EROALEE kK +2% #1335
e
Average PIS ratio of The higher average P/S ratio of comparable companies,
comparable companies the higher the fair value and vice verss;
FEMRAES 1ojn  mERRY  FRESERE BERENSRRMIRRER H5% 45,536
ARABEER  RAR-
Unlisted equity securities PIS multiple  Expected annual growth rates  The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
the fair value and vice versa;
EBRATLTMEE  AHBATZFETEE - EROAREE kK +#33% 36,907
%
Average PIS ratio of The higher average P/S ratio of comparable companies,
comparable companies the higher the fair value and vice verss;
EfEER 267
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(a)

(b)
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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

(a)

(b)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation processes used in Level 3 fair value measurement

In estimating the fair value of investment fund and unlisted
equity securities within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy,
the Group uses market observable-data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
obtains the valuations provided by the respective investment
managers or trust administrator for the investment funds.

The Group’s finance department includes a team that
reviews the valuations performed by the investment
managers or trust administrator of the investment funds for
financial reporting purposes. The team reports directly to
the senior management. Discussions of valuation processes
and results are held between the management, investment
managers or trust administrator of the investment funds at
least once every year. At each financial year end, the finance
department works closely with the investment managers or
trust administrator of the investment funds to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the valuation
models, verifies all major unobservable inputs in the
valuations, assesses valuations movements when compared
to the prior year valuation report and holds discussions
with the investment managers or trust administrator of the
investment funds.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities carried at
other than fair value

In the opinion of the directors, no other financial assets
and liabilities of the Group are carried at amount materially
different from their fair values as at 31 December 2018.
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BRAGEVBEBRREMTORE
ZHEYE - NEEB TIELE

(a)

(b)

In addition to the commitments disclosure elsewhere in
the consolidated financial statements, the Group has the
commitments as follow:

BARX AL (@) Capital expenditure commitments
2018 2017
ARMFT ARETFT
EEFOIEES Y Contracted but not provided for: RMB'000 RMB'000

BEYZE  HER Expenditures on properties, plant and

BRI equipment
"EES Investment funds
EERNORE
FEFBEABA

REER - REA A HUEHE I
ETRFHLEEE 2 EER
# o REBRRRERENK
REHIREAE ¢

1,052,032 927,244
30,212 106,258
1,082,244 1,033,502

(b) Commitments under operating leases
The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases with various terms and renewal rights,
which are payable as follows:

2018 2017

AREFT AEEFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

156R Within one year 307,558 294,644
ME2FZES5FEM  In the second to fifth years inclusive

(BRERERE2F) 447,470 477,436

5 F LA After five years 86,782 105,185

841,810 877,265

EEEER 269
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(b) EERNRESE) (b) Commitments under operating leases (Continued)
FEEBLHBA The Group as lessor
REBERDFLEREEHREE The Group leases out certain of its investment properties
THREUEME - FHHEL under operating leases with average lease terms of 2-3 years
MR2EIFRAENREHT and with options to renew the leases upon expiry at new
BARF SR A R IR50 - AR terms. The future aggregate minimum rental receivables
TR 2 &4 - BigE under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

ZRKES 2 RIEBRWT

2018 2017
ARETFT ABREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
1 FA Within one year 47,365 34,375
ME2 FEFS FEMm In the second to fifth years inclusive
(BHRERE2 F) 54,812 15,329
102,177 49,704
BBEBEBRAVEANBEERTE A4 Pursuant to the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
ABRARRERZE 2ZHIT Companies Ordinance, the statement of financial position of the
LU Company and the movements in its reserves are set out below:
2018 2017
et AR TF T AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
IREBEE Non-current assets
M - e RERE Property, plant and equipment 94 196
i) SPNGIE: £ Interest in subsidiaries 11,505,969 11,562,066
BFVPLRIER SR E E Financial assets at FVPL 448,121 —
8 XE FVOCI Equity instruments designated
as at FVOClI 6,876 —
AHHESREE Available-for-sale financial assets — 522,587
11,961,060 12,084,849
REBEE Current assets
TB 15 578 N E b g Y sk T8 Prepayments and other receivables 18,901 27,751
Y8~ B 2 e IR Amount due from a subsidiary 2,949,907 2,722,521
IRITEBR NI Bank balances and cash 98,312 229,300
3,067,120 2,979,572
HBEE Total assets 15,028,180 15,064,421

270 EMERRERAS
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2018 2017
btaz AR¥FT AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
REREZREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
BAR#FE Capital and reserves
AR Issued capital 235,204 235,053
f& 10 % (B Share premium 664,400 611,736
1 Reserves 48(a) 7,928,540 6,538,442
IR AT Total equity 8,828,144 7,385,231
ERBEME Non-current liabilities
BRAREBEYERE Financial liabilities at FVPL
BRERENERBE = 37,448
RPBEEEE Long-term interest-bearing borrowings 3,224,388 4,105,080
BTEFEME Employee benefit obligations 64,691 47,442
3,289,079 4,189,970
REEE Current liabilities
H At B R Other payables 72,609 68,346
A Taxation - 28,000
BEEBEZRVEEY Current portion of interest-bearing
borrowings 2,838,348 3,392,874
2,910,957 3,489,220
BEE Total liabilities 6,200,036 7,679,190
REEZMEREEHE  Total equity and liabilities 15,028,180 15,064,421
KRB EAR MK N 2019F 3 A25 8 E The statement of financial position was approved and authorised
SEHEREESEE  WAHNUTA for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2019 and signed
TREEE on its behalf by
2% Wei Hong-Ming FHE#E—EP Junichiro Ida
E ZEDirector EHEDirector
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(a) MEZ2ED (a) Movements of the reserves

REEfERE RABHERR
RORERE  ERERE MWEERE  (TEE)  (FEEM)  BREER  REM g
Investment  Investment
Capital ~ Remeasu-  Exchange  revaluation  revaluation  Share-based
redemption ement  translation reserve Teserve payment Retained
reserve reserve reserve  (Recycling) (Non-recycling) reserve Profits Total
AREFL  ABEFE  ARBTT  AREFR ARETL AREFR AREFR ARETR
RUBO0 RUB 100 RUBO0 RHB 100 RUBO0D RMB 000 RUBO0 R8O

RUTEIAB At 1 January 2017 400 (32,146) 335,214 61762 - 430,09 1883921 261943
REEN Profitfor the e - - - - - — 44606% 446069
TEEENAENA(EE) Other comprehensie income lss)

forthe year - 28247 (158,036) 86,205 - - - (43,524)
EREERNT R Fquty setted share-based transactions - - - - - 434 - )34
REBREERT R Shares issued under share apfion scheme - - - - - 21.357) - (21,357)
BlhERn Shares opton lapsed - - - - - (2485)) 2489 -

BHEREE016EREES 2016 finaldhidend approved and paid - - - - - (380849 (380849)

RTENA3E At 31 December 2017 400 (3,899 177178 148,027 - 48117 5,788,619 6,538,442
H018E1A1R At1 January 2018
U As previously reported 400 (3,899) 17178 148,027 - 11 5,788,619 6,538,442
FAZRERARENZOE Changesin accountin polces
EitE R on adopting HKFRS9 = = - (180) = = 148027 =
HEY) As restated 400 (3,899) 17178 - - a1 5,936,646 6,538,442
TR R Profit or the year = = = = = - EM6 BTN
FERENRA(BE G Other comprehensive oss)income
forthe year = (32,639 57,215 = (4.230) = 2397 LY
[ERLERNT R Equity setted share-based transactions = = = = = 32,79 = 32,79
REEREHEAZRD Shares issued under share aption scheme = = = = = (13025) = (13025)
ERExn Shares opton lapsed = = = = - (25,496) 25,49 -
BRERER017EREHES 2017 finel dhidend approved and paid = = = = = = (909539) (909,539
R01BE1ANA At 31 December 2018 400 (36,534) 234393 - (@230) 422,395 131,116 7,928,540
M2018F 12 H31H - AR AIA 5 At 31 December 2018, the Company’s distributable reserves
e EEEERE A ERMEE including retained profits and share premium amounted to
Z e/ ARE7,976,516,0007T RMB7,976,516,000 (2017: RMB6,400,335,000).
(20174 - A K #6,400,355,000
L) e
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THBERARREEMEERSA The following included the principal subsidiaries directly or
ZEEWNBRAR EERABZED indirectly held by the Company and, in the opinion of directors,
RN AFEWEBERNER - o4 are significant to the revenue for the year or form a substantial
RAEASBREENEEZSN D - EEF portion of total assets of the Group. The directors consider that
RAEFINEMMBRANER S giving details of other subsidiaries would result in particulars of
RiELEK ° excess length.
e,/
£ EXuE AR/ BRIRE JEfE gL Bl TEXK
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# Btk
Directly Indirectly
FOBHRRREVARAT RERLHS Us$2 100% - REER
Master Kong Instant Foods (BVI) Co., Ltd. BVI Investment holding
REERRRARAF GilE? US$72,000,000 - 100%  BEREEAEE
Tianjin Tingyi Food Co, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of
instant noodles
EMERRRARAT e US$31,000,000 - 100%  BEREESFE
Guangzhou Tingyi Food Co,, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of
instant noodles
* MERRRERAA GilE? US$151,500,000 - 100%  BEREEREE
* Hangzhou Tingyi Food Co, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of
instant noodles
BRERRRARAT P US$17,000,000 - 100% BEREESEE
Shenyang Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. * PRC Manufacture and sale of
instant noodles
RERRRRARAA hE US$17,800,000 - 100% HERHEHEE
Wuhan TingYi Food Co, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of
instant noodles
RZEERMARA e US$44,300,000 - 100% REREEREE
Xian Tingyi Food Co,, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of
instant noodles
EERERBARLA hEl U5$5,000,000 - 100% BERHENFE
Qingdao Tingyi Food Co,, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of
instant noodles
LEEEARRARAT hEE US$14,200,000 - 100%  RERHEEHFE
Harbin Ting Yi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of
instant noodles
EREGRRERAT G 554,500,000 - 100%  BERHERFE
Fujian Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of
instant noodles
*HREARBERAT ME US$14,000,000 - 100% BEREEHFE
*NanJing Tingyi Food Co., Ltd PRC Manufacture and sale of
instant noodles
* REDE (BR) ERAN R US$6,000,000 - 100% RERHEHEE
* Master Kong (Shenyang) Convement Food Co., Ltd. * PRC Manufacture and sale of
instant noodles
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8

Name

I ERRRERAR
Jiangmen Tingyi Food Co., Ltd.

RHEGERRARAR
Cheng Du Tingyi Food Co, Ltd.

*HERRRmARAR
* XinJiang TingYi Food Co. Ltd

* RENE(BE) hERMED

* Master Kong (Chongging) Convement Food Co,, Ltd

* BINRERRERAE
* Zhengzhou ngyl Food Co, ltd.*

ERRRRMERAT
Chongging Tingyi Food Co., Ltd.

FOETRARE (7E) BRA

Master Kong Instant Noodle Investment
(China) Co., Ltd.

REVERS V) BRAA
Master Kong Bakery (BVI) Co., Ltd.
REVEHRRRRE (PE) BRAF

Master Kong Instant Foods Investment
(China) Co., Ltd.

/i]ﬁliuu NG
Tianjin Tingyuan Food Co, Ltd.
REVES R (V) BRAA
Master Kong Beverages (BVI) Co., Ltd.
FAERRERERAT
KSF Beverage Ho\ding Co, Ltd.

* REEZRMED
* Tianjin Tingjin Food Co,, Ltd.

EMEZRRAD
Guangzhou ngjln Food Co, Ltd.
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BaAve

EEHY AMER/CRIRA
Place of

incorporation/ Registered capital/
operation issued share capital
i 15$29,000,000
PRC

i US$17,000,000
PRC

HE 1S$3,000,000
PRC

s U5$5,000,000
PRC

i U5$50,000,000
PRC

i U5$22,000,000
PRC

HE US$227,500,000
PRC

RERUEE Us$1
BVI

s U5$98,900,000
PRC

i U5$37,000,000
PRC

BERAES US$55,263
BVI

HEHS US$10,527.37
Cayman lslands

i US5$60,840,000
PRC

i 15$20,000,000
PRC

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

LR B Al
Proportion of
ownership interest
E% 3
Directly Indirectly
- 100%
— 100%
- 100%
— 100%
- 100%
— 100%
- 100%
100% -
— 100%
- 100%
90.48% -
25.4% 47.51%
- 72.91%
- 72.91%

IBRE

Principal activity

BERHERER
Manufacture and sale of
instant noodles
BERHERFR
Manufacture and sale of
instant noodles
BEREERFR
Manufacture and sale of
instant noodles
BERHERFR
Manufacture and sale of
instant noodles
BERHERER
Manufacture and sale of
instant noodles
BERHERFER
Manufacture and sale of
instant noodles
RERR

Investment holding

REER
Investment holding

REER
Investment holding

HERHERRRD

Manufacture and sale of instant food
AR

Investment holding

AR

Investment holding

RERHERD

Manufacture and sale of beverages
RERHERD

Manufacture and sale of beverages



&8

Name

*MNEERGBRA
*Hangzhou Tingjin Food Co, Ltd.

* ZEE N BRERAR
* Master Kong (Hangzhou) Beverage Co., Ltd *

*REEERRAN
* Wuhan Tingjin Food Co, Ltd.

ERRZRAEN
Xi'an Tingjin Food (o, Ltd. i

EEEZRMAS
Chongging ng in Food Co, td.

EERERMAS
Qingdao ngjm Food Co., Ltd

REEZRRARA
Fujian Tingjin Food Co, Ltd.
*REERERRAD
* Harbin Tingjin Food (o, Ltd."
* BHEERAED
* Kunming ngjm Food Co, Ltd
* BNTERRARED
* Zhengzhou ngjm Food Co, Ltd.
*BNEERRBRAT
* Lanzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. *
* R0 (RR) #RERAT
¥ Master Kong (Shenyang) Beverage Co., Ltd
* REIE (BR) RmARAR
* Master Kong (Xi'an) Beverage Co., Ltd
* REVEB(R2) RmARAH
¥ Master Kong (T|anJm) Beverage (o, Ltd
*BNERRRED
* Yangzhou Tingjin Food Co, Ltd.
* EMERHRERAT
¥ Guangzhou Tingjin Beverage Co., Ltd. *
* RHIE (SEAE) RRARAT

¥ Master Kong (Wulumugj) Beverage Co., Ltd. *

rt-
W

A
EXuH

Place of

incorporation/

operation

48
PRC
o
PRC
o
PRC
o
PRC
o
PRC
48
PRC
o
PRC
o
PRC
o
PRC
o
PRC
o
PRC
48
PRC
o
PRC
o
PRC
o
PRC
o
PRC
o
PRC
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iftes/ BRIRA

Registered capital/
issued share capital

US$38,100,000

US$28,350,000

US$73,500,000

U5$5,000,000

US$24,000,000

US$15,000,000

US$13,700,000

US$33,000,000

US$12,000,000

US$24,000,000

US$16,000,000

US$41,000,000

US$48,500,000

US$31,800,000

US$36,500,000

U5$59,300,000

US$12,000,000

R fl

Proportion of

ownership interest

E%
Directly

3
Indirectly

72.91%

72.91%

72.91%

72.91%

72.91%

72.91%

72.91%

72.91%

72.91%

72.91%

72.91%

72.91%

72.91%

72.91%

72.91%

72.91%

72.91%

IBRH

Principal activity

HEREEHR
Manufacture and sale of beverages
HERHEERm
Manufacture and sale of beverages
RERHERM
Manufacture and sale of beverages
HERHERD
Manufacture and sale of beverages
HERHEERm
Manufacture and sale of beverages
YEREEHR
Manufacture and sale of beverages
HERHERm
Manufacture and sale of beverages
HERHEERm
Manufacture and sale of beverages
RERHERM
Manufacture and sale of beverages
HERHERD
Manufacture and sale of beverages
HERHERR
Manufacture and sale of beverages
YEREEHR
Manufacture and sale of beverages
HERHERm
Manufacture and sale of beverages
HERHEERm
Manufacture and sale of beverages
RERHERR
Manufacture and sale of beverages
HERHERR
Manufacture and sale of beverages
HERHEERm

Manufacture and sale of beverages
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£8

Name

* BEEERMERAF

* Baotou Tingjin Food Co,, Ltd

* BHEERMERAR

¥ Langfang Tingjin Food Co., Ltd

*BNEZRRERAT

* Suzhou Ting Jin Food Co., Ltd.
REVBRMRE (PE) BRAA

Master Kong Beverage Investment (China) Co., Ltd.

PEEELE (BE) BRAF
China Bottlers (Hong Kong) Limited

B% (TE) REARAT
PepsiCo Investment (China) Ltd.

BESH (BM) BRAT

PepsiCo Beverages (Guangzhou) Limited

BNBEAERRARAT

Guangzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited®

*ERAEUEREARAT

* Bejing Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd.

* RERSUERBARAT

* Changchun Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd.

* REBFARARARAE

* Tianjin Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited

RABERRAERAE

Chengdu PepsiCo Beverages Company Limited

BNBEARARAE

Lanzhou PepsiCo Beverages Company Limited *

* BRASANARARAT

* Chongging Pepsi-Tianfu Beverage Company Limited

R BEUEHRERAT

Shenzhen Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd.

* B EUEREERAT

* Hangzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd.

RYBEAXARERAE

Changsha Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited

276 EEMERRERAE

HRAL/

EEHY HMEL/BRORE
Place of

incorporation/ Registered capital/
operation issued share capital
i US$12,000,000
PRC

& US$28,500,000
PRC

i US$41,500,000
PRC

hE US$196,677,000
PRC

2% US$2
Hong Kong

HE U5$358,216,517
PRC

s US$197,800,000
PRC

s US$66,650,000
PRC

HE US$ 14,119,449
PRC

i U5$20,000,000
PRC

ey RMB100,000,000
PRC

HE US$6,600,000
PRC

HE US$1,350,000
PRC

i US$17,845,000
PRC

HE US$12,250,000
PRC

i US$10,400,000
PRC

i U5$28,000,000
PRC

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

L3 ]

Proportion of

ownership interest

E#
Directly

[}:3
Indirectly

72.91%

72.91%

72.91%

72.91%

72.91%

72.91%

72.91%

72.91%

47.39%

41.92%

46.21%

72.91%

72.91%

68.83%

72.91%

36.46%

72.91%

IBRH

Principal activity

HERHERm

Manufacture and sale of beverages
HERHEERm

Manufacture and sale of beverages
RERHERM

Manufacture and sale of beverages
REBR

Investment holding

RERR

Investment holding

RERR

Investment holding
HERHER R

Manufacture and sale of beverages
RERHERM

Manufacture and sale of beverages
HERHEERm

Manufacture and sale of beverages
HERHERD

Manufacture and sale of beverages
HEREERm

Manufacture and sale of beverages
HERHERM

Manufacture and sale of beverages
HERHER M

Manufacture and sale of beverages
HEREERm

Manufacture and sale of beverages
RERHERD

Manufacture and sale of beverages
HERHERR

Manufacture and sale of beverages
HEREERm

Manufacture and sale of beverages



*

%

LA BTTEIRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE 201812 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2018

BaliAYE
£ EXHH ifEx/ BRiTRE e Al IERH

Place of

incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity

E# A&
Directly Indirectly
U EERES 02yl N G RMB19,764,000 - 91% REREERR
Fuzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
BEHH (BE) ARAT HE US$9,000,000 - 51.04%  HEREEHRD
Pepsi Beverage (Nanchang) Company Limited PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
PHEEARARAE i US$21,000,000 - 7291%  RERHEHRR
Zhengzhou PepsiCo Beverage Co,, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
REERETERANERLA i US$35,000,000 - 7291%  BERHEHRR
Harbin Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. * PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
TER(BV) BRAR RERAEE US$1,000 100% - REBR
Tingtong (BVI) Limited BVI Investment holding
R (R25) BRARDA RERS US$2,118,334 - 5001%  REZR
Ting Tong (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. Cayman Islands Investment holding
FAERMRERAT G US$5,000,000 - 50.01%  REMRKH
Shanghai Tingtong Logistics Co., Ltd. PRC Logistics services
% (EBRKE) BRARAT ZBRAHE US$50,000 100% —  REEZREAR
Tingyi (BVI) Int'l Co,, Ltd. BVI Purchasing and sales agent for the
Group
SHRBERAT ZERNES US$147,232,000 - 100%  HEER
Wealth City Investment Limited BVI Investment holding
HEEEERERAT HBRAHE US$1 100% - RE#ER
China Dingya Holding Limited BVI Investment holding
EARAEENERRAT hE US$135,000,000 - 100%  RENZEERE
Shanghai Jingiu Minghao Property Co., Ltd.* PRC Provision of properties management
service
REEEEHERAT e US$200,000 100% -  RUEERE
Tianjin Tingyu Consulting Co., Ltd. PRC Provision of management services
* ZEMBRREMATIINEGE & * These subsidiaries are registered as Sino-foreign equity joint venture
VE@RZE © companies.
# EERE R AR # English translation for identification purposes only.

HMASERPEREARZHERQF
BRI EEMREEINERE -

wholly-owned foreign enterprises.

The other subsidiaries in the PRC are established and registered as

EfmER 277
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P.O. Box 309 Ugland House
Grand Cayman KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

58 (2RER)

BB EEIE 18
FIRES 56125607 F

T 0 (852) 2511 1911
f5H :(852) 2511 7911
BT : info@tingyi.com

FERER

R /8201103
B7TE
R & 16885k

www.masterkong.com.cn
www.irasia.com/listco/hk/tingyi

ERBMARSBMR AT
EHARIR 0 0322

EFTEFLE S Level 1
RS  TCYMY

BEFLEE
FEHARIR 0 910322

278 EMEERERAS

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP

P.O. Box 309 Ugland House
Grand Cayman KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG (Global Business)

Suite 5607, 56th Floor, Central Plaza
18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2511-1911

Fax: (852) 2511-7911

E-mail: info@tingyi.com

PRC OFFICE

No.1688, Wuzhong Road
Minhang District
Shanghai City 201103
PRC

www.masterkong.com.cn
www.irasia.com/listco/hk/tingyi

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Security code: 0322

ADR Level 1 Programme
Symbol: TCYMY

Taiwan Depositary Receipts
Security Code: 910322



RELELE(EEFR)
HHRME—BEE(FIEER)
WERELE

REIER L

BERRFfE

mRERRE

RIEEFEE
FR\LE
RERLE

Genesis Trust & Corporate Services Ltd.

2nd Floor, Compass Centre
P.O. Box 448, George Town
Grand Cayman KY1-1106
Cayman Islands

BEEEBEHELBRAA
BB

BT 2E AR 1835
AL 1T7HE
1712-1716 5548

AFIER | Corporate Information

Mr. Wei Hong-Ming (Chairman)
Mr. Junichiro Ida (Vice-Chairman)
Mr. Lin Chin-Tang

Mr. Teruo Nagano

Mr. Wei Hong-Chen

Mr. Koji Shinohara

Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock
Mr. Hiromu Fukada

Genesis Trust & Corporate Services Ltd.
2nd Floor, Compass Centre

P.O. Box 448, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1106

Cayman Islands

Hong Kong Registrars Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai
Hong Kong

EaEEr 279
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AFIER | Corporate Information

AR FEIRTT Agricultural Bank of China

RFTIRTT ANZ Bank

R EIERTT Bank of China

RIBIRTT Bank of Communications

R IRTT Bank of Ningbo

AR =ZF 7 BEIRTT Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ

EEERRTT BNP Paribas

B ERERTT China Construction Bank

Bl R P8R AT China Merchants Bank

R RARTT China Minsheng Bank

TEMEIRTT CITI Bank

EEERTT Deutsche Bank

ARBERERTT Development Bank of Japan Inc.

R TRERTT Industrial and Commercial Bank of China

BHEBERTT Metrobank

B ARIniRERTT Mizuho Bank, Ltd.

REEERITAR AR Rabobank

BAZHERRITRHBR DA Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

TELRIT The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited (HSBC)

SRAM TR AR TIFRIT Westpac Banking Corporation

A ESRITRIZREX FHRIBFEE The above banks are arranged in alphabetical order

RIEEANES AT Sidley Austin

A EAERRM PRC principal legal advisers:

B AR EAT Baker McKenzie

RN =T Haiwen & Partners

PR RN ERNE AT AllBright Law Offices

WTRE BN =B P Zhenghan Lawfirm

HrE R EBA JUN&HENG Law Offices

HEHE AR as to Cayman Islands law:

BEIEFRMELA(ER) Maples and Calder (Hong Kong) LLP
BREEEEER

PEDRIR(BR)GFTMEBMERAA Mazars CPA Limited

BAENELIAD Certified Public Accountants

280 EfERRERLS
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